
1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  

 



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

Notice of Meeting 

Monday, September 11, 2023, at 8:30 AM 

32825 Co Rd 39, Lucerne, CO 80646 

THE BOARD MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC IN PERSON AND BY 
TELECONFERENCE 

Information to join by Phone is below: 

Call-In Number: 1(720)707-2699, Meeting ID: 873 5785 0771, Passcode: 475314 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest  
 

3. Action: Approve September 11, 2023, NWCWD Board Meeting Agenda 
 

4. Public Comment (3 Minute Time Limit; Items Not Otherwise on the Agenda)  
 

5. Consent Agenda: (These items are considered to be routine and will be approved 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
requested, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in the Regular Agenda) (enclosures) 

a. Minutes from August 14, 2023, and August 28, 2023, Meetings 
b. Invoices through September 11, 2023  
c. Easement Agreements 

i. Faux – NEWT III 
ii. City of Thornton - NEWT III 
iii. Redmond – NEWT III 
iv. WAPA Access Agreements – NEWT III 
v. Nelson Easement Agreement – Woods Lake Line Replacement 

d. Water Efficiency Plan Update Scope  
e. Greeley- NW interconnect Change Order 
f. Rental of C-BT Carryover Capacity from CSU 
g. Supplemental Agreement with Larimer County Canal No. 2 for the headgate 

rehabilitation project 
h. BAE LLC water allocation divestment to district  

 

6. Discussion: Honey Creek Resources Revised Cost of Service and Fees Study  
 

7. Discussion: North Weld County Water District Preliminary Draft 2024 Budget  
 

8. Discussion: Master Plan, Drought Plan and Proposed Revisions to Water 
Service Agreements (Privileged and Confidential, Separate Cover) 
 

9. Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to enter into Executive Session for 



the following purposes: Receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject to 
negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & (e), C.R.S. related to Master 
Planning and Water Service Agreements  
 

 
10. District Manager’s Report: (enclosures) 

a. Tap Sales 
b. Subpoena to Produce Documents – Mr. Kerr vs Diversified Oilfield  
c. Tri-Districts Annual Diner 5:30 on October 5, 2023, at the Mill in Windsor  

 
11. Other Business  

 

 
ADJOURN   P.M. 



 

 August 14, 2023, Regular Meeting P a g e  | 1 

 MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 Held: Monday, the 14th day of August, 2023, at 8:30 A.M.   

 

 The meeting was conducted via teleconference. 

 

ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 

 

 Tad Stout, President 

Scott Cockroft, Secretary 

Nels Nelson, Treasurer 

Anne Hennen, Assistant Secretary 

Matthew Pettinger, Assistant Secretary 

 

 Also present were Eric Reckentine, General Manager of the 

District; Zachary P. White, Esq., WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA 

& WALDRON, District general counsel; Scott Holwick, Lyons 

Gaddis, District special counsel; George Oamek, Headwaters 

Corp., Richard Raines; Nick Wharton, Town of Severance; Keith 

Meyer, Ditesco; Wes Levanachy, and Mr. Nick Haws, Town of 

Eaton; Mr. Steve Nyguen, Clear Water Consultants; Members of 

District Staff; and Members of the Public. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

MATTERS 

 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 8:30 A.M. 

 

Declaration of Quorum and 

Confirmation of Director 

Qualifications 

 

Mr. Stout noted that a quorum for the Board was present and that 

the directors had confirmed their qualification to serve. 

  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures 

of Potential or Existing 

Conflicts of Interest 

Mr. White advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law, 

certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action 

at the meeting. Mr. White reported that disclosures for those 

directors that provided WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & 

WALDRON with notice of potential or existing conflicts of interest, 

if any, were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the 

Board at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with 

Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the 

Board. Mr. White inquired into whether members of the Board 

had any additional disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of 

interest about any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. 

All directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting and confirmed 

that they have no additional conflicts of interest in connection with 

any of the matters listed on the agenda.  



 

 August 14, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 2 

 

Approval of Agenda Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the agenda for the 

meeting.  Upon motion of Mr. Nelson, seconded by Ms. Hennen, 

the Board unanimously approved the agenda. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

No members of the public addressed the Board. 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MATTERS 

Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the consent agenda 

items. 

 

Upon motion of Ms. Hennen, seconded by Mr. Pettinger, the 

Board approved the following: 

a. Minutes from July 17, 2023, Meetings  

b. Unaudited Financials for July 2023  

c. Invoices through August 14, 2023  

d. Greeley and NW Harmony Interconnect Pump Station 

Purchase Contract  

e. Element WSSC Change Case No.1 Task Order No. 4  

f. Stantec Master Plan Change Order 1  

g. Honey Creek Resources Cost of Service and Finance 

Model Update Scope  

h. Ditesco Services Scope of Services NEWT III 

Construction Management  

i. BPCCC Variance Request i. Rest Stop Storage  

j. Easement Agreements  

i. Overland Ponds Mark Linder Pond 1  

ii. AB Property – NEWT III  

k. Nickel Road Mineral Lease Agreement  

 

Discussion: Town Mayor 

and Manager for the Town of 

Eaton Discussion on Future 

Water Service in Relation to 

2nd Treatment Plant and 

NWCWD  

 

Mr. Wes Levanachy, and Mr. Nick Haws from the Town of Eaton, 

and Mr. Steve Nyguen from Clear Water Consultants addressed 

the Board regarding the relationship between the Town and the 

District now and into the future.  The Town acknowledges that it 

will need to coordinate and cooperate with the District in order to 

continue to grow and is willing to work with the District in order 

to maintain a positive relationship, including being the first of the 

Towns served by the District to enter into a revised water service 

agreement.  The Town has been part of discussions regarding the 

construction of a second water treatment plan, but acknowledges 

the extraordinary expense associated with such construction that 

could be avoided by continuing to partner with the District.   

 

No action was taken. 

 

Consider Approval for 

Variance Request Related to 

Development Review for the 

Deferred.  

 

No action was taken. 



 

 August 14, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 3 

Ridge Commercial 

Development  

 

 

Executive Session Not needed. 

 

DISTRICT MANAGER’S 

REPORT 

 

Tap Sales Mr. Reckentine reported that 110 taps have been sold to date and 

that the District is on track to meet its budget for the year. 

 

Audit Extension Filed Mr. Reckentine reported that an audit extension was filed with the 

State in order to give the auditor more time to complete the filing. 

 

SDA Annual Meeting Mr. Reckentine reported that the Special District Association will 

hold its annual meeting September 12-14.  Directors are welcome 

to register and attend. 

 

Thornton Northern 

Properties Stewardship Plan 

(NPSP) August 14, 2023  

 

Mr. Reckentine reported on the NPSP Planning efforts. 

Notices Sent to NEWT III 

alignment property owners.  
 

 

Mr. Reckentine reported that five property owners have been 

given notice regarding the need for easements for NEWT III.  

Negotiations are underway with the owners. 

 

Leak on 18” Distribution 

Line from Tank 1  

 

Mr. Reckentine reported and congratulated staff on a repair of a 

leak on the 18” distribution line from Tank 1 without needing to 

shut down service. 

 

System and CIP Map and 

2023 Budget Memo  

 

Mr. Reckentine provided the Board a preliminary 2023 Budget 

Memo for review.  Future discussion will be held on these matters. 

Master Plan and Water 

Service Agreement Work 

Sessions  

 

Mr. Reckentine discussed with the Board a request to hold one or 

more work sessions with the Board to begin to discuss master 

planning and proposed policy and form agreement revisions 

related to water service agreements with towns, developers, and 

commercial customers.  The Board determined to hold its first 

work session on August 28.  Mr. Reckentine will distribute a 

memorandum to the Board regarding pending issues that need 

Board input. 

 

City of Fort Collins Change 

in Water Requirements and 

Excess Water Usage Charges  

 

Mr. Reckentine reported to the Board regarding recent proposed 

changes by the City of Fort Collins to their excess water usage 

charges. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

 



 

 August 14, 2023, Regular Meeting  P a g e  | 4 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to be conducted, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes 

of the above-referenced meeting 

 

 

               

     Secretary for the District 



 August 28, 2023, Special Meeting P a g e  | 1 

 MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 Held: Monday, the 28th day of August, 2023, at 8:30 A.M.   

 

 The meeting was conducted via teleconference. 

 

ATTENDANCE The meeting was held in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Colorado. The following directors were in attendance: 

 

 Tad Stout, President 

Scott Cockroft, Secretary 

Nels Nelson, Treasurer 

Anne Hennen, Assistant Secretary 

Matthew Pettinger, Assistant Secretary 

 

 Also present were Eric Reckentine, General Manager of the 

District; Zachary P. White, Esq., WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA 

& WALDRON, District general counsel; Scott Holwick, Lyons 

Gaddis, District special counsel; Jamie Cotter, SpencerFane, 

District special counsel; George Oamek, Headwaters Corp., 

Richard Reins and Jan Sitterson, Water Resources; Nick Wharton, 

Town of Severance; Angela Thompson, Slate Communications; 

and Paul Wiess, Williams & Wiess Consulting. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

MATTERS 

 

 

Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 8:30 A.M. 

 

Declaration of Quorum and 

Confirmation of Director 

Qualifications 

 

Mr. Stout noted that a quorum for the Board was present and that 

the directors had confirmed their qualification to serve. 

  

Reaffirmation of Disclosures 

of Potential or Existing 

Conflicts of Interest 

Mr. White advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law, 

certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action 

at the meeting. Mr. White reported that disclosures for those 

directors that provided WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & 

WALDRON with notice of potential or existing conflicts of interest, 

if any, were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the 

Board at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with 

Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged by the 

Board. Mr. White inquired into whether members of the Board 

had any additional disclosures of potential or existing conflicts of 

interest about any matters scheduled for discussion at the meeting. 

All directors reviewed the agenda for the meeting and confirmed 

that they have no additional conflicts of interest in connection with 

any of the matters listed on the agenda.  



 August 28, 2023, Special Meeting  P a g e  | 2 

 

Approval of Agenda Mr. Reckentine presented the Board with the agenda for the 

meeting.  Upon motion of Mr. Pettinger, seconded by Ms. 

Hennen, the Board unanimously approved the agenda. 

  

Discussion: Master Plan, 

Drought Plan and Proposed 

Revisions to Water Service 

Agreements  

 

Mr. Reckentine presented to the Board a memorandum and related 

materials related to the status of mater planning efforts, drought 

management, and proposed revisions to water service agreements 

in order to address issues that impact the District and its 

customers. 

 

Executive Session: The 

Board reserves the right to 

enter into Executive Session 

for the following purposes: 

Receiving legal advice and 

discussing matters subject to 

negotiation and strategy 

pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) 

& (e), C.R.S. related to 

Master Planning and Water 

Service Agreement 

Negotiations  

 

Upon motion of Mr. Pettinger, seconded by Ms. Hennen, and upon 

an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the quorum present, 

the Board convened in executive session at 8:45 A.M. for the 

purpose of receiving legal advice pursuant to §24-6-402(4)(b), 

C.R.S.; determining positions relative to matters that may be 

subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and 

instructing negotiators pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(e), C.R.S. 

                              

Pursuant to § 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S., no record will be 

kept of the portion of this executive session that, in the opinion of 

the District’s/Districts’ attorney, constitutes privileged attorney-

client communication pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. 

 

Also pursuant to § 24-6-402(4), C.R.S., the Board did not adopt 

any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation or take 

formal action during execution session. 

                                                 

The Board reconvened in regular session at 12:14 P.M. 

 

The Board directed staff and consultants to update the 

memorandum and begin to draft updated water service agreements 

for review by the Board. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to be conducted, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes 

of the above-referenced meeting 

 

 

               

     Secretary for the District 

 

 

 



 August 28, 2023, Special Meeting  P a g e  | 3 

ATTORNEY STATEMENT 

REGARDING PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION 

 

Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S., I attest that, in my capacity as the attorney 

representing North Weld County Water District, I attended the executive session meeting of the 

North Weld County Water District convened at 8:45 A.M. on August 28, 2023 for the sole purpose 

of receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject to negotiation and strategy related to 

Master Planning and Water Service Agreement Negotiations  as authorized by § 24-6-402(4)(b) & 

(e), C.R.S. I further attest it is my opinion that a portion of the executive session discussion 

constituted a privileged attorney-client communication as provided by Section 24-6-402(4)(b), 

C.R.S. and, based on that opinion, no further record, written or electronic, was kept or required to 

be kept pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(b), C.R.S. or Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S. 

 

  ____________________________ 

Zachary P. White, Esq. 

 

































 

 
 

1 
 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction and Access Easement Agreement 

 
 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Temporary Construction and Access Easement AGREEMENT (“TCE”) is made this              
day of ___________________, 2023, by and between CITY OF THORNTON, A COLORADO 
HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, whose address is 9500 Civic Center Drive, Thornton, CO 80229 
(“GRANTOR”), and the EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, whose address is 232 South Link 
Lane, Fort Collins, Colorado 80524 and the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a 
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado, which has an  address of 33247 Highway 85, 
Lucerne, Colorado, 80646 (jointly, “GRANTEE”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
1. GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 dollars ($10.00) and 

other valuable consideration paid by the GRANTEE to the GRANTOR, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, 
and by this TCE does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm to the GRANTEE, its 
successors and assigns forever, a temporary access and construction easement on, under 
and across the property described and depicted on Exhibit A (Property Description and 
Exhibit Map) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, located in Larimer 
County, Colorado (“Easement”); for the purposes of : 

 
A. Surveying, locating, installing, and constructing a buried 42-inch water pipeline on 

lands adjacent to the Easement, in whole or in part; 
 

B. Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the Easement that 
might interfere with GRANTEE’s activities on the Property; and 

 
C. Access for purposes of surveying, locating, installing, and constructing a buried water 

pipeline across property owned by the GRANTOR that is contiguous to the Permanent 
Easement.  Such access is subject to reasonable notice in a form acceptable to 
GRANTOR by GRANTEE and consent by GRANTOR for the same, which consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
2. The term of the TCE shall begin on the first day construction activities for the water 

pipeline within the Easement begins and end on the last day construction activities for the 
water pipeline within the Easement occur, but no later than one (1) year after the first day 



 

 
 

2 
 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction and Access Easement Agreement 

construction activities for the water pipeline within the Easement begin, except as 
otherwise mutually extended per written agreement of the parties.  GRANTEE shall 
provide GRANTOR with written notice of intent to commence construction at least 30 
days before construction begins. 
 

3. During the term of this TCE GRANTOR, its tenants and/or agents reserve the right to use 
and occupy the Property for any purpose, except that GRANTOR shall not themselves or 
through other persons or entities, place, erect, install or permit any above or below ground 
building, structure or other obstruction, or allow any use on the Easement that may interfere 
with the GRANTEE’s full enjoyment of the rights hereunder. 

  
4. The GRANTEE shall: 

 
A. Restore the surface of the ground, including landscaping, fences, or other 

improvements existing on the Property at the time this TCE commences to a condition 
comparable to its condition prior to installation, construction, maintenance, alteration, 
or replacement of the pipeline or pipelines and appurtenances thereto; 

 
B. Restore fences, drain tile, irrigation systems, landscaping, private roads, and other 

improvements, to the conditions comparable to those existing prior to GRANTEE’s 
activities on the Easement;  

 
C. Pay the GRANTOR the actual damages to growing crops, livestock and other items 

caused by GRANTEE’S activities on the Easement; 
 
 

5. The Parties hereto agree that neither has made or authorized any agreement with respect to 
the subject matter of this instrument other than as expressly set forth herein, and no oral 
representation, promise or consideration different from the terms herein contained shall be 
binding on either Party, its agents, or employees.

 
6. The signatories hereto warrant that they have full and lawful authority to make the grant, 

covenants and promises herein above contained as GRANTOR, and the covenants and 
promises herein above made as GRANTEE.   
 

7. The covenants contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
respective successors and assigns of GRANTOR and GRANTEE. 
 



 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction and Access Easement Agreement 

3 

8. The Parties agree that this TCE shall not be recorded. 
 

9. GRANTEE agrees that this TCE is subject to any and all pre-existing easements, liens or 
other encumbrances of record. 
 

10. In the event any of the terms of this TCE are violated by any party, such violation shall be 
immediately corrected and eliminated as soon as practicable after receipt of notice of the 
same, and if not corrected, the noticing party shall have the right to correct and eliminate 
such violation.  If such violation is not corrected, the noticing party shall also have the right 
to file appropriate proceedings to enjoin any violation and request specific performance of 
the conditions described herein.  GRANTOR reserves the right to do all acts necessary to 
immediately remedy any emergency situation that may arise associated with or caused by 
GRANTEE’s exercise of the rights hereunder. 
 

11. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of any of the protections or monetary 
limitations that either party may enjoy under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this TCE effective as of the date 
first above written. 
 
        

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 
        



 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction and Access Easement Agreement 

4 

GRANTOR:    
CITY OF THORNTON, A COLORADO HOME 
RULE MUNICIPALITY 

     
By:_____________________________ 
       Kevin S. Woods, City Manager 

      
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Kristen N. Rosenbaum, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Tami Yellico, City Attorney 
 
 
______________________________  
City Attorney  
  
       
        
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 
2023, by Kevin S. Woods, City Manager of the City of Thornton, a Colorado home rule 
municipality.   
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  ____________________ 
       
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public 

 
  



 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction and Access Easement Agreement 

5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE: 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado  
 
 
By________________________________ 
    Loren Maxey, President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 
 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ________ day of 
_____________________, 2023, by Loren Maxey, as President of EAST LARIMER COUNTY 
WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado. 
  
 WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  ____________________ 
       
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
East Larimer County Water District 
Temporary Construction and Access Easement Agreement 

6 

      GRANTEE: 
 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  
 DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the  
 State of Colorado 

ATTEST:            
          
______________________   ___________________________ 
Scott Cockroft, Secretary   Tad Stout, President 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO   ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER   ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 
2023, by Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _________________  
 
             
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 

 













Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 1  

 DEED OF PERMANENT EASEMENT  
(Water Pipeline) 

 
This Permanent Water Pipeline Easement is made this  day of __________________ , 

2023, by and between CITY OF THORNTON, A COLORADO HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, 
whose address is 9500 Civic Center Drive, Thornton, CO 80229  (“GRANTOR”), and the EAST 
LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado, whose address is 232 South Link Lane, Fort Collins, Colorado 
80524 and the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the 
State of Colorado, which has an  address of 33247 Highway 85, Lucerne, Colorado, 80646 (jointly, 
“GRANTEE”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 dollars ($10.00) and other 
good and valuable consideration paid by the GRANTEE to the GRANTOR, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by 
these presents does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm to the GRANTEE, its successors and 
assigns forever, a Permanent Water Pipeline Easement (“Permanent Easement” or “Easement”) 
on, under, and across the real property legally described and depicted on Exhibit A (“Easement 
Area”) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, located in Larimer County, 
Colorado.  
   
1. The Easement granted is for the purposes of:  

a. Surveying, locating, installing, constructing, using, operating, maintaining, inspecting, 
repairing, altering, removing, and replacing one (1) or more buried water pipelines, in 
whole or in part, and all necessary subsurface and surface appurtenances for the 
transportation of water and the operation and control of water facilities.  Any additional 
water pipelines to be installed in the Easement after the date of this Agreement shall be 
limited to only those necessary for Grantee’s operations and owned/operated by Grantee, 
and shall not include any structures owned or operated by third parties, unless otherwise 
approved by Thornton. 
 

b. Marking the location of the Permanent Easement and pipeline or pipelines thereunder by 
suitable markers set and maintained in or on the ground at locations which shall not 
interfere with such reasonable use as GRANTOR shall make of the property under the 
terms of this Permanent Easement; 
 

c. Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the Permanent Easement 
that might interfere with the operation and maintenance of GRANTEE’s activities and 
facilities within the Permanent Easement; and 
 

d. Providing GRANTEE access to the Easement including the right to install access roads 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 2  

within the Easement Area. GRANTEE shall also have the right cross GRANTOR’S 
property outside the Easement Area subject to the following conditions: (i) Access shall be 
on existing roads and is subject to reasonable notice in a form acceptable to GRANTOR 
by GRANTEE and consent by GRANTOR for the same, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld; (ii) Access for emergency purposes shall not require prior notice 
except GRANTEE shall notify GRANTOR of such emergency access as soon as 
practicable;  (iii) Access shall only be during the time the GRANTOR’S property outside 
the Easement Area is used for agricultural purposes, and in the sole discretion of 
GRANTOR such access shall not interfere with GRANTOR’S use of the such property.  
Subject to the above restrictions, GRANTEE shall also have the right to install access roads 
outside the Easement Area if determined necessary by GRANTEE, upon notice to and 
consent by GRANTOR, however, GRANTEE shall be fully responsible for any costs 
resulting from construction and maintenance/repair of any such additional roads installed 
by GRANTEE. 

 
2. The GRANTEE shall: 
 

a. Bury all pipe and insofar as practicable, bury communication and control cables to a 
minimum of 48-inches below the existing grade as measured from the top of the pipeline; 

 
b. Restore the surface of the ground, including landscaping, fences, or other improvements 

existing on the Property at the time this Permanent Easement commences to a condition 
comparable to its condition prior to installation, construction, maintenance, alteration, or 
replacement of the pipeline or pipelines and appurtenances thereto; 

 
c. Restore existing fences, drain tile, irrigation systems, private roads and other 

improvements to a condition comparable to its condition existing prior to GRANTEE’s 
activities within the Permanent Easement;   

 
d. Restore or replace improvements reserved to the GRANTOR herein and made by the 

GRANTOR within the Easement, should those improvements be disturbed by the 
GRANTEE or GRANTEE’s water pipeline,; and  

 
e. Obtain any permits, approvals and consents and meet any other legal obligations or 

requirements including those imposed by any governmental authority prior to 
construction.  GRANTOR shall not object to or otherwise interfere with any application 
for any such permits, approvals and consents. 

 
3. The GRANTOR, its tenants and/or agents reserve the right to use and occupy the Easement 

Area for any purpose consistent with the rights and privileges granted herein which will not 
unreasonably interfere with or endanger any of the GRANTEE’s facilities on or under the 
Easement or GRANTEE’s use thereof, provided that in no event, without the prior written 
consent of the GRANTEE, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, shall GRANTOR: 

 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 3  

a. Construct or allow the construction of any buildings or other structures on or within the 
Easement; 

 
b. Impound water or other substance in, on or over the Permanent Easement; 

 
c. Plant trees, shrubs or other landscaping of any type that will exceed three (3) feet in 

height at mature growth within the Permanent Easement, with the exception of hay, 
pasture or annual crops planted for agricultural purposes; 

 
d. Take action that would impair or in any way decrease or increase the ground level, or the 

lateral or subjacent support for GRANTEE’s improvements, without obtaining the prior 
specific written permission of GRANTEE; 

 
e. Store or allow the storage of any equipment, materials, or any other items on or across 

the Permanent Easement that materially interferes with GRANTEE’s use of the 
Permanent Easement or ability to access their infrastructure within the Permanent 
Easement for the purposes described in this Agreement; 

 
f. Store or dispose of any dangerous, toxic, or hazardous substance on or under the 

Easement; 
 

g. Install, alter, or replace any fence on the Easement, except at near right angles to the 
water pipeline. GRANTEE shall have the right to install gates in any fence(s) that cross 
the Easement;  

 
h. Grant subsurface or surface easements within the Permanent Easement Area to other 

utilities, cable service providers or any other entity for utilities and/or lines other than for 
the use of subsurface utilities that cross the Easement Area at near right angles with a 
minimum two (2) feet of clearance between said utilities and the outside diameter of the 
water pipeline and in conformance with applicable industry standards. Utilities include, 
but are not limited to, water (potable, stormwater, and wastewater), gas, electric, and 
telecommunications (including fiber optic lines);  

 
i. Grant subsurface or surface easements within the Easement Area to other utilities, cable 

service providers or any other entity for utilities and/or lines running parallel to 
GRANTEE’s water pipeline(s); 

 
j. Install retaining walls within or across the Easement Area; 

 
k. Install paved, concreted or gravel surfaces areas such as roads, parking areas, recreation 

areas, trails or bike paths; 
 

l. Install or allow temporary covers or enclosures not requiring the construction of 
foundations or not to be used for long term storage; 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 4  

 
4. Abandonment:  In case GRANTEE shall permanently abandon the Easement herein granted, 
and cease to use the same, all right, title and interest hereunder of GRANTEE shall revert to the 
then owner of the Property. Should GRANTEE permanently abandon the Easement, GRANTEE 
shall fill the pipeline with a suitable material and remove all surface improvements and restore the 
Property to its original condition as of the execution of this Agreement in a reasonably practicable 
time and manner. Abandonment shall be evidenced by non-use of ten (10) years or more. 
 
5. Governing Law; Enforcement:  This Agreement is subject to and is governed by the laws of 
the State of Colorado.    Enforcement of this Agreement may be by legal proceedings against any 
party violating any restriction, covenant, condition or agreement herein contained, either to restrain 
or enjoin such violation, obtain specific performance, or recover damages.     

 
6. No Rights to the Public:  This Agreement is not intended to, nor will it create any rights in the 
public to the Easement Area. 

 
7. No Waiver:  Failure of any party to exercise any of its rights hereunder shall not constitute a 
waiver or abandonment thereof. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not be deemed a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same or any other provision hereof. 
 
8. No Representations:  The Parties hereto agree that neither has made or authorized any 
agreement with respect to the subject matter of this instrument other than as expressly set forth 
herein, and no oral representation, promise or consideration different from the terms herein 
contained shall be binding on either Party, its agents, or employees.  
 
9. Authority of Signatories:  The signatories hereto warrant that they have full and lawful 
authority to make the grant, covenants and promises herein above contained as GRANTOR, and 
the covenants and promises herein above made as GRANTEE.   

 
10. Modifications to Agreement: This Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing, 
duly executed and acknowledged by the GRANTEE and the owner of the Easement Area and 
recorded at GRANTEE’s sole cost in the real property records of Larimer County, Colorado. 
 
11. Pre-Existing Encumbrances:  GRANTEE agrees that this Easement is subject to any and all 
pre-existing easements, liens or other encumbrances of record, including any use by the Larimer 
and Weld Irrigation Company (“LWIC”) of that portion of the Easement Area that is within any 
prescriptive or statutory ditch easement of LWIC.  

 
12. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, subject to the GRANTEE’s rules, regulations, standards, 
and resolutions which are not in conflict with provisions hereof, contains the entire Agreement 
relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations hereunder assumed.  In the event any term 
or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be unenforceable for any reason whatsoever by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 5  

term or provision hereof, and such provision shall be modified (to the extent possible) to match 
the parties’ intent.   

 
13. Obligations to Run with the Land:  The Easement, the rights and obligations of the parties, and 
the terms, rights, conditions, restrictions, and limitations of this Agreement, shall run with and 
burden the GRANTOR’s Property, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
GRANTOR and GRANTEE and the owners of the Easement Area, and their respective heirs, 
successors, and permitted assigns. 
 
14. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of any of the protections or monetary limitations 
that either party may enjoy under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 
 
15. GRANTEE agrees to provide to GRANTOR the KMZ files and CAD as-built files once 
installation of the water pipeline within the Easement is complete.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Deed of Permanent Easement 
effective as of the date first written above. 

 
 

[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 6  

GRANTOR:    
CITY OF THORNTON, A COLORADO HOME 
RULE MUNICIPALITY 

     
By:_____________________________ 

           Kevin S. Woods, City Manager 
           
ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________  
Kristen N. Rosenbaum, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Tami Yellico, City Attorney 
 
 
_____________________________  
City Attorney  
  
       
        
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
        ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of __________, 2023, 
by Kevin S. Woods, as City Manager of the City of Thornton, a Colorado home rule municipality. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 My commission expires:  ____________________ 
       
 
             ___________________________________ 
              Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 7  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE: 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado  
 
 
By________________________________ 
    Loren Maxey, President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 
 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this___ day of _____________, 2023, by 
Loren Maxey, as President of EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
  
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
       

________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:         Notary Public 
 
_____________________           
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Water Pipeline Easement 
 8  

 
             GRANTEE: 

   NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  
   DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the  
   State of Colorado 

ATTEST:            
             
______________________      ___________________________ 
Scott Cockroft, Secretary       Tad Stout, President 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  
   ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER  
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, 
by Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _________________  
 
             _____________________________ 
              Notary Public 

 
 
 
  











Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 1  

 
 
 PERMANENT EXCLUSIVE WATER PIPELINE EASEMENT  
 

This Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement (the “Agreement”) is made this  day 
of __________________ , 2023, by and between TRAVIS REDMON AND EMILY REDMON, 
whose address is 161 N. County Road 3, Fort Collins, CO 80524 (“GRANTOR”), and the EAST 
LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado, whose address is 232 South Link Lane, Fort Collins, Colorado 
80524 and the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the 
State of Colorado, which has an  address of 33247 Highway 85, Lucerne, Colorado, 80646 (jointly, 
“GRANTEE”). 

 
GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 dollars ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration paid by the GRANTEE to the GRANTOR, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by 
these presents does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm to the GRANTEE, its successors and 
assigns forever, a Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement  (“Permanent Easement” or 
“Easement”) on, under, and across the real property legally described and depicted on Exhibit A 
(“Easement Area”) attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, located in Larimer 
County, Colorado, for the purposes of: 
 

1. Surveying, locating, installing, constructing, using, operating, maintaining, inspecting, 
repairing, altering, removing, and replacing one (1) or more buried water pipelines, in 
whole or in part, and all necessary subsurface and surface appurtenances for the 
transportation of water and the operation and control of water facilities; 

 
2. Marking the location of the Permanent Easement and pipeline or pipelines thereunder by 

suitable markers set and maintained in the ground at locations which shall not interfere with 
such reasonable use as GRANTOR shall make of the Permanent Easement under the terms 
of this Permanent Easement; 

 
3. Cutting and clearing trees, brush, debris and other obstructions on the Permanent Easement 

that might interfere with the operation and maintenance of GRANTEE’s activities and 
facilities within the Permanent Easement; and 

 
4. Access for purposes of maintaining, inspecting, repairing, altering, removing and replacing 

one (1) or more buried water pipelines across property owned by the GRANTOR that is 
contiguous to the Permanent Easement. Access shall be limited to existing or future public 
and private roads located thereon where such roads are adequate for GRANTEE’s 
purposes. GRANTEE shall have the right to install access roads if determined necessary 
by the GRANTEE, provided that such access roads are approved in advance by 
GRANTOR, such approval not to be unreasonable withheld, conditioned or delayed. Any 
access road installed by the GRANTEE shall be fully on the Easement Area. 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 2  

 
 
The GRANTEE, at GRANTEE’s sole cost and expense, shall: 
 

5. Insofar as practicable, bury all pipe and communication and control cables within the 
Easement Area and to a sufficient depth at the time of construction so as not to interfere 
unreasonably with the uses of the Easement Area reserved to GRANTOR below; 
 

6. Insofar as practicable, restore the surface of the ground within the Easement Area to its 
condition prior to installation, construction, maintenance, alteration, or replacement of the 
pipeline or pipelines and appurtenances thereto, including, without limitation, reasonable 
clean-up and reclamation of any hazardous materials on the Easement Area, all to 
GRANTOR’s reasonable satisfaction, provided that GRANTEE, in the process of such 
restoration, shall use a seed mix to be approved in writing and in advance by GRANTOR, 
such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; 
 

7. Insofar as practicable, restore existing fences, drain tile, irrigation systems, private roads 
and other improvements to substantially the conditions existing prior to GRANTEE’s 
activities within the Easement Area and surrounding lands used by GRANTEE for access 
thereto, all to GRANTOR’s reasonable satisfaction;   
 

8. Pay the GRANTOR the actual damages to growing crops, livestock and other items caused 
by GRANTEE’s activities within the Easement Area and surrounding lands used by 
GRANTEE for access thereto; and 
 

9. Restore or replace improvements reserved to the GRANTOR herein and/or made by the 
GRANTOR within the Easement Area with written consent by the GRANTEE, should 
those improvements be disturbed by the GRANTEE or GRANTEE’S use of the Easement 
as discussed herein, all to GRANTOR’s reasonable satisfaction.  
 
The GRANTOR reserves the right to use and occupy the surface of the Easement Area 

for any purpose consistent with the rights and privileges granted herein which will not 
unreasonably interfere with or endanger any of the GRANTEE’S facilities on or under the 
Easement Area or GRANTEE’S permitted use of the Easement, provided that in no event, 
without the prior written consent of the GRANTEE which shall be solely at the discretion of the 
GRANTEE, shall GRANTOR: 

 
10. Construct or allow the construction of any buildings or other structures on or under the 

Easement Area; 
 

11. Impound water or other substance in, on or over the Easement Area; 
 

12. Plant trees, shrubs or other landscaping of any type that will exceed three (3) feet in height 
at mature growth within the Easement Area; 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 3  

 
13. Alter the ground level of the Easement Area; 

 
14. Store or allow the storage of any equipment, materials or any other items on or across the 

Easement Area that unreasonably interferes with GRANTEE’S use of the Permanent 
Easement or ability to access their infrastructure within the Easement Area for the purposes 
described in this Agreement; 

 
15. Store or dispose of any dangerous, toxic, or hazardous substance on or under the Easement 

Area; 
 

16. Install, alter or replace any fence on the Easement Area, except at near right angles to the 
water pipeline(s) and provided that GRANTEE shall have the right to request and the 
GRANTOR shall install gates in any fences that cross the Easement Area; 

 
17. Grant subsurface or surface easements within the Easement Area to other utilities, cable 

service providers or any other entity for utilities and/or lines running parallel to the 
GRANTEE’S water pipeline(s); 
 

18. Use the Easement Area for any purpose except agriculture or open areas without the prior    
written consent of GRANTEE; provided, however, the written consent of the GRANTEE will 
not be unreasonably withheld, delayed, or conditioned for the following uses: 

 
a.  Open space areas with or without landscaping but excluding fences (other than along 

property lines or as allowed elsewhere herein), retaining walls, and trees; 
 
b.  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced local roadways (not arterial roadways); 
 
c.  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced parking areas except use involving long-term 

storage; 
 
d.  Paved, gravel-surfaced, or unsurfaced recreation areas (excluding buildings) such as 

trails and bike paths;  
 
e.  Temporary covers or enclosures not requiring the construction of a foundation and not 

to be used for long-term storage; 
 
f. Granting subsurface or surface easements within the Easement Area to other utilities, 

cable service providers or any other entity for utilities crossing at near right angles to 
such water pipeline(s), all with minimum two (2) feet of clearance between the 
utility/cable service and the water pipeline(s) and further subject to industry standards 
for crossings that may be applicable. 

 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 4  

No Termination: The Easement shall not be terminated or extinguished by nonuse or 
abandonment.   

 
Governing Law; Enforcement:  This Agreement is subject to and is governed by the laws 

of the State of Colorado.    Enforcement of this Agreement may be by legal proceedings against 
any party violating any restriction, covenant, condition or agreement herein contained, either to 
restrain or enjoin such violation, obtain specific performance, or recover damages.     

 
No Rights to the Public:  This Agreement is not intended to, nor will it create any rights in 

the public to the Easement Area. 
 

No Waiver:  Failure of any party to exercise any of its rights hereunder shall not constitute 
a waiver or abandonment thereof. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not be deemed a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same or any other provision hereof. 

 
Modifications to Agreement: This Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing, 

duly executed and acknowledged by the GRANTEE and the owner of the Easement Area, and 
recorded in the real property records of Larimer County, Colorado. 

 
Entire Agreement: This Agreement, subject to the GRANTEE’S rules, regulations, 

standards and resolutions which are not in conflict with provisions hereof, contains the entire 
Agreement relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations hereunder assumed.  In the 
event any term or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be unenforceable for any reason 
whatsoever by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other term or provision hereof, and such provision shall be modified (to the 
extent possible) to match the parties’ intent.   

 
Obligations to Run with the Land:  The Easement, the rights and obligations of the parties, 

and the terms, rights, conditions, restrictions and limitations of this Agreement, shall run with and 
burden the GRANTOR’S Property, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
GRANTOR and GRANTEE and the owners of the Easement Area, and their respective heirs, 
successors, and permitted assigns. 

 
 
 

 
[SEPARATE SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 5  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTOR:          GRANTOR:        
 

       
  _____________________      _____________________ 

Travis Redmon         Emily Redmon 
        
      
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 
2023, by Travis Redmon and Emily Redmon as Grantors. 
 
 
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
       

________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:        Notary Public 
 
_____________________           
 
  



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 6  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE: 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and a 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado  
 
 
By________________________________ 
    Loren Maxey, President 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER ) 
 
  The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this___ day of _____________, 2023, by 
Loren Maxey, as President of EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
  
Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
       

________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:    Notary Public 
 
_____________________           
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 7  

 
             GRANTEE: 

   NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER  
   DISTRICT, a Political Subdivision of the  
   State of Colorado 

ATTEST:            
          
______________________      ___________________________ 
Scott Cockroft, Secretary       Tad Stout, President 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF LARIMER  
 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ___________, 2023, by 
Tad Stout, as President of the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Colorado. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: _________________  
 
                          
              _____________________________ 
              Notary Public 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 8  

CONSENT AND APPROVAL BY LIENHOLDER 
 
 The undersigned, being the owner of a Deed of Trust dated October 29, 2021 and recorded 
November 12, 2021 at Reception No. 20210104128, encumbering the above-described property, 
hereby approves, ratifies, confirms, consents and subordinates its lien to the foregoing Permanent 
Exclusive Water Easement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of ________________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

U.S. Bank National Association 
9380 Excelsior Blvd, 3rd Floor  
Hopkins, MN  55343 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________________ 

  
 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
         ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2023, by ___________________________ as _____________________ 
of U.S. Bank National Association.  
. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires:  ____________________ 
 
 
             _______________________________ 
             Notary Public 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 9  

CONSENT AND APPROVAL BY LIENHOLDER 
 
 The undersigned, being the owner of a Deed of Trust dated December 2, 2022 and recorded 
December 8, 2022 at Reception No. 20220071463, encumbering the above-described property, 
hereby approves, ratifies, confirms, consents and subordinates its lien to the foregoing Permanent 
Exclusive Water Easement. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of ________________, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meridian Trust FCU 
P.O. Box 548  
Cheyenne, WY  82003 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
Title: __________________________________ 

  
 
STATE OF _________________ ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
___________________, 2023, by ___________________________ as _____________________ 
of Meridian Trust FCU.  
. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires:  ____________________ 
 
 
             _______________________________ 
             Notary Public 

 
  



Permanent Exclusive Water Pipeline Easement 
 10  

EXHIBIT ‘A’ TO PERMANENT EXCLUSIVE WATER PIPELINE EASEMENT 
 

Legal Description and Depiction of Permanent Easement 
 
 

 







 
RMR-LI-2023-12 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 

Poudre-Timnath 115-kV Transmission Line 
Linden-Richards Lake 115-kV Transmission Line 
NESE Section 5, Township 7 North, Range 68 West 
6th Principal Meridian, Larimer County, Colorado 

Vicinity of Structure 23/1 – 23/2 
Approx. Station No. 127639+80 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT is made this _______ day of _________________________, 2023, between 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT AND NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
(LICENSEE’S), whether one or more, and the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Department of Energy, 
Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), represented by the officer executing this agreement, pursuant 
to the Reclamation Act, Act of June 17, 1902, 32 Stat. 388, and acts amendatory thereof and supplementary 
thereto, and the Department of Energy Organization Act, Act of August 4, 1977, 91 Stat. 565. 

WITNESSETH: 

WAPA concurs that the buried 42” welded steel potable waterline (FACILITY), proposed TOGETHER 
WITH THE INSTALLATION OF ABOVE GROUND MARKERS by the LICENSEE will not interfere with 
the operation and maintenance of the Poudre-Timnath and Linden-Richards Lake 115-kV Transmission Line, 
if constructed in the manner and at the locations shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

In consideration of WAPA’S concurrence, the LICENSEE agrees to the following: 

(a) This license does not grant any right, privilege, or interest in the land.  The LICENSEE is
responsible for obtaining any necessary land rights from the underlying landowner.

(b) This license is only valid provided the FACILITY is constructed, operated, and maintained in
conformance with the attached drawings and/or exhibits.  Any relocations, changes, or upgrades require
additional concurrence by WAPA.  LICENSEE agrees to alter or relocate its FACILITY, at no cost to
WAPA, to accommodate future modifications of WAPA’S facilities, including but not limited to,
upgrades of the transmission line.

(c) Please note that the easement width is 75 feet (37.5 feet each side of the centerline).  Reconstruction,
operation, and maintenance of the transmission line requires that WAPA use heavy equipment within
the easement area, therefore, WAPA will not be held liable for damages to the FACILITY should they
occur.  In addition, the pipeline should be installed in such a manner as to withstand heavy equipment in
the easement area.

(d) LICENSEE shall install above ground markers indicating the location of the buried FACILITY and
maintain such above ground markers for the life of the FACILITY.

(e) Within WAPA’s Right of Way, WAPA shall have access over this facility with vehicles that
have a 32kip axle load.



IF HEAVY EQUIPMENT WILL BE OPERATING UNDER THE LINE. 
Post signs, “Caution – Overhead High Voltage Transmission Lines”.  

 
(f) LICENSEE shall notify WAPA at least 15 business days prior to commencing installation of 
the FACILITY to permit inspection by WAPA.  Contact Ron Miller in WAPA’S Cheyenne Office, 
(307) 286-9047. 

 
(g) To abide by and comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and building and safety 
codes. 

 
(h) Induced voltages and currents may occur on the FACILITY constructed or placed under or near 
high voltage transmission lines.  The LICENSEE shall be responsible for the protection of personnel 
and equipment in their design, construction, operation, and maintenance of the FACILITY described in 
this License Agreement. 

 
(i) It is specifically understood and agreed that WAPA shall have no liability and WAPA assumes no 
responsibility for any liability, loss and/or damage resulting from injury or death of persons 
whomsoever, or damage to, loss, or destruction of property whatsoever, when such liability, injury, 
death, loss, or damage results from or in connection with the use of WAPA’S easement area by 
LICENSEE. 

 
(j) This agreement shall be binding on the successors or assigns of the LICENSEE and WAPA. 

 
LICENSEE   THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
East Larimer County Water District  Western Area Power Administration 
232 South Link Lane                                                  (800) 472-2306 
Fort Collins, CO  80524 
970-493-2044 
 
_____________________________________  ________________________________________ 
Mike Scheid  Kevin Ripplinger 
General Manager  Cheyenne Maintenance Manager 
    Rocky Mountain Region 
 
LICENSEE 
North Weld County Water District 
32825 CR 39 
Lucerne, CO  80646 
970-356-3020 
 
_____________________________________ 
Tad Stout 
President 
 



RIGHT-OF-WAY USE APPLICATION 
  Poudre-Timnath 115-kV (ROW width 75’) 

Date: Transmission Line:  Linden-Richards Lake  115-kV (ROW width 75’) 

Description of Proposal (Narrative): 

Location: Section   5  ,  Township   7N ,   Range   68W ,  SIX (Meridian) 

County: Larimer State:   Colorado 

Complete if applicable: Subdivision  ,  Lot , 
Block , City 

PROFILE: Show the location, height (feet), and distance (feet) from the nearest transmission line structure. 

 

PLAN: Show the location and dimensions (in feet) of the proposed facility in relation to the center 
conductor of the transmission line. 

EDGE OF ROW --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- EDGE OF 
ROW 
Transmission Line Transmission Line 
Centerline Centerline 
WAPA Structure WAPA Structure 
No.  -----> < ------ No. 
EDGE OF ROW --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- EDGE OF 
ROW 

Show NORTH by arrow at (+) in block at left 
and show approximate location in Section at right. 

Attach other drawings and information as appropriate. 

NOTE: Induced voltages and currents may occur on facilities constructed or placed under or near high voltage 
transmission lines, therefore, the Licensee shall be responsible for the protection of personnel and equipment in 
their design, construction, operation and maintenance of the facilities described in this application. 

Facility Owner/Company Name 
Consultant                                                

     Printed Associate Name   
Name_____________________________  _______________________________________ 

 Title 
  Telephone ( )           

   Address 
     ___________________________________________ 
    City, State, Zip 

                             Telephone ( )                       

WAPA Structure 
No._______    ------- > 

WAPA Structure 
< -------- No.    

Ground Surface Ground Surface 

North 

-----+----- 

NW1/4 NE1/4 

SW1/4 SE1/4 

Western Area Power Administration 
Rocky Mountain Region 

ATTN: Tracy Rogers, A9401 
P.O. Box 3700 Loveland, CO 

80539-3003 
(970) 237-9873

EXHIBIT A 
Page   1 of 

NOTE: A minimum overhead 
clearance of at least  15 
feet from the 
conductors must be 
maintained at all times. 

 

Facility Owner/Company Name
                                                        
Printed Associate Name
________________________________

 Title 

  Address 
____________________________________

  City, State, Zip 

Telephone ( ) 

EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Facility Owner/Company Name
                                                        
Printed Associate Name
________________________________

 Title 

  Address 
____________________________________

  City, State, Zip 

Telephone ( ) 

23-1 23-2
290 FT 440 FT

11FT BELOW G.S.

42" welded steel potable waterline crossing under WAPA's
transmission line and 75-ft easement.

23-1 23-2

290 FT 440 FT

N

DITESCO, LLC

ANDREW WEST

719 330 - 3057

Randy Siddens

District Engineer

P.O. Box 2044

Fort Collins, CO 80522

970-493-2044

8

awest
Text Box
07/20/2023



EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of

Western Area Power Administration 
Rocky Mountain Region 

ATTN: Tracy Rogers, A9401 
P.O. Box 3700 Loveland, CO 

80539-3003 
(970) 237-9873

NOTE: A minimum overhead 
clearance of at least JjS 
feet from the 
conductors must be 
maintained at all times.

RIGHT-OF-WAY USE APPLICATION
Poudre-Timnath 115-kV (ROW width 75’) 

Transmission Line: Linden-Richards Lake 115-kV (ROW width 75’)Date:

Description of Proposal (Narrative): 42" welded steel potable waterline crossing under WAPA's 
transmission line and 75-ft easement. An

 SIX (Meridian)Location: Section 5 , Township 7N 

County: Larimer State: Colorado

., Range 68W

., LotComplete if applicable: Subdivision,
Block ., city

PROFILE: Show the location, height (feet), and distance (feet) from the nearest transmission line structure.

WAPA Structure 
— No.

WAPA Structure 
No. 23-1 -- <>

◄----- 290 FT--------►r*-----440 FT
Ground SurfaceGround Surface 11 FT BELOW G.S.

3=
PLAN: Show the location and dimensions (in feet) of the proposed facility in relation to the center 

conductor of the transmission line.
i

EDGE OFEDGE OF ROW- 
ROW
Transmission Line 
Centerline

j.

1 Transmission Line 
_______ Centerlir ~

i

* 440 FT290 FT
WAPA Structure 
— No. 23-2 
-— EDGE OF

WAPA Structure 
No. 23-1 —
EDGE OF ROW 
ROW

<> Proposed manhole
•1-

NW1/4 NE1/4

Show NORTH by arrow at (+) in block at left 
and show approximate location in Section at right.

North
▲

N Attach other drawings and information as appropriate. SW1/4 SE1/4

NOTE: Induced voltages and currents may occur on facilities constructed or placed under or near high voltage 
transmission lines, therefore, the Licensee shall be responsible for the protection of personnel and equipment in 
their design, construction, operation and maintenance of the facilities described in this application.

Facility Owner/Company Name 
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Facility Owner/Company Name 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICTDITESCO, LLCConsultant

Printed Associate NamePrinted Associate Name
ANDREW WEST XLName

Title JjjJ

Telephone (719 ) 330 - 3057
( Address

 ---sagas c£34Address

City, State, Zip
Lucerne., Co QoUHte

Telephone

City, State, Zip

Telephone (

  2 8



rV

*

I

• >

*
,y 'v

-
%

ms?«r..-
' > . r*

3. / T 7N R.G81
23j2-—P0'-T;NHiU5:k 3i1

•O
I lr lrK-1.15*

• \<r

'

t- •

*. -

- ■

>1

$r-

Page 3 of 8



NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NEWT PIPELINE PROJECT, PHASE 3

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2 

42" WATER TRANSMISSION LINE

OWNER(S):
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

38825 COUNTY ROAD 39 

LUCERNE, COLORADO 80646 

(970) 356-3020

(

LICHARDS LAKE RD
L

J

d
DC

CITY OF 
z FORT 
o COLLINS^-

CO Jo LARIMER I* 
COUNTY \

iri
% inWYOMING NEBRASKA

\CD EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

232 SOUTH LINK LANE 

FORT COLLINS, COLORADO 80524 

(970) 493-2044

GREY
(j -^gERVOIRS

i
)/

SUMMIT VIEW PUMP STATION wi y.<MFORT COLINS 1
T NEWT 3.GREELEY

FHORNTON

1PROJECT i

MOUNTAIN VISTA DRUTAH SITE i

*A|BESHEARS
LAKE

LO vt. CONTRACTOR:cl
o ELCO

METERING
VAULT

DENVER q $ GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 

7911 SHAFFER PARKWAY 

LITTLETON, COLORADO 80127 

(303) 791-3600

70. M70
S*.

)
Q

Wtcr
\\

<E VINE DR

“X

\STATE OF 

COLORADO
LD 7 r/—_S

CO
E VINE DR rKANSAS 7 CLTp 'LU CL

%
\ Ov.CO uco/r. c oI £L

REDMAN DRi iC l_ 6 u
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER:,25,

% RIDGEVIEW LN, CORDHAVEN DR
7 DITESCO PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

2133 SOUTH TIMBERLINE ROAD, UNIT 110 

FORT COLLINS, COLORADO 80525

i
l

CM
\ BAKEk J %>OKLAHOMA

).
ARIZONAN LAKEv0 N NEW MEXICOc X t v_.-; /r vr i ZHIGHWAY 14 tra

E 1 COUNTY LINE ROAD METERING VAULTSDC LOCATION MAPLU

ENGINEER:CD Xl7 4*\N

iM
Z)

SCALE: NTS
O) PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS 

300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320 

HIGHLANDS RANCH, COLORADO 80129

■o -\
V^r

0
o N IMNATHo

o h___o Lo
Ico

VICINITY MAPCD

O

SCALE: NTSIs-

CD
CO
LU
LU
X
CO
CM
O
CO

<:
LU

I
CD
CO
LU
O

o
CO
6<
O
o
o
05
CO

CD

O

h- PROJECT: 171016.13PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS
300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320 
HIGHLANDS RANCH, CO 80129 
(303) 997-5035 
www.providenceic.com

0X°X$-
8/* GtZ8/23%$o 

:'°_40797 i"i

NEWT PIPELINE 

PROJECT PHASE 3 

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2

*L h-CD

Q- 88 f
LO □-
m 8

I. MARTINEZDRAWN BY:FINAL FOR 

CONSTRUCTION
JUNE 28, 2023

*
§!(tL DESIGNER: W. DAUGHTRY

APPROVED BY: D. RICECOVER SHEETCM "O 
„ 0

8 |
i??

T> N

SHEET: 1 OF 109
%A ESTABLISHED 

. 1962 . Or s
......\Jonal

y

<Tff}^TEB 0 G-001< § 
Q Q

DRAWING:REVISION DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE / REVISION REVISED BY

Page 4 of 8



r
<</0 7231I

Q

i #i G
I

18
hPP-122 PP-123PP-121 PpP-120 "'124/ -i xZZ(J17U^

20

\
s__
\
/ H
A

I RIDGEVIEW LANE (GRAVEL) COUNTY LINE ROAD 
METERING VAULTS

Q
LU
>
<
CL

CO

DC
ONPLAN

SCALE: 1"=800'

0 800' 1600'

I

l'

CR 48 / EAST VINE DRIVE (PAVED)

MOUNTAIN VISTA DRIVE (PAVED)
7/ 1

 I% cW>B
<

\
*
LU
LU3

\I 3

3 CLI I
OD<

\ 0CDC LU
-± Q S
8 J ?
3 LU

\EXISTING 
SUMMIT VIEW 

PUMP STATION

ICD H 1443-
\ XI!CO oV 6478PP-107I Pppp-1061 CD .

'J08 %X s \ ^nA X \cfc a
PP-104

X7228 pp.AOl PP-102 ✓ oD. 53485 c
G-X)a u.£o

o o

I°*f> ©W\\3 L

IAo.SP600 Vojr 56500I
XWiI mp ii ALU /O% -\ I1449 Vr* f °o> 0x>

< /
CL /O

O' ln
Q o CMo£ I3Xoc LU *1 'o -

\LU I -o
< E

dd 001- Q-
T7

£ VCD$oc o
o

DC dd00XLU ■D

10LUoLCO o

IT) %T3 ^ii0%0FP100 FPg 11.z.VINE DRIVE (PAVED) o% oOv/<\ "0

100 FP

-oX -

56502X -o
i

-o*.

(pI

EXISTING 36" NWCWD 
Dl WATERLINE

£ \ o p to
Tl.-------

I
00i

LCR 5 METERING VAULT
ffft xefc/A1 001

It M-
,7 59694 "AIi a Is CL 12Ti-a

AUBURN ESTATES
%100 FP

PP-116 PP-117 PP-118-------- PP-119
\

%r?'°0pp MS'

7OX Xmd
■:

59692
IIII

III x

5

PROJECT CONTROL INFORMATION
LEGEND:

PROJECT IS IN MODIFIED COLORADO 
NORTH ZONE 0501 SPCS NAD 82 (2011) 
COORDINATES. TO REDUCE TO STATE 
PLANE, SCALE X,Y ONLY WITH COMBINED 
SCALE FACTOR 0.99973332 (INVERSE IS 
1.00026675) ABOUT BASEPOINT 0,0.

□100 FP |

100 FP I

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

PROPERTY LINE

PIPELINE

0 PROPERTY NUMBER

SITE ACCESS LOCATION NUMBER

A SURVEY CONTROL POINT

15 16

13 14

98

6

3
2

19

0

CONTROL POINTS TABLE
ELEVATION

PNT# POINT ID NORTHING EASTING (FT)
600 CP-MOUND 1463033.52 3136249.09 4991.00

CITY OF FT COLLINS BENCHMARK "39-011443 1463748.13 3139402.45 4984.80

1449 CITY OF FT COLLINS BENCHMARK "92-3' 1462898.21 3131569.26 4988.87

CP-FARM6478 1463691.25 3139827.58 4981.08

7228 CP-H20 1462900.36 3131328.86 4983.12

7231 CP-ROOSTER 1459209.68 3155188.91 5051.24

CP-OUTFALL 1463761.65 3137570.35 4983.5453485

56500 CP-RB1 1462217.10 3142011.65 4978.59

56502 CP-CROP 1460533.61 3143531.60 4977.42

59692 CP-OWL 1457962.79 3144678,55 4996.13

59694 CP-HAWK 1458255.39 3149915.30 5021.19

ID PROPERTY OWNER PARCEL NO.NUMBER
1 K & M COMPANY 8705300015
2 K & M COMPANY 8705000001

3 ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION 8704000002

4 ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION 8704000001
FREEDOM STORAGE, LLC5 8703000005

6 FAUX CO LLC 8703000019
HOUSTON TRANSPORTATION LLC 87030060017

WESTERN HERITAGE PROPERTY 87030000148

CITY OF THORNTON 87034009279

10 MICHAEL R CLARK 8703000011
11 JOYCE A. SCHNEIDER 8703409001
12 CITIZEN PRINTING CO. 8710000001

13 ROBIN KALTENBERGER 8711200003
JACOBS LAND INVESTMENT, LLC14 8711200004

15 ENDOR LLC 8711400001

16 TRAVIS & EMILY REDMOND 8711000002
17 SUE ANN WAAG 8712205701

18 SUE ANN WAAG 8712205703
DYECREST DAIRY, LLC19 8712005001

DYECREST DAIRY, LLC20 8712000001

CONSTRUCTION ACCESS LOCATIONS

ACCESS ID ROAD DESCRIPTION JURISDICTION

A TIMBERLINE ROAD DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW FORT COLLINS

ACCESS THROUGH ACCESS 
AGREEMENT

B MOUNTAIN VISTA DRIVE FORT COLLINS

ACCESS THROUGH ACCESS 
AGREEMENTC MOUNTAIN VISTA DRIVE FORT COLLINS

ACCESS THROUGH ACCESS 
AGREEMENT

I-25 FRONTAGE ROAD (EAST) CDOTD

E EAST VINE DRIVE DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

F LARIMER COUNTY ROAD NO. 5 DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

G LARIMER COUNTY ROAD NO. 3 DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROW LARIMER CO.

COUNTY LINE ROAD DIRECT ACCESS OFF ROWH LARIMER CO.

PROJECT: 171016.13PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS
300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320 
HIGHLANDS RANCH, CO 80129 
(303) 997-5035 
www.providenceic.com

Sl2Ql23%X3
IS—4Q797

NEWT PIPELINE 

PROJECT PHASE 3 

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2

' a vu
I. MARTINEZDRAWN BY:FINAL FOR 

CONSTRUCTION
JUNE 28, 2023

* SHEET INDEX, PROPERTY 

OWNERS, ACCESS LOCATIONS, 

AND SURVEY CONTROLltl_fro> DESIGNER: W. DAUGHTRY

x7
APPROVED BY: D. RICE

SHEET: 5 OF 109
%A ESTABLISHED

^ 1962 . Or
y

G-101DRAWING:REVISION DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE / REVISION REVISED BY

N
CD
C

-ecu
E

LU
CD
3

CD
$

TD

O

O
I

CO

CD

O

h-

O
CD
LU
LU
I
CD
CM
O
CO

<:
LU

'I

0
CD
LU
O

o
o
O
CO

a<o
o
o
05
CO

CD

O

h*.

CD
£ o
Q- 0

co ■ OO
ID □-

CM CMO
CM ~0

_ CD
CO CDCM

§ss
■o N

CD
< §

W >

LC
R

 5
(G

R
AV

EL
)

LC
R

 1
/W

C
R

 1
3 

(G
R

AV
EL

)

Page 5 of 8



42" WSP (t=0.219B); SWLJ, AWWA C207 CL E FLG 1
€-50175’ WAPA ELECTRIC EASEMENT

20' COFC WA TERLINE 
EASEMENT

EL: 5006

5'± 14.5±

-0.67%

\ 42" NEWT 3 PIPELINE

APPROXIMATE FUTURE FINISHED GRADE @ <L
1 UTILITY SUPPORT

0-502

EXISTING GROUND

/-INTERMEDIATE/ TEMPORARY 

/ GRADE @ (NOTE 3)rs EXISTING GROUND @ £
LO

X

-0.00%17.67%

2'
i

7'

/

Vi'ijV
\ \ \STA 41+00^ 

DEFL ANGLE=90.42°-o 
N=1,463,322.74'/ 
E=3,134,114.39/

/ \03 \N./ CD\ \\05

/
05/ \ 05\

\ \ \05 \05» O)\/ "A \\
\ 1

ANHEUSER-BUSCH FOUNDATION 
PARCEL NO. 8704000002

$ y \ \ \ ACCESS ROAD LINE & CURVE TABLE<rto \/ 05a
/ \\iNo |\\0) 05\/05V <r

\/
\

\05 / \\ \k LINE #/CURVE # RADIUS LENGTH BEARING/DELTA/ DELTA1 A I \ \ 05 \
05( /\ \%

\
L10 [ \V « \/ //> FUTURE DETENTION POND GRADING

\
\ 05\ \/a o/ / 045°56'00C10 38.00' 30.46' 045°56'00’.

\\( or J §QT5- \ \ I'-r'-i \'J w,W op
\ §Oc- \ o\ /\ \\l\\ oA

EXISTING POWERPOLE
-4996 C7V\\ \ '-0c~/ o/ \L //

O' \ 027°55'24 62.00' 30.22' 027°55'24C11\ \
/ oo/

/
o cj\•m o/ \CD // o

////
O.\ LOc-f i kill o. cP(y <P I

t" 
i

K & M COMPANY 
PARCEL NO. 8705000001

X \//, \ •A \ \L15 —o / \\-L11 027°55'24 50.00' 24.37' 027°55'24C12AoiN \/L<7N20' 42" NEWT 3 PIPELINETOc^i\A 12' \f- •-•*] \x \
\ \ C13 045°56'00 50.00' 40.08' 045°56'00’COFC

WATERLINE 
WA^y//// EASEMENT

/ \A\ \cy §7+00C5/ \as T0C.-60' TCE

TyV
\/o/ — 4997 <o, \ L10 12.00’ N89°55’00"E\75' /a \Lo/ /y X° / -j / i I-7 \\r~ >C10y A;WAPA 

ELECTRIC 
n7 - EASEMENT

// \ \ S00°05'00"EL11 47.52'
/■ l\L12/ w . \\I < ACCESS ROAD (NOTE 2) 7: \15' ^\/ 4Oz/ilg- 

^/Cq

\/ L12 19.28' S46°01'00"E• V' l. -7V/o C13 o5-.\\ \ \ o4 oo 44\ BH-5
N: 1,463,311.88 _
E: 3,134,179.97 
ELEV = 5009.90

^CITY'DF FORT COLLINS ^ 
" (REC. NO. 20080007813) 

LARIMER COUNTY 
PARCEL NO. 8704300906

\ \o 04R.e L13 12.00' S71°54'24"W4^L14 (oA+ C11At O\ O4 o r
'fN* .

N00 V 19.28' N46°01'00"Wr_x ci2— L14/ A-0//^t\ 46-40' PEa CO\ VA- o L13£-0 \ 47CO / L15 47.52' N00°05'00"W;25'x4-Q//V>x00^ I\V <>O/p-S

■oh.}

«C----- -- \4/ \X 60' TCE75' 182'<r/X -j

40' PE
\

X35+00 a:4\ ■t©i \ \^ /50' oiffI \\ \\ \ -----~l A-l0/4S «C- NOTES:N \ \\A 5T\\ A\\ 
V\\x \ 

\ \ Ax.

A*. 36+oq L0{
y

X 4
/\A /QP~s y24st l\.4 / /\ V 1. SEE SPEC SECTION 01 41 10 AND 32 90 10 FOR 

PROPERTY SPECIFIC NOTES AND RESTORATION 
REQUIREMENTS.

\ AA 2g;STA 39+80
VAN0DE AND

X'IR-free TEST 
X STATION^W/ GCM 

V-~ ST/C39+80 ^ 3
T^CARV MH F 
Z TN=1,463,203.01- 
-r E=3,134,113.71;

\ A N\OcA o
737+00 oxs A \V+ ,CP-104■A05 1— AN03.«N- \OC- L. 'T N60’ PE \38+00\

//XX / / X\x
\ATOq. 4' ^4-V:a \ 2. ACCESS ROAD TO BE RECONSTRUCTED AROUND 

GRADING AS SHOWN.
LOc- r--. /.36' C-501N

AMI 
' \ \ \ l j

1-oc- 60' TCE \\\\\/LOc- C-506, /
LOc- PRIOR TO INSTALLING PIPE, CONTRACTOR TO 

REGRADE GROUND SURFACE TO 
INTERMEDIATE/TEMPORARY GRADE. FUTURE 
FINISHED GRADE TO BE PERFORMED BY OTHERS. 
PROPERTY OWNER WILL ALLOW EXCAVATED 
MATERIAL TO BE PLACED IN SOUTHWEST CORNER 
OF PROPERTY NORTH OF CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.

3.\ N.H;
LOc-

LOc- 4PH-8 - N
OpcLOc-

-------1
c-K & M COMPANY 

PARCEL NO. 8705000001
STA 38+62 

DEFL ANGLE=89.59° 
N=1,463,084.59 
E=3,134,113.04

1
TO c-

0 50’ 100'

PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 50'

5040 5040

5035 5035

5030 5030

5025 5025

5020 5020

5015 5015

5010 5010

5005 5005

5000 5000

4995 4995

4990 4990

4985 4985

4980 4980

4975 4975

4970 4970

4965 4965

4960 4960
34+00 35+00 36+00 37+00 38+00 39+00 40+00 41+00 42+00 43+00 44+00 45+00 46+00

PROFILE
SCALE: 1"=50' H; 1"=10'V

CAUTION
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC POWER LINES EXISTING 

WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION CORRIDOR.

PROJECT: 171016.13PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS
300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320 
HIGHLANDS RANCH, CO 80129 
(303) 997-5035 
www.providenceic.com

YGr.'X r ••.Hfc'vv

6/28/23%W 
ii-43797 &

NEWT PIPELINE 

PROJECT PHASE 3 

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2

s®5Hm I. MARTINEZDRAWN BY:FINAL FOR 

CONSTRUCTION
JUNE 28, 2023

NCV

frOT? DESIGNER: W. DAUGHTRYPLAN AND PROFILE STA 34+00 

TO STA 46+00
APPROVED BY: D. RICEm m SHEET: 11 OF 109

%A ESTABLISHED 
. 1962 . Or

.....&
Xy

%D1S^^TER 0 PP-103DRAWING:REVISION DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE / REVISION REVISED BY

PV
I S

TA
 3

9+
87

TO
P 

EL
=4

99
4.

53
•+

 
A

=0
.3

9°

ST
A

 3
9+

80
 

|
C

AR
V 

M
H

 
^

TO
P 

EL
=4

99
4.

53

C
D

OIDO

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
O

A
D

 ~
PV

I S
TA

 3
9+

67
1

TO
P 

EL
=4

99
4.

53
A

=1
0.

02
°

-

O
H

U

7-
Q

H
U

4

cJ.

G
R

A
V

E
L

S
TA

 3
9+

37

•i ».■Au

A
=9

.9
3°

TO
P 

EL
=4

98
8.

43
PV

I S
TA

 3
9+

32

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E-
46

+0
0

N
3

,S
TA

 4
5+

00
C

U
TO

FF
 W

AL
L

o
C

O

cnO

TO
P

 E
L=

49
92

.9
'±

30
" C

O
FC

 W
A

TE
R

S
TA

 3
9+

11
±

o

o

-h
Jo

LO00

II

C
U

TO
FF

 W
AL

L
ST

A 
35

+5
0

O

II

oZ8'0=V

TO
P 

EL
=4

98
7.

58
PV

I S
TA

 3
4+

25

C
OC
D

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
- 3

4+
00

D
AT

E:
 Ju

n2
8,

 2
02

3 
5:

04
pm

D
W

G
: Z

:\S
ha

re
d\

20
0 

Pr
oi

ec
ts

\1
71

01
6.

13
\9

00
C

AD
\3

0%
D

ES
IG

N
 N

EW
T 

3\
02

-S
H

EE
TS

\C
\7

17
01

6.
13

 P
P 

10
1-

10
6.

dw
g 

U
SE

R
: im

ar
tin

ez

Page 6 of 8



2'-6 r-6"2-6 r-6
1 9'-0

A \ SECTION
SCALE: NTS

B

9
11 14

17
14

2INSTALL SAND 
BAGS AS REQ'D

1

4

8
V7
XJK /\

/ °s

7 10 5 7 6

914

i

COMBINATION AIR VALVE WITH MANWAY1
SCALE: NTS

NOTES:

SEE SPECIFICATION SECTION 03 42 10 FOR MANHOLE DESIGN.1.

2. CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM "Y" DIMENSION WITH GRADE PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

3. AIR VALVE SHALL BE DUAL BODY COMBINATION AIR VALVE W/ FLG'D OUTLET IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH SPEC SECTION 33 12 16. SEE TABLE THIS SHEET FOR VALVE/ORIFICE SIZE AND PRESSURE 
RATING.

14 14
7

4. OUTLET PIPE AND GATE VALVE SHALL BE THE SAME DIAMETER AS THE AIR VALVE SIZE.NOTE 10
11CD 8 5. REFER TO DRAWINGS FOR FLANGE CLASS.EX GRADE

FpuE
COAT ALL BOLTS WITH PETROLATUM BASED TAPE OR DENSO TAPE.6.

PAINT ALL FERROUS METAL COMPONENTS INSIDE THE VAULT IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SPECIFICATION SECTION 09 90 00, SYSTEM NO. 10.

7.17 17

8. LOCATE VENT PIPES AND TEST STATIONS INSIDE BOLLARDS.4 2BACKFILL PER SPEC 
SECTION 31 23 43 j==l 9. NOT USED.

35
10. BACKFILL AROUND TOP OF MANHOLE AND FEATHER INTO ONSITE EXISTING GRADE.

69
18

11. PROVIDE WATER-TIGHT JOINTS BETWEEN ALL MANHOLE SECTIONS AND THE BASE SLAB.12 -#4@1'-6" (TYP) 

3-#6 (TYP)
o

12. FORGED LIFTING EYE SHALL BE CAST INTO THE ROOF SLAB AND HAVE A MINIMUM
UNFACTORED LOAD CAPACITY OF 1,500 LBS. PROVIDE THE MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDED 
EMBEDMENT DEPTH.

o
9

r-o15 15
13. COAT INTERIOR OF MANHOLE LID AND MANHOLE WALLS WITH A TWO-COMPONENT,

CLOSED-CELL POLYURETHANE SPRAY FOAM INSULATION. THICKNESS AS REQUIRED TO 
REACH AN R VALUE OF 20. BASF SPRAYTITE, NATURAL POLYMERS NATURAL-THERM, OR 
APPROVED EQUAL. ENSURE AIR FLOW FROM VENT PIPE IS NOT IMPEDED BY FOAM.

FILL BOTTOM OF 
VAULT UP TO TOP OF 
PIPE WITH 3/4" 
GRAVEL

1

SECTIONB
SCALE: NTS CARV EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS LIST

DETAIL / NOTE / SPEC 
REFERENCEID DESCRIPTION

42" WSP1 33 11 11
DUAL BODY COMBINATION AIR VALVE ASSEMBLY 33 12 16; SEE TABLE THIS SHEET 

FOR SIZE2

4" FL GATE VALVE W/ HANDWHEEL3 33 12 16
MANHOLE STEPS W/ PULL UP SAFETY POST 
(BILCO LU-3 OR EQUAL)4 1/C-505

24" OUTLET WITH BLIND FLANGE WITH LIFTING 
LUGS

33 11 11, 3/C-5045

CARV MANHOLE SCHEDULE 8 FT CONCRETE MANHOLE6 03 42 10
AIR ESTIMATED 

WORKING 
PRESSURE 
(PUMPED 50 

MGD)

VENT 6/C-509VACUUM
VALVE

7CARV
MINIMUM

PRESSURE
RATING

42 RELEASE
ORIFICEMAINLINE GENERAL

LOCATION
NO. CARV

CONNECTION
LOCATION OF 
CARVs IN MH

DIMENSION LOCATION OF 
MANWAY IN MH

MODULAR MECHANICAL SEAL PIPE PENETRATION 33 11 04, 2/C-5098
SIZEPIPE VALVES SIZE 12"W X 9'L X 12"H CONCRETE BEAM9 03 40 00(IN)STATION (IN) 2" IP THREADED OUTLET WITH BALL VALVE10 33 12 16

TIMBERLINE
EAST

DOWNSTREAM
/EAST

UPSTREAM / 
WEST 30" MANHOLE RING AND COVER W/ INNER FROST 

PROOF LID
10+58

7'0’ 1/4 191 250 11 03 42 102 4 FLX FL
WAPA

POWERLINE
CROSSING

4" FLANGED OUTLET 3/C-504, NOTES 4 & 512UPSTREAM / 
SOUTH

DOWNSTREAM 
/ NORTH

39+80 7'0
NOT USED131/42 4 176 250 FL X FL

WAPA
POWERLINE
CROSSING

BOLLARD14 5/C-509
110+13 UPSTREAM / 

NORTH
DOWNSTREAM 

/SOUTH
CRUSHED ROCK BASE15 31 23 231/4 2507'4 2 4 171 FLX FL

16 FORGED LIFTING EYE NOTE 12BOXELDER
CREEK

CROSSING
130+00 DOWNSTREAM

/EAST
UPSTREAM / 

WEST
17 SPRAY FOAM INSULATION NOTE 13

6'11 1/4 169 2502 4 FLX FL 3/C-504, NOTES 4 & 518 24" FLANGED OUTLET
CITY OF 

THORNTON 
PROP

145+53 DOWNSTREAM
/EAST

UPSTREAM / 
WEST1/47'0 2 4 165 250 FL X FL

CITIZEN
PRINTING

DOWNSTREAM 
/SOUTH

UPSTREAM / 
NORTH167+87

7'0’ 5/16 157 2002 4 FL X FL
DOWNSTREAM

/EAST
UPSTREAM / 

WEST203+42 JACOBS 7'0’ 5/16 139 2002 4 FL X FL

TOTAL 14

PROJECT: 171016.13PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS
300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320 
HIGHLANDS RANCH, CO 80129 
(303) 997-5035 
www.providenceic.com

YGr.'X r *•.

Sl2Bl23%*$ 
(^-43797 *"i

NEWT PIPELINE 

PROJECT PHASE 3 

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2

i&ZSSm-c *L h- I. MARTINEZDRAWN BY:FINAL FOR 

CONSTRUCTION
JUNE 28, 2023

* *

ih ’TOY’o \ ' ' / o

DESIGNER: W. DAUGHTRY
APPROVED BY: D. RICECIVIL DETAILSm m SHEET: 57 OF 109

%A ESTABLISHED 
. 1962 . 5CV*r G. ' 

.......
SA

y
^TEB 0 C-506DRAWING:REVISION DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE / REVISION REVISED BY

N
CD
C

t:
03
E
cr
LU
Cf)=)
03
£

"O

Is-
o
LO

o
LO

I

O
l

CO

CD

O

r^-

O
c/)
LU
LU
Xcn
CM
o
CO

<:
LU

'I

o
cf.)
LU
O

o
o
O
CO

Q<
O
o
o
03
CO

CD

O

h-

co
E o
Q- CD

cm -5

(6 Q-

CM CMO
CM "O

„ CD
CO 03CM

§ss
N

o
< §

'Y
" (

N
O

TE
 2

)

4^

-v
j

ro

C
O

i
m

-v
l

I

ST
A 

LO
C

AT
IO

N
TO

 C
EN

TE
R

 O
F 

M
AN

H
O

LE

C
M

C
O

C
O

-M
4^

C
O

O

4^
00

r-o

LO

A

C
O
 05

C
O

6

-4

O

0)
 o

m
 7

s 
O

 ID
H

 
i- ° ^ ‘A

 7
3

m
 C

O
 

00
 T

l 
k 

m
G

O
 O

m

I-

m

O
o<

73O

X

m

<03

Page 7 of 8



A1 TESTOX 2000 SERIES 10 
ERMINAL TEST STATION

B1 TESTOX 2000 SERIES 10 
TERMINAL TEST STATION

GENERAL NOTES:
NOTE:

D 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF 
ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLANS FOR THIS PROJECT 
AND ACTUAL FIELD CONDITIONS WHICH MAY INTERFERE WITH 
THIS PROJECT.

DINSTALL (2) 4'x8' GRADIENT 
CONTROL MATS (GCM) THERMITE 
WELDED TOGETHER TO MAKE AN 
8'x8' MAT, PER MANUFACTURER 
INSTRUCTIONS

GRADE

SEE CP TEST STATION LABEL SEE CP TEST STATION LABELCP-10: NOTE:CP-10:CD
CO INSTALL (2) 4'x8' GRADIENT 

CONTROL MATS (GCM) THERMITE 
WELDED TOGETHER TO MAKE AN 
8'x8' MAT, PER MANUFACTURER 
INSTRUCTIONS

MIN 6" OF CRUSHED 
LIMESTONE OR CRUSHED 

CONCRETE ON TOP OF 
GRADIENT CONTROL MAT

3" SCH 40 GALV STEEL PIPE3" SCH 40 GALV 
STEEL PIPE

CD
CO 2. ALL WORK SHALL BE NEW UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.MIN 6" OF CRUSHED 

LIMESTONE OR CRUSHED 
CONCRETE ON TOP OF 

GRADIENT CONTROL MAT

3. NO BELOW GRADE SPLICING OF WIRES IS ALLOWED WITHOUT 
PRIOR APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR SHALL 
ENSURE ALL WIRES ARE OF SUFFICIENT LENGTH FOR EACH 
INTENDED APPLICATION.

3Z= XT

37 37 GRADE37 37r% 3737 3737 37 3737 37 <<Z*

wn 37
37' 4 ■ 37 37CONCRETE PAD NOTE: 37CO GRADIENT 

CONTROL 
MAT (GCM)

37A. 37 i >%r• < 3737 37<r<z- <C7r--6
AC COUPONS NOT 
PRESENT AT ALL 
LOCATIONS. SEE TEST 
STATION SCHEDULE 
FOR LOCATIONS.

4. INSTALL REFERENCE ELECTRODES AND COUPONS 6 INCHES FROM 
EDGE OF PIPE AND PLACE BELOW THE SPRINGLINE OF THE PIPE. 
COUPONS SHALL CONSIST OF THE SAME MATERIAL AS THE PIPE 
AT THE LOCATION OF INSTALLATION.

CONCRETE PAD A AO ■A . CDA,(1) #6 AWG BLACK FROM 
GRADIENT CONTROL MAT 

TO TEST STATION

• -S' GRADIENT 
CONTROL 
MAT (GCM)

CO

•S'1 o
(1) #6 AWG BLACK FROM 

GRADIENT CONTROL MAT 
TO TEST STATION

1-0' r-o CO

REMOVE ANODES AND REFERENCE ELECTRODES FROM PLASTIC 
OR OTHER SHIPPING BAG AND POSITION ACCORDING TO DETAIL 
DRAWINGS. DO NOT REMOVE CLOTH SACK.

5.

1 3" PVC CONDUIT 
(SEE NOTE 8)(1) 32LB ANODE 

CONNECTED TO 
GRADIENT CONTROL MAT 
VIA THERMITE WELD

1 3" PVC CONDUIT 
(SEE NOTE 8)

(2) #8 AWG WHITE FOR PIPE TEST 
LEADS. WRAP LEADS AROUND PIPE 
FOR STRAIN RELIEF

MINIMUM 18" OF SLACK IN WIRES 
FOR SETTLEMENT AND MOVEMENTA

THERMITE WELD 6. INSTALL ANODES A MINIMUM OF 18 INCHES FROM EDGE OF PIPE 
OR ANY OTHER METALLIC OBJECT AND PLACE BELOW THE INVERT 
OF THE PIPE.

(1) 32LB ANODE 
CONNECTED TO 
GRADIENT CONTROL 
MAT VIA THERMITE 
WELD

CP-103;
(2) #8 AWG WHITE FOR 
PIPE TEST LEADS TO NEW 
/ PROJECT PIPE. WRAP 
LEADS AROUND PIPE FOR 
STRAIN RELIEF

(2) #8 AWG BLUE FOR PIPE TEST LEADS 
TO EXISTING / ISOLATED PIPE. WRAP 

LEADS AROUND PIPE FOR STRAIN
RELIEF

r REFERENCE f B 
ELECTRODE VCP-10PIPELINE

BACKFILL WITH NATIVE SOIL A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES AROUND 
ANY REFERENCE ELECTRODES, COUPONS, OR ANODES THEN 
FLOOD EACH WITH A MINIMUM OF 5 GALLONS OF FRESH WATER. 
AFTER WATER ABSORPTION, CONTINUE BACKFILLING AS PER 
SPECIFICATIONS.

7.

A
THERMITE WELDDC & CP-103;

AC E 33' MIN METAL
COUPONS E 3 ROUTE ALL TEST LEADS AND ANODE WIRES IN 1 X2 INCH CONDUIT 

BETWEEN THE PIPE AND THE TEST STATION BASE. THE CONDUIT 
WILL ALSO AID THE INSTALLER AS THE PIPELINE IS PADDED AND 
BACKFILLED BY PROVIDING MEANS TO LEAN THE TEST STATION 
AGAINST THE TRENCH WALL.

8.

3

NEW/
PROJECTEXISTING / 

ISOLATED
INSULATING / B 
FLANGE VCP-10:

INSTALL TEST STATIONS OVER THE CENTERLINE OF THE PIPE AND 
PLACE IN PROTECTED LOCATIONS (NEXT TO FENCES, 
APPURTENANCES, OUT OF ROADWAYS, ETC.) OR OTHER EASILY 
ACCESSIBLE AREAS.

9.
PIPE

PIPE
5-0'

INSTALL ANODES DISTRIBUTED 
EQUALLY ON EACH SIDE OF PIPE 
(SEE SCHEDULE FOR 
QUANTITIES)

F INSULATING TEST STATION W/ GCMB
CP-10: SCALE: NTSA v ANODE AND IR-FREE TEST STATION W/ GCM 10. PIPELINE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING 

ELECTRICAL ISOLATION OF THE NEW PIPELINE FROM EXISTING 
PIPELINES, CONCRETE REBAR, ELECTRICAL GROUNDING, 
CASINGS, PIPE SUPPORTS, OR OTHER METALLIC STRUCTURES.

SCALE: NTS

rsMTP-36 PEDESTAL NOTE: COUPON 
LEAD #2
- PIPE LEAD #2

o
11. DURING BACKFILL, INSTALL CATHODIC PROTECTION WARNING 

TAPE 12-18 INCHES ABOVE ANY CATHODIC PROTECTION WIRES OR 
DEVICES.

INSTALLATION OF SOLID STATE 
DECOUPLERS TO BE COMPLETED 
DURING FINAL COMMISSIONING

GCM LEAD -io

ffifP o
SOLID STATE 
DECOUPLER

CM PIPE LEAD #1
AC & DC COUPON 

LEADS #1

5 ~©~© 12. TYPICAL WIRE INSULATION COLORS:
GRADE ANODE LEADS #2

© ©
WHITE = NEW / PROJECT PIPE
BLUE = EXISTING / ISOLATED PIPE
RED = FOREIGN PIPE
ORANGE = CASING PIPE
GREEN = METALLIC COUPON
BLACK = JOINT OR CONTINUITY BOND / GCM
YELLOW = REFERENCE ELECTRODE

/a111: :| I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l 11= l=l I l=il I :| I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l I l=l 11: l=ll l=l 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| 11=| A © ©o ANODE LEADS #1
TRACER WIRENOTE: NOTE: TRACER WIRE

PEDESTALS TO BE BURIED 
8"-12" INTO THE GROUND

INSTALL ZINC RIBBON BELOW PIPE TRENCH AND 
PLACE BETWEEN THE PIPELINE AND THE AC POWER 
LINES. BACKFILL ZINC RIBBON WITH A MINIMUM OF 
12" OF NATIVE SOIL BEFORE INSTALLING PIPE 
BEDDING MATERIAL. DO NOT INSTALL ZINC RIBBON 
WITHIN CLSM, PIPE BEDDING MATERIAL, AND 
OTHER GRANULAR BACKFILL.

MINIMUM 18" OF SLACK IN 
WIRES FOR SETTLEMENT 

AND MOVEMENT

NOTE:
INSTALL WIRE LABEL TAGS ON ALL 
WIRES. SHUNTS TO BE INSTALLED BY 
ENGINEER DURING FINAL TESTING

13. SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.
1 y2" PVC CONDUIT 
(SEE NOTE 8)

© TERMINAL BOARD LAYOUTA03

THERMITE WELD SCALE: NTSE CP-10 (2) #6 AWG WHITE FOR PIPE TEST 
LEADS. WRAP LEADS AROUND PIPE 
FOR STRAIN RELIEF

cn
LU
cnz>

PIPELINE
O)

■Q r\
O PIPE LEAD #1 & DC 

& AC COUPON 
LEADS #1

CL
o

I © PIPE LEAD #2 

GCM LEAD
©co

CD

©o

h-
6

p pco
TRACER WIRELU

LU TRACER WIREX
cn
CM

ZINC RIBBONo DC COUPON 
LEAD #2

co

AC COUPON 
LEAD #2)

LU

I
CD

SEE CP SCHEDULE FOR LENGTH (VARIES)CD
LU
O

(2) #6 AWG BLACK FOR 
LEADS TO ZINC RIBBON

TERMINAL BOARD LAYOUT e-'-j i r^jO B1CO
6 SCALE: NTSC v AC MITIGATION WITH ZINC RIBBON 3159 Commerce Co or I Coslle Rock. CO 80109 

off ic! (303) 688-6103 fax (303] 633-41 dl
!«ak irdofl&QuolCfcn.cacni *:■ vWAV.QuasCan.eciffl

<
CJ
O
O SCALE: NTSG)
CO

CD

O

PROJECT: 171016.13PROVIDENCE INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS
300 PLAZA DRIVE, SUITE 320 
HIGHLANDS RANCH, CO 80129 
(303) 997-5035 
www.providenceic.com

6/28/23 
< 38269 S

NEWT PIPELINE 

PROJECT PHASE 3 

WORK PACKAGE NO. 2

A H/V>77s¥N
cn

E oQ- 0 DRAWN BY: W. DAUGHTRYFINAL FOR 

CONSTRUCTION
JUNE 28, 2023

V/ % CATHODIC PROTECTION 

AC MITIGATION TEST 

STATION DETAILS

oltL
DESIGNER: W. JENKINSLO CL

G o APPROVED BY:M. VAN AUKENS3
CM "O

- P

N

< §

SHEET: 69 OF 109
A7A ESTABLISHED Or 3:-V m &

1962
A ©

^*01^^TER o
CP-104DRAWING:REVISION DESCRIPTION OF ISSUE / REVISION REVISED BY

Page 8 of 8



 
RMR-LI-2023-13 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION 

Poudre-Timnath 115-kV Transmission Line 
NWSW Section 3, Township 7 North, Range 68 West 

6th Principal Meridian, Larimer County, Colorado 

Vicinity of Structure 24/2 – 24/3 
Approx. Station No. 3756+52 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT is made this _______ day of _________________________, 2023, between 
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT AND NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
(LICENSEE’S), whether one or more, and the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Department of Energy, 
Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), represented by the officer executing this agreement, pursuant 
to the Reclamation Act, Act of June 17, 1902, 32 Stat. 388, and acts amendatory thereof and supplementary 
thereto, and the Department of Energy Organization Act, Act of August 4, 1977, 91 Stat. 565. 

WITNESSETH: 

WAPA concurs that the buried 42” welded steel potable waterline (FACILITY), proposed TOGETHER 
WITH THE INSTALLATION OF ABOVE GROUND MARKERS by the LICENSEE will not interfere with 
the operation and maintenance of the Poudre-Timnath 115-kV Transmission Line, if constructed in the 
manner and at the locations shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

In consideration of WAPA’S concurrence, the LICENSEE agrees to the following: 

(a) This license does not grant any right, privilege, or interest in the land.  The LICENSEE is
responsible for obtaining any necessary land rights from the underlying landowner.

(b) This license is only valid provided the FACILITY is constructed, operated, and maintained in
conformance with the attached drawings and/or exhibits.  Any relocations, changes, or upgrades require
additional concurrence by WAPA.  LICENSEE agrees to alter or relocate its FACILITY, at no cost to
WAPA, to accommodate future modifications of WAPA’S facilities, including but not limited to,
upgrades of the transmission line.

(c) Please note that the easement width is 75 feet (37.5 feet each side of the centerline).  Reconstruction,
operation, and maintenance of the transmission line requires that WAPA use heavy equipment within
the easement area, therefore, WAPA will not be held liable for damages to the FACILITY should they
occur.  In addition, the pipeline should be installed in such a manner as to withstand heavy equipment in
the easement area.

(d) LICENSEE shall install above ground markers indicating the location of the buried FACILITY and
maintain such above ground markers for the life of the FACILITY.

(e) Within WAPA’s Right of Way, WAPA shall have access over this facility with vehicles that
have a 32kip axle load.

IF HEAVY EQUIPMENT WILL BE OPERATING UNDER THE LINE. 
Post signs, “Caution – Overhead High Voltage Transmission Lines”.  



 
(f) LICENSEE shall notify WAPA at least 15 business days prior to commencing installation of 
the FACILITY to permit inspection by WAPA.  Contact Ron Miller in WAPA’S Cheyenne Office, 
(307) 286-9047. 

 
(g) To abide by and comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and building and safety 
codes. 

 
(h) Induced voltages and currents may occur on the FACILITY constructed or placed under or near 
high voltage transmission lines.  The LICENSEE shall be responsible for the protection of personnel 
and equipment in their design, construction, operation, and maintenance of the FACILITY described in 
this License Agreement. 

 
(i) It is specifically understood and agreed that WAPA shall have no liability and WAPA assumes no 
responsibility for any liability, loss and/or damage resulting from injury or death of persons 
whomsoever, or damage to, loss, or destruction of property whatsoever, when such liability, injury, 
death, loss, or damage results from or in connection with the use of WAPA’S easement area by 
LICENSEE. 

 
(j) This agreement shall be binding on the successors or assigns of the LICENSEE and WAPA. 

 
LICENSEE   THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
East Larimer County Water District  Western Area Power Administration 
232 South Link Lane                                                 (800) 472-2306 
Fort Collins, CO  80524 
970-493-2044 
 
_____________________________________  ________________________________________ 
Mike Scheid  Kevin Ripplinger 
General Manager  Cheyenne Maintenance Manager 
    Rocky Mountain Region 
 
LICENSEE 
North Weld County Water District 
32825 CR 39 
Lucerne, CO  80646 
970-356-3020 
 
_____________________________________ 
Tad Stout 
President 
 



RIGHT-OF-WAY USE APPLICATION 

Date: Transmission Line:  Poudre-Timnath 115-kV  (ROW width 75’) 

Description of Proposal (Narrative): 

Location: Section  3 ,  Township  7N ,   Range   68W ,  SIX (Meridian) 

County: Larimer State:   Colorado 

Complete if applicable: Subdivision  ,  Lot , 
Block , City 

PROFILE: Show the location, height (feet), and distance (feet) from the nearest transmission line structure. 

 

PLAN: Show the location and dimensions (in feet) of the proposed facility in relation to the center 
conductor of the transmission line. 

EDGE OF ROW --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- EDGE OF 
ROW 
Transmission Line Transmission Line 
Centerline Centerline 
WAPA Structure WAPA Structure 
No.  -----> < ------ No. 
EDGE OF ROW --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- EDGE OF 
ROW 

Show NORTH by arrow at (+) in block at left 
and show approximate location in Section at right. 

Attach other drawings and information as appropriate. 

NOTE: Induced voltages and currents may occur on facilities constructed or placed under or near high voltage 
transmission lines, therefore, the Licensee shall be responsible for the protection of personnel and equipment in 
their design, construction, operation and maintenance of the facilities described in this application. 

Facility Owner/Company Name 
Consultant 

     Printed Associate Name   
Name_____________________________  _______________________________________ 

 Title 
  Telephone ( )  

   Address 
     ___________________________________________ 
    City, State, Zip 

                                 Telephone ( )                

WAPA Structure 
No._______    ------- > 

WAPA Structure 
< -------- No.   

Ground Surface Ground Surface 

North 

-----+----- 

NW1/4 NE1/4 

SW1/4 SE1/4 

Western Area Power Administration 
Rocky Mountain Region 

ATTN: Tracy Rogers, A9401 
P.O. Box 3700 Loveland, CO 

80539-3003 
(970) 237-9873

EXHIBIT A 
Page   1 of 

NOTE: A minimum overhead 
clearance of at least  15 
feet from the 
conductors must be 
maintained at all times. 

 

Facility Owner/Company Name

Printed Associate Name
________________________________

 Title 

  Address 
____________________________________

  City, State, Zip 

Telephone ( ) 

Facility Owner/Company Name

Printed Associate Name
________________________________

 Title 

  Address 
____________________________________

  City, State, Zip 

Telephone ( ) 

7

awest
Text Box
EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

awest
Text Box
NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

awest
Text Box
24-3

awest
Text Box
24-2

awest
Ellipse

awest
Dimension
570 FT

awest
Dimension
113 FT

awest
Architect
7 FT BELOW G.S.

awest
Text Box
42" welded steel potable waterline crossing under WAPA's

awest
Text Box
transmission line and 75-ft easement. No above ground facilities are proposed within easement.

awest
Text Box
24-2

awest
Text Box
24-3

awest
PolyLine

awest
Dimension
570 FT

awest
Dimension
113 FT

awest
Arrow

awest
Text Box
N

awest
Ellipse

awest
Text Box
DITESCO, LLC

awest
Text Box
ANDREW WEST

awest
Text Box
719

awest
Text Box
330 - 3057

Randy
Typewritten Text
P.O. Box 2044

Randy
Typewritten Text
Fort Collins, CO 80522

Randy
Typewritten Text
970-493-2044

Randy
Typewritten Text
Randy Siddens

Randy
Typewritten Text
District Engineer

awest
Text Box
07/20/2023



2 7



Page 3 of 7



Page 4 of 7



Page 5 of 7



Page 6 of 7



Page 7 of 7





















































 
 

4750 Larimer Parkway Unit 101  •  Johnstown, CO 80534  •  (T) 970.223.3706  •  (F) 970.223.3763  • www.clearwatercolorado.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 3, 2023 
 
 
Mr. Eric Reckentine, General Manager 
32825 CR 39 
Lucerne, CO 80646 
 
RE:  Proposal – Water Efficiency Plan Update 
 
 
Dear Mr. Reckentine: 
 
We have prepared this proposal for the completion of North Weld County Water District’s 
Water Efficiency Plan (WEP) update. We last completed the District’s plan update in 2018.  The 
Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) requires water providers that deliver 2,000 acre‐
feet or more per year to maintain a State‐approved WEP in order to access low‐interest loan 
funding through CWCB or the Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority. 
 
Project Objective 
 
The goal of the project will be to obtain a CWCB grant first and then to use that grant to fund a 
portion of the plan update.  Clear Water Solutions, Inc. (CWS) has been successful in obtaining 
grants for these plan updates for the District in the past, as well as obtaining final approval of 
the WEP update. 
 
Scope of Services and Fees 
 
Similar to the previous effort, there are two phases for this project.  Phase I will be the 
completion of the grant application.  Phase II will be the completion of the WEP update.  Below 
is the anticipated scope of services and fees for each phase: 
 
Phase I – Grant Application 

1. Obtain information from the District for application.  This information includes 
population data, water use data, system information, staff expertise, 



Mr. Eric Reckentine 
August 3, 2023 
Proposal for WEP Update 
Page 2 of 3 

© Clear Water Solutions, Inc.   

conservation efforts, etc.  This information will be used to complete the 
application.  

 
2. Complete grant application.  CWS would draft the application to meet CWCB’s 

standards, which includes a project schedule, fee schedule and a detailed scope 
of work to successfully complete the WEP update once the grant is approved.  

 
For CWS to complete the grant application, the cost is $5,200.  CWCB will not cover the cost of 
the grant application as part of the grant itself.  The final cost of the WEP update will be 
determined during completion of the grant application, but is estimated below.  We will outline 
District staff’s involvement and quantify the in‐kind hours staff will contribute.  We will not 
start the WEP update until the grant is approved.   
 
Phase II – WEP update 
 
The scope of services below follows CWCB’s Guidance Document for completion of WEP 
updates. 
 

1. Profiling of Existing Water Supply System 
2. Profile Water Demand and Historical Demand Management 
3. Integrated Planning and Water Efficiency Benefits and Goals 
4. Selection of Water Efficiency Activities 
5. Implementation and Monitoring Plans 
6. Adoptions of New Policy, Public Review, and Formal Approval 

 
The above scope of work includes all required project meetings, progress reporting, public‐
review period, and District Board meetings as required by CWCB. 
 
The total cost of the WEP update is estimated at $53,800.  This final amount will be outlined in 
detail when completing the grant application.  We anticipate the grant will cover $20,000‐
$30,000 as this amount depends on CWCB’s budget and available funds for planning grants.  
The remaining portion of $23,800‐$33,800 will be met by the District. 
 
Desired Outcome 
 
Successfully obtain a CWCB grant to complete the WEP update as well as complete and obtain 
final State approval of the WEP update.   
 
Deliverables 
 
We will provide a grant application package ready to sign and submit to CWCB for approval.  
Once the grant is approved, we would begin the WEP update and complete that plan so the 
District can remain in compliance with CWCB.   



Mr. Eric Reckentine 
August 3, 2023 
Proposal for WEP Update 
Page 3 of 3 

© Clear Water Solutions, Inc.   

 
Timeline 
 
The grant application takes about a month to complete.  Once submitted, CWCB generally takes 
two months to approve the application and  issue the PO to commence work.   There are two 
deadlines annually to submit grant applications – July 1st and December 1st.  If the District wants 
to complete the WEP update in 2024, we will need to complete and submit the grant application 
by December 1, 2023. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to serve the District again.  We believe the completion of 
previous plans went well, and we were successful in obtaining State approval.  If you have any 
questions or need further information, please do not hesitate to call me at (970) 223‐3706. 
 
Cordially, 
Clear Water Solutions, Inc. 

 
Steve Nguyen, P.E. 
President 



EJCDC® C-940, Work Change Directive. (TRP AMENDED 6/2023)
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 1 of 1

WORK CHANGE DIRECTIVE NO.: 006

Owner: City City of Greeley, CO Owner’s Project No.: FK21-10-170
Engineer: Providence Infrastructure Consultants, Inc Engineer’s Project No.:
Contractor: Reynolds Construction, LLC Contractor’s Project No.: 42202.200
Project: Terry Ranch Pipeline – Segment 1 (NWCWD Interconnect)
Contract Name: Terry Ranch Pipeline – Segment 1 (NWCWD Interconnect)
Date Issued: August 14, 2023 Effective Date of Work Change Directive: August 30, 2023

Contractor is directed to proceed promptly with the following change(s):

Description:

An additional blowoff is needed at the NWCWD 24” connection to their existing line north of the 
Windsor Master Meter. The blowoff will run south as shown on the attached detail markup.

Attachments:

NWCWD Additional Blowoff Detail Markup

Purpose for the Work Change Directive:

Allow NWCWD to effectively blowoff their 24” interconnect line from the pump station connection 
to the north tie-in point.

Directive to proceed promptly with the Work described herein, prior to agreeing to change in Contract 
Price and Contract Time, is issued due to:

☐ Non-agreement on pricing of proposed change. ☒ Necessity to proceed for schedule or other reasons.

Estimated Change in Contract Price and Contract Times (non-binding, preliminary):

Contract Price: $25,154.18 [increase]

Contract Time: 1 days [increase]

Basis of estimated change in Contract Price:

☐ Lump Sum ☐ Unit Price ☒ Cost of the Work ☐ Other

Recommended by
Owner’s Rep

Authorized by
Owner

Approved by
Contractor

By:

Title: CMAR Project Manager

Date: 08/21/2023

Bill Renz, PE

Construction Manager

8/29/2023



REYNOLDS CONSTRUCTION, LLC
1775 EAST 69TH AVENUE
DENVER, CO 80229

 Job
Terry Ranch NWCWD INTERCONNECT
BLOWOFF
GREELEY, CO
Bid Date: 08/16/2023
Bid #: 3081730

Sales Representa�ve
Scot Andreano
(M) 720-629-6281
(T) 303-394-0004
(F) 303-394-4450
Scot.Andreano@coreandmain.com

 Core & Main
9451 Yosemite St
Henderson, CO 80640
(T) 303-394-0004

08/21/2023 - 3:23 PM Actual taxes may vary Page 1 of 3

Bid Proposal for Terry Ranch NWCWD INTERCONNECT
BLOWOFF

CU
ST

O
M

ER
CO

N
TA

CT
N

O
TE

S



Seq# Qty Descrip�on Units Price Ext Price

  
20 1 24X8 MJ TEE C153 IMP EA 1,630.57 1,630.57
30 2 24 MEGALUG F/C900/IPS 2024PV EBAA EA 489.26 978.52
40 2 24 MEGALUG ACC KIT L/GLAND (I) IMPORT EA 98.45 196.90

  
60 1 8" MJXMJ ADPT SERIES 100 W/ACC EA 177.09 177.09

  
80 1 8 MJ 45 C153 IMP EA 192.14 192.14
90 1 8 EBAA MEGALUG MJ DI 1108 RSTR F/DI PIPE , BLACK EA 52.86 52.86

100 1 8 MEGALUG ACC KIT L/GLAND EA 26.40 26.40
  

120 1 8 PEXPE DIP 10'00" N140/N140 EA 1,287.15 1,287.15
  

140 1 8 AVK #65 DI MJ GV O/L L/ACC 65-200-0709614034 OPEN LEFT EA 1,949.00 1,949.00
150 2 8 EBAA MEGALUG MJ DI 1108 RSTR F/DI PIPE , BLACK EA 52.86 105.72
160 2 8 MEGALUG ACC KIT L/GLAND EA 26.40 52.80
170 1 DENVER VALVE BOX KIT W/#160 BASE-CONSISTING OF COMPONENTS EA 325.00 325.00
220 1 24" #60 SCREW VLV BOX EXT #60 6850 SERIES, 145059 EA 85.00 85.00
230 1 6' VALVE EXT STEM F/2" NUT EA 126.19 126.19

  
250 1 8 MJ TEE C153 IMP N140/N140 EA 407.16 407.16
260 1 8X2 MJ TAPT PLUG C153 N140 EA 264.30 264.30
270 2 8 EBAA MEGALUG MJ DI 1108 RSTR F/DI PIPE , BLACK EA 52.86 105.72
280 3 8 MEGALUG ACC KIT L/GLAND EA 26.40 79.20

  
300 1 8 FLGXPE DIP 10'00" N140/N140 EA 1,400.02 1,400.02
310 1 8 FLG TEE C110 PR IMP N140 EA 719.72 719.72
320 1 8 BLIND FLG DI PR IMP N140 EA 314.61 314.61
330 1 8X2 TAPT BLIND FLG DI IMP N140 EA 371.80 371.80
340 3 8 FLG STUD KIT CL E B7, 2H NUT EA 60.02 180.06
350 3 8X1/8 FLG FF GARLOCK GASKET EA 39.44 118.32
360 1 LAN 2-1/2X2 MNSTXMIPT HYD ADPT 350-125-00300 IMP EA 30.41 30.41
370 1 DIXON FC250F 2-1/2 BRS HYD CAP 2-1/2 NST LUG CAP W/CHAIN EA 31.59 31.59

  
390 1 2X1 304SS HEX BUSHING EA 15.85 15.85
400 1 1X24 304SS NIPPLE EA 35.04 35.04
410 1 B20283N 1 BALL CURB FIPXFIP W/PLN HEAD 1/4 TURN CHECK EA 130.45 130.45

NO LEAD
420 1 1 304SS STREET 90 BEND EA 12.87 12.87
430 1 95-E ADJ CI SERVICE BOX COMP IMPORT EA 90.00 90.00
440 1 #153 EXT PIECE 28" LONG F/6500 EA 40.10 40.10

08/21/2023 - 3:23 PM Actual taxes may vary Page 2 of 3

REYNOLDS CONSTRUCTION, LLC
Job Loca�on: GREELEY, CO
Bid Date: 08/16/2023
Core & Main 3081730

Core & Main
9451 Yosemite St

Henderson, CO 80640
Phone: 303-394-0004

Fax: 303-394-4450

Bid Proposal for Terry Ranch NWCWD INTERCONNECT BLOWOFF



Seq# Qty Descrip�on Units Price Ext Price

450 1 5660 CURB BOX STA ROD 72" 4510-250 EA 57.30 57.30
Sub Total 11,589.86

Tax 0.00
Total 11,589.86

Branch Terms:
CORE & MAIN WATERWORKS IS NOT LIABLE FOR DELIVERY DELAYS, CANCELLATIONS OR PRICE INCREASES RESULTING FROM ANY
CAUSE BEYOND OUR CONTROL. THESE INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO:MANUFACTURERS SHORTAGES, AVAILABILITY OR
TIMELINESS OF TRANSPORTATION, MATERIALS, FUELS, OR SUPPLIES. THIS QUOTE IS NOT A CONTRACT TO SUPPLY MATERIAL OR
GUARANTEE OF PRODUCT AVAILABILITY.
******************************

SALES TAXES NOT INCLUDED

ITEMS PICKED UP AT OUR FACILITY MAY BE SUBJECT TO CITY TAXES

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN, PRICES QUOTED ARE VALID IF ACCEPTED BY CUSTOMER AND PRODUCTS ARE RELEASED BY
CUSTOMER FOR MANUFACTURE WITHIN THIRTY (30) CALENDAR DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS QUOTATION. CORE & MAIN LP
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INCREASE PRICES TO ADDRESS FACTORS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS,
TARIFFS, TRANSPORTATION, FUEL AND RAW MATERIAL COSTS. DELIVERY WILL COMMENCE BASED UPON MANUFACTURER LEAD
TIMES. ANY MATERIAL DELIVERIES DELAYED BEYOND MANUFACTURER LEAD TIMES MAY BE SUBJECT TO PRICE INCREASES AND/OR
APPLICABLE STORAGE FEES. THIS BID PROPOSAL IS CONTINGENT UPON BUYER’S ACCEPTANCE OF SELLER’S TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF SALE, AS MODIFIED FROM TIME TO TIME, WHICH CAN BE FOUND AT: h�ps://coreandmain.com/TandC/

08/21/2023 - 3:23 PM Actual taxes may vary Page 3 of 3

Bid Proposal for Terry Ranch NWCWD INTERCONNECT BLOWOFF
Bid #: 3081730

https://coreandmain.com/TandC/


August 21, 2023

City of Greeley, Colorado

1100 10th Street

Greeley, Colorado 80631

Attn: Jim Paulson

Operations: Hours:

0.0

Labor:

Classification Column1 Hours Rate Extension

Project Manager 4.0 213.81$           855.24$             

Assistant Project Manager 2.0 122.95$           245.90$             

Superintendent 2.0 138.98$           277.96$             

Foreman 6.0 124.49$           746.94$             

Group 4 Operator (Excavator, Motor Grader) 12.0 116.54$           1,398.48$         

Group 3 Operator (Loader,Compactor) 6.0 90.64$             543.84$             

Pipe Layer (Group 2) 6.0 72.52$             435.12$             

Laborer (Group 1) 18.0 56.98$             1,025.64$         

-$                  -$                   

Total Total Labor 5,529.12$         

Equipment:

Unit Column1 Hours Rate Extension

Pickup Truck 6.0 28.59$             171.54$             

Excavator, JD 470 6.0 275.10$           1,650.60$         

Loader, JD 744 6.0 229.40$           1,376.40$         

Compaction Wheel - Excavator 6.0 12.00$             72.00$               

Trench Box (Small) 6.0 7.50$                45.00$               

Trench Box (Standard) 6.0 11.00$             66.00$               

Bedding Box 6.0 9.50$                57.00$               

Backhoe, JD 710 6.0 87.79$             526.74$             

Wacker/Compactor 6.0 3.50$                21.00$               

Levels/Transits/Survey/Laser 6.0 5.00$                30.00$               

Small Tools and Consumeables 6.0 8.00$                48.00$               

-$                  -$                   

Total Total Equipment 4,064.28$         

Subcontractors:

Item Unit Quant. Rate Extension

-$                   

-$                   

-$                   

Total Total Subcontractors -$                   

Materials:

Item Unit Quant. Unit Price Extension

8" Blowoff Material (C&M Quote #3081730) LS 1.00 11,589.86$     11,589.86$       

1" / 1 1/2" Crushed Rock TN 20.00 43.00$             860.00$             

Pipe Bedding TN 5.00 16.10$             80.50$               

Concrete Support Block EA 4.00 2.00$                8.00$                 

Concrete (Thrust Block) CY 2.00 176.95$           353.90$             

Fuel Surcharge (Per Truck) EA 1.00 17.50$             17.50$               

Short Load Fee EA 1.00 250.00$           250.00$             

Bollard EA 1.00 758.75$           758.75$             

Concrete (Bollard) CY 1.00 176.95$           176.95$             

Fuel Surcharge (Per Truck) EA 1.00 17.50$             17.50$               

Short Load Fee EA 1.00 250.00$           250.00$             

-$                   

Total Total Materials 14,362.96$       

EXTENDED COST OF PROJECT GENERAL CONDITIONS LS 0 -$                  -$                   

23,956.36$       

1,197.82$         

Bond 0.0% -$                   

25,154.18$       

Sincerely, 

REYNOLDS CONSTRUCTION, LLC

Approved By:

Chris Schneider

CMAR Project Manager Date:

City of Greeley, Colorado Representative

CMAR Fee (5%)

Total Change Request

Cost of Additional Work

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST #006: 8" Transmission Blowoff on 24" NWCWD Interconnect Main

Description: Description of Change Order Request. 

Reynolds Construction field crew and subcontractors when applicable.

RE: TERRY RANCH PIPELINE - SEGMENT 1 (NWCWD INTERCONNECT)

Anything above herein and in the attachments beyond the described scope shall be additional costs above and beyond this 

Change Request.

Furnish and Install 8" Blowoff Assembly on 24" PVC Interconnect Main per detail 3314203.

 Confidential 8/21/2023 Page 1

Eric Reckentine

ericr
Typewritten text
8/29/23



  

 NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 

32825 CR 39  •  LUCERNE, CO 80646 

P.O. BOX 56  •  BUS: 970-356-3020  •  FAX: 970-395-0997 

WWW.NWCWD.ORG  •  EMAIL: WATER@NWCWD.ORG 

 

September 11, 2023 

 

Mr. Brian Hood 

Managing Director 

Real Estate Services  

Colorado State University Research Foundation 

2537 Research Blvd. 

Fort Collins, CO 80526 

 

RE: 2023 Rental of C-BT Carryover Capacity  

 

 

Dear Brian, 

 

North Weld County Water District (North Weld) appreciates the opportunity to rent C-BT 
Carryover Capacity from CSURF again in 2023. CSURF will transfer 317 acre-feet of C-BT Carryover 
Capacity to North Weld prior to October 20, 2023. As we agreed last year, the rental rate will be 
the same as the irrigation C-BT assessment set by Northern Water. For consideration, North Weld 
will pay CSURF a rental fee of $33.00 per acre-foot of C-BT Carryover Capacity for a total of 
$10,461.00.  
 
 
If you have questions, please contact Richard Raines at (970) 218-2738 or rraines@scwtp.org.   

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Eric Reckentine 
District Manager 
North Weld County Water District 
 

 

http://www.nwcwd.org/
mailto:WATER@NWCWD.ORG


1 
 

 
AGREEMENT FOR 

FOR OUTLET STRUCTURE AND HEADGATE 
(Larimer County Canal No. 2 and The Tri-Districts) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), made this ______ day of ____________, 2023 is made 

by and between LARIMER COUNTY CANAL NO. 2 IRRIGATING COMPANY, a Colorado 
mutual ditch corporation (hereinafter “Company”), and the EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT (hereinafter “ELCO), the FORT COLLINS - LOVELAND WATER DISTRICT 
(hereinafter “Fort Collins-Loveland”) and the NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
(hereinafter “North Weld”), each a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State 
of Colorado (collectively ELCO, Fort Collins-Loveland and North Weld are referred to hereinafter 
as “Tri-Districts”), and are sometimes referred to herein as the “Parties” collectively, and “Party” 
individually. 
 

FACTUAL RECITALS 
 

Company is the owner and operator of that certain irrigation system commonly known as the 
Larimer County Canal No 2 (the “Ditch”) which takes its supply of water from the Cache la Poudre 
River at a point located near the south section line of the SW ¼ of Section 29 and the north section 
line of the NW ¼ of Section 32, Township 8 North, 69 West, 6th P.M., in Larimer County, Colorado, 
as further described and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (the “Property”). 
 

A. The Company has a valid and existing right of way and easement for the Ditch and 
sufficient lands on each side of the Ditch to allow the Company to fully enjoy and utilize the 
easement and right of way (the “Ditch Easement”). A portion of the Ditch Easement is generally 
located within the Property, where it traverses through and across the Property in the SW ¼ of 
Section 29 and the north section line of the NW ¼ of Section 32, Township 8 North, 69 West, 6th 
P.M., as further described on Exhibit A. 

 
B. TRI-DISTRICTS installed a new outlet structure and headgate to Overland Ponds, 

collectively referred to as (the “Improvements”). The locations, cross sections and other specifics 
of the Improvements and access to the Ditch, and the portions of the Improvements that are located 
within the Ditch Easement, are further described and shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference (the “Crossing Area”).   

 
C. The Company desires to accept the installed Improvements so long as they are 

constructed pursuant to the final plans and specifications, which have been provided to the 
Company.   

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged by the Company, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
 1. The above Factual Recitals are incorporated herein as if fully set forth.  
 
 2. For the sum of THREE THOUSAND and 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00), the 



2 
 

Company hereby grants to TRI-DISTRICTS permission for the purpose of the installed 
Improvements, located within the Crossing Area and within the Ditch Easement, pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement.  The location of the Crossing Area and Improvements are more specifically 
described and shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
3. TRI-DISTRICTS represent they have obtained all necessary consents, authorizations 

and permits for the Improvements in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, plans 
and specifications for the design, construction, repair and/or maintenance of the Improvements.  The 
Company acknowledges that TRI-DISTRICTS has provided plans and specifications for the 
Improvements to the Company for its review and approval and the Company has approved the plans.  
The Company’s review and approval of such plans and specifications and the contemplated work 
shall not constitute an engineering review or supervision and does not affect, release and/or limit 
TRI-DISTRICTS from any obligation, responsibility or liability to conduct such work in accordance 
with this Agreement and with all applicable governmental rules and regulations, or for the design, 
construction, repair and/or maintenance of the Improvements.  TRI-DISTRICTS and the Company 
agree to cooperate in good faith to coordinate any maintenance, operation and/or repair of the Ditch, 
Ditch Easement, Crossing Area and the Improvements.  All maintenance and repair of the 
Improvements thereto shall be done by TRI-DISTRICTS, entirely without cost to the Company. 

 
4. The Company makes no representation or warranties as to whether TRI-DISTRICTS 

obtained or needed to obtain consent from the owners of lands underlying and surrounding the Ditch 
and Ditch Easement in the Property area, or the owners of any existing pipelines, utility lines or other 
structures on, over, across or under the Property or other lands surrounding the Ditch and Ditch 
Easement for the Improvements.  The Company shall be without liability for any damage to said 
owners as a result of TRI-DISTRICTS’s exercise of its rights pursuant to this Agreement, except as 
to such damage as may be caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Company.  
 

5. The Improvements shall be maintained and repaired by TRI-DISTRICTS, under the 
direction and supervision of the Ditch Superintendent, at its expense, upon notice to the Company as 
recited above; however, in the event any sum is expended by the Company, after reasonable attempts 
to notify TRI-DISTRICTS, for emergency repairs and maintenance of the Improvements that are 
necessary to maintain or restore proper functioning of the Ditch, TRI-DISTRICTS shall reimburse 
the Company for such reasonable costs, fees and/or expenses related to such repairs and maintenance.  
In the event that the Company finds it necessary to make any emergency repairs and maintenance to 
the Improvements, the Company shall be without liability for damage to TRI-DISTRICTS, its agents, 
employees and/or other third parties, including without limitation all landowners, homeowners and 
business owners in or surrounding the Ditch, Ditch Easement and Crossing Area, except as to such 
damage as may be caused by the gross negligence or wanton and willful misconduct of the Company.  
Determination of whether repair or maintenance is necessary and whether an emergency exists shall 
be in the reasonable discretion of the Company. 

 
6. In the event that the Company finds it necessary to make repairs and maintenance to 

the Ditch and/or the Ditch Easement, either now or at any future time, the Company shall be wholly 
without liability for damage to the Improvements, as the result of the making of such maintenance 
and repairs, except as to such damage as may be caused by the Company’s gross negligence or 
wanton and willful misconduct; prior to performing any such repair or maintenance that is reasonably 
expected to adversely impact the Improvements, the Company will notify TRI-DISTRICTS and will 



3 
 

cooperate with the TRI-DISTRICTS to minimize the risk of damage to the Improvements.  In the 
event repair or maintenance of the Ditch or the Ditch Easement is required or advisable to maintain 
proper functioning of the Ditch, and is due to the existence, construction, installation, surveying, 
inspection, operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the Improvements, TRI-DISTRICTS 
will promptly repair and maintain the Ditch and the Ditch Easement to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the Company, or alternatively, if TRI-DISTRICTS refuses to perform the work, the Company shall 
perform or cause to be performed such repair and maintenance and TRI-DISTRICTS shall promptly 
reimburse the Company for the reasonable and actual costs and expenses of such repair and 
maintenance. Determination of whether repair or maintenance to the Ditch and the Ditch Easement 
is necessary or advisable and the nature and extent of such repair or maintenance shall be in the 
Company’s reasonable discretion.   
 

7. The Company shall have full power to operate, maintain, alter, enlarge, relocate, clean 
and manage the Ditch and Ditch Easement as if this Agreement had not been made, and any expense 
and/or damages caused thereby to TRI-DISTRICTS shall not be chargeable to the Company.  In the 
event, however, that any such action on the part of the Company could reasonably be expected to 
affect the Improvements, except in the event of emergency repairs, the Company agrees to give prior 
notice to TRI-DISTRICTS and to reasonably cooperate with TRI-DISTRICTS to avoid injuries or 
damages to the Improvements.  In the event that the Company finds it necessary to perform 
emergency repairs to the Ditch and Ditch Easement, either now or at any future time, the Company 
shall be wholly without liability for damages to the Improvements as the result of the performance 
of said repairs, except as to such damage as may be caused by gross negligence or wanton and willful 
misconduct; however, the Company will use reasonable means to avoid damage to the Improvements.  
Determination of whether an emergency exists shall be at the reasonable discretion of the Company.  

 
8. Any subsequent repair and/or maintenance of the Improvements shall be entirely 

without disturbance of the flow of water into the Ditch, unless permission in writing is first received 
from the Company for such disturbance.  To the extent permitted by law, TRI-DISTRICTS expressly 
agrees that it shall be liable to the Company and/or its shareholders for damages for any unauthorized 
use or disturbance of the flow of water through the Ditch caused by the TRI-DISTRICTS or the 
Improvements, without the Company’s prior written permission.  Upon completion of any activity 
upon the Crossing Area by TRI-DISTRICTS, TRI-DISTRICTS shall clean the Ditch and ditch bank 
area to cause it to be in substantially the same or better condition than existed prior to commencement 
of such activity, including the compacting of any disturbed soils.  

 
9. If there are any deficiencies in the work of TRI-DISTRICTS or any variation from the 

plans, TRI-DISTRICTS shall forthwith remedy the same.  In so doing, TRI-DISTRICTS shall meet 
all reasonable requirements of the Company for the protection of the Ditch comparable to conditions 
prior to the construction of the project. 
 

10. The Improvements shall be owned and controlled by Company.  Repair and/or 
maintenance of the Improvements shall be entirely without cost to the Company.  In addition to the 
consideration recited in Section 2, the Company’s attorneys and engineers shall be directed to review 
this Agreement and to consult with Company officials and/or employees as to its contents and effect, 
and their reasonable fees and expenses shall be paid by TRI-DISTRICTS. 
 



4 
 

11. To the extent permitted by law, TRI-DISTRICTS shall indemnify and hold the 
Company, its officers, directors, employees, shareholders and successors and assigns, harmless from 
any and all liability, losses, damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising in connection 
with the exercise by TRI-DISTRICTS of its rights pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, any personal injuries, deaths, property damage, mechanic’s liens or other claims and 
causes of action of any kind arising out of use of the Crossing, Crossing Area and the Improvements 
thereon by TRI-DISTRICTS and/or its employees and/or invitees, and by other third parties, except 
to the extent caused by the gross negligence or intentional misconduct of the Company or its 
shareholders, employees, agents, contractors and/or subcontractors. 
 

12. TRI-DISTRICTS hereby covenant and agree: 
 

A. TRI-DISTRICTS shall not install a fence, plant trees, brush or vegetation that 
obstructs access to the Ditch, the Ditch Easement or the Crossing Area, or construct any building 
within the Ditch, the Ditch Easement or Crossing Area, unless written authorization is first received 
from the Company.  
 

B. TRI-DISTRICTS shall promptly backfill any excavations made by it on the 
Ditch and Ditch Easement and repair any damage it shall do within the Ditch and Ditch Easement to 
the satisfaction of the Company. 

  C. TRI-DISTRICTS shall not spill dirt, debris or other foreign material into the 
Ditch.  In the event that dirt, debris or other foreign material is spilled into the Ditch by TRI-
DISTRICTS or its contractors, TRI-DISTRICTS agree to completely clean and restore the affected 
area of the Ditch to the Company’s satisfaction.  

D. If at any time the Improvements or any work by TRI-DISTRICTS cause any 
settling in the Ditch embankments, the roads thereon, the Crossing Area or any part of the Ditch 
Easement, TRI-DISTRICTS will upon notification from the Company, immediately make all repairs 
required by the Company at TRI-DISTRICTS’s expense. 

E. Should any water seepage and/or leakage from the Ditch occur as a result of 
TRI-DISTRICTS’s installation of the Improvements, TRI-DISTRICTS shall repair the Ditch to stop 
the seepage and/or leakage to the satisfaction of the Company.  In the event TRI-DISTRICTS fail to 
perform such repair, the Company may perform such repair and TRI-DISTRICTS shall reimburse 
the Company for any reasonable expenses incurred in repairing the Ditch in order to stop the water 
seepage and/or leakage.  

13. In the event either TRI-DISTRICTS or the Company shall be in default in any of their 
covenants herein, so as to require the Party not in default to retain counsel to attempt to enforce said 
covenants and to commence legal or equitable action against the defaulting Party, upon a 
determination by the court of default, the defaulting Party shall be liable for all reasonable expenses 
of said litigation incurred by the enforcing Party, including, but not limited to docket fees, discovery 
and reasonable attorney’s fees.   
 

14. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the obligations 
of TRI-DISTRICTS in fiscal years after the fiscal year of this Agreement shall be subject to 
appropriation of funds sufficient and intended therefor, and the failure of TRI-DISTRICTS to 
appropriate such funds may be grounds for termination of this Agreement after ninety (90) days 



5 
 

written notice to Company if TRI-DISTRICTS fails to appropriate the funds necessary for such 
obligation during the notice period. 
 

15. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be deemed effective when deposited 
in the United States mail, postage prepaid, first class and addressed to the party to whom notice is to 
be given, as follows: 
 

If to Company: Larimer County Canal No. 2 
c/o Fischer, Brown, Bartlett, Larsen & Irby, P.C.  
Attn: Brent Bartlett 
1319 E. Prospect Road Fort Collins, O 80525 
 
 
With a copy to: 
Registered Agent as reflected in the records 
of the Colorado Secretary of State 
 

 
If to TRI-DISTRICTS: East Larimer County Water District 
 232 S. Link Lane 
 Fort Collins, CO 80524 
 
 
 Fort Collins-Loveland Water District 
 5150 Snead Drive 
 Fort Collins, CO 80525  
 
  
 North Weld County Water District 
 32825 County Road 39 
 Lucerne, CO 80646 

 
In the event a different person or entity than the person or entity listed above shall be given 

notice, the other party shall be notified of this change in writing pursuant to this paragraph. 
 

16. This Agreement, and any grant by the Company, is subject to all restrictions, 
reservations, rights-of-way, easements, documents or Agreements existing or of record in the Clerk 
and Recorder’s office in Larimer County, Colorado at the time this Agreement is recorded.  The 
Company makes absolutely no representations or warranties (including, without limitation, 
warranties of title) in or by this Agreement or any grant herein. 

 
17. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the State of 

Colorado.  In the event of arbitration or litigation, venue shall be exclusively proper in Larimer 
County, Colorado. 
 

18. This Agreement is contingent upon, and shall not take effect until, the approval of by 
the Company of the completed plans and specifications of the Improvements, signed by the President, 



6 
 

and the giving of such approval to TRI-DISTRICTS.  The Company may make suggested revisions 
to the plans and specifications, and if such revisions are fully agreed to by TRI-DISTRICTS in 
writing, with notice of such acceptance being given to the Company, then this Agreement shall 
become effective upon receipt by the Company of such notice. 
 

19. A copy of this Agreement may be executed by each party, separately, and when each 
party has executed a copy thereof, such copies taken together shall be deemed to be a full and 
complete contract between the parties. 

  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused these presents to be duly 
executed by the proper officers or agents and have affixed their seals hereto on the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 
      EAST LARIMER COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

By:  ________________________________ _____ 
  

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 

The above and foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_________, 2023, by ____________________________, East Larimer County Water District 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal.   _____________________________ 
        Notary Public 
 MY commission expires:     {SEAL} 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.  Signatures to follow.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

 
FORT COLLINS-LOVELAND WATER   
DISTRICT  

 
By:  ________________________________ _____ 

  
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 

The above and foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_________, 2023, by ____________________________, Fort Collins-Loveland Water District 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal.   _____________________________ 
        Notary Public 
 MY commission expires:     {SEAL} 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.  Signatures to follow.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

By:  ________________________________ _____ 
  

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 

The above and foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_________, 2023, by ____________________________, North Weld County Water District 
 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal.   _____________________________ 
        Notary Public 
 MY commission expires:     {SEAL} 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.  Signatures to follow.] 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



9 
 

LARIMER COUNTY CANAL NO. 2, 
A Colorado mutual ditch corporation 

 
 

By:  ________________________________ _____ 
Mike Calhoon, President  

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 
 

The above and foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me this ___ day of 
_________, 2023, by Mike Calhoon, President, Larimer County Canal No. 2, a Colorado mutual 
ditch corporation. 

 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal.   _____________________________ 
        Notary Public 
 MY commission expires:     {SEAL} 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



���������	�
�����������

���������	�� �
����	�� ���
�����	��
������ ����������

�
������
���� ��
���
�����������
�����
��

�����
��������� !"��#��

	$�
�%&

'()*+,-�.)/01�'123(4
5067829)(+/0(�.4�:�9)

70();2'*-2<=00782>4
?0(�<=007@A*-�B4,A)

CD�'060/E0(�FGD�:F::
�G1GH�3B�IC1�J=4,A)�I

K,,0( 
$�	L%%��	$�
�%&
�MNN��$��O����PO%��
QR

S"��LOT��MM# �Q�T��QPPO%U"��QPQ�RSQ��
V#!�! �WQ%���XY#$ZN�$!#ZV [[[$ SOT�U�QU��\O��U$�
Q�

������������

�
�]�������	�
�

�$�$���RP

����
������ ��� �Q\����W��T$S[̂

�##MM�������������������������������
�������
���_̀ab�bcdefg 


������������
������hijkljmnijonmpjoqris�prjtumv�wxyxz{|sjui�}rt~{t��j|nui�w|rtn������rw{inu���ut�u�{in�}{||jtmv�}{|{irs{����������������k����ljnumo{�j||�put�v�wx�x�����zx�hj��ui|jtu�p{rsv�z�jnu�����{in�}{||jtmv�}{|{irs{����������������k����
��������"��#��

�
�]�����������������������	������
����������������������
��������������
� ������������

�����������������$��������$ ����
����������
���������
��������M �##M ����
������������������������Z �M#� ���������
����
������������
�����������������������Y �M#N ��
����
���������

¡¢£�£¤¥¦¤§



���������������������

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
���

����	
���������
������������
������� ������ !"�#�"!�$%�$%�&&�#'�()*��"+�&,-./011�2345�6�2789:31��0;11<�=>?@A

@?>=@?B

@?@=@?B
@?B=@?B@?C=@?D

0;11<�5EFG170;11<�:5H1�I

H10:�51H�GJI H74K5�GJI 42278�1H�GJI
0=431I 9:31�54F1I

<7:LH:0<7:=<0 347:F17�58�>�H:<=;
�34<1743

H4<1I
HMNMOPMQ�RS�>?>>

GT�7MUV

WXYZ[\]�̂Y_̀a�WabcXd
èfghbiYX[_̀X�̂d�j�iY

g̀XYkbWZ]blm̀g̀hbl[
g̀�iYndogpqZ]�ròhqY

ns�Ẁf̀_t̀X�uvs�jujj
�waxy�cz�{na�|md\qY�{

o\\̀X 7T�G}UUMQGT�7MUV
>@BB�0T�<~OPMQ�~UM�7��

�S�0}~�M�@@? 9�Q��=���~U�S�=���Q�����
�?R>R 2��UMI���?TCB>TR?C� ���T�~�M�N��MQ�~NM�TN
�O

0�MM��7M�~�~�U�
H��MI

7M�~�~�U�I
G�I

5�T

278�1=<�5EFG17I����

2T1T�0M��

8E<31<�0<7E=<E71 0:<1�45H��74H:5��2
345 @����R� 0~�M�3���}�T���

=@?>C

?R� R� @?� @R�31�15HI
58<10I9:13H�0E7�1J�GJI

�K K@R���EH



���������� ����� �����

�� ����
�����

�����
�����
��

	��
�
�����

�����
������

�
��������������������������������������������������

���
�
�	���
�
	��
�

���������������������������
������������
�������� ���������!��
�"#$��
��
����������������������������
	��
�

�%&��'%���������(���&���������%�������

�)�������%������� ���&�������������'����������&*������������

������
�
��"�	�

���$�

���
�"� �� ����� ���
�

����� ������	�

����"���
�����	�

+��� �� �

���,

���,$
,�	�,

$", ���
�

���������������!��
��#���������������!��
��#�

���� ��
$�

���
������
�������������������!��
�
#


���
����
�

���
� �����
����!��
�"#"����!��
�$#"����!��
�
#�
����!��
��#�����!��
��#� ���������������

�����	��
����%������������������!��
�	#


�������(%&�����������)!

�������&*! �����&*! ��������&*!
�����! �������%�!

������������ ����%������	�����
��������

���!
-.-/0-1��2�	
		

&#��-34

56789:;�<7=>?�5?@A6B
C>DEF@G769=>6�<B�H�G7

E>67I@58;@JK>>EF@J9
E>�5>E79IFLM8;�NO>FM7

PQ�5>D>=R>6�STQ�HSHH
�U?VW�AX�YP?�ZKB:M7�Y

O::>6 �#�&[33-1&#��-34
	�����#��\/0-1]\3-��̂_̀

2��[\a-���
 �̂1a��̂]]\3b2��̂]̂1_̀�̂�
"
�	� �ĉ3-!�$+
#��	#�
�" ddd#̀\a-b.̂b-1e\.-b#.̂
/

�c--a��-e\b\̂3b
_a-!

�-e\b\̂3b!
&f!

�̂#

���g�����(%&��!))))

�#�#��-_]

���(�(����������
�b��̂a-̀ �\a-�-a_\]b#̀dh

��
�+

�(��������(��(���������
���
�

������������(��(���������
	��
�

��������� ������������
�

���������
���������������������������
���
� ������������

�����!�# �������������������&���'�(���%�������������������
�������������
�#	# �����������������&�������������'�&����(������(��(��#�&��'��������(�����(��(��������"i&����������%����������������%�������#��������������#�# �������(������������������������������(��(��&��������(����������#�# ������������������������������*��������������
	#
�����!�# ������������������������������*#������������%��(����(������������#	# ���������%�������������#��������������������������������%������j�2��
���#�#��#�#

�����!�# ������������������&���'�(���%�������������������
�������������
�#	# ����������������&�������������'�&���(�������(��(��#&��'��������(����(��(��������"i&����������%���������������%�������#��������������#�# �������(�����������������������������(��(��&��������(����������#�# �����������������������������*��������������
	#

�����
� �����������%�������&����������





NWCWD COST OF SERVICE STUDY:  
WATER CHARGES AND PLANT 

INVESTMENT FEE
 PRELIMINARY RESULTS

GEORGE OAMEK, HONEY CREEK RESOURCES, INC.

SEPTEMBER 11, 2023



2023 COST OF STUDY UPDATE

• THE 2021-22 COS STUDY WAS APPROVED BY THE BOARD BUT NOT YET IMPLEMENTED IN ITS 

ENTIRETY

• A NEED FOR UPDATING STEMS FROM UPCOMING WSA NEGOTIATIONS WITH TOWNS, 

COMMERCIAL USAGE ISSUES, ALLOCATION OF CAPACITY TO HANDLE GROWTH, AND OTHER 

ISSUES

• RESULTS ARE PRELIMINARY PENDING BOARD AND STAFF REVIEW

• MODIFICATIONS WILL DEPEND ON THEIR INPUT AND THE FINAL MASTER PLAN



COST OF SERVICE

• NWCWD HAS HISTORICALLY USED COS TO SET RATES, BUT AT A DISTRICT-WIDE LEVEL

• “DISCOUNTS” GIVEN TO TOWNS AREN’T REALLY DISCOUNTS BUT RECOGNITION THAT TOWNS ARE LESS EXPENSIVE TO 

SERVE ON A 1,000 GALLON BASIS

• AS THE DISTRICT HAS EVOLVED, SO HAS A NEED TO DISTINGUISH AMONG TYPES OF CUSTOMERS AND THE 

DEMANDS THEY PUT ON THE SYSTEM, BOTH USAGE AND CAPACITY

• THE 2022 ANALYSIS (AND CURRENT UPDATE) USES THE BASE-EXTRA CAPACITY METHOD TO ALLOCATE DISTRICT 

COSTS AMONG CUSTOMER CLASSES

• ALLOWS FOR UNIQUE RATES FOR EACH CUSTOMER CLASS BASED ON THEIR USAGE CHARACTERISTICS

• THE BASE-EXTRA CAPACITY METHOD IS AWWA STANDARD PRACTICE (AWWA M1 MANUAL, 7TH ED)



IMPACTS OF COST OF SERVICE RATES ACROSS 
CUSTOMER CLASSES

• RESIDENTIAL USERS WILL HAVE THE HIGHEST VOLUME CHARGE, $1,000 GAL, BECAUSE OF 

SUMMER LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION (HIGH MAX DAY AND MAX HOUR DEMAND PEAKING 

FACTORS)

• COMMERCIAL USERS WILL HAVE A LOWER VOLUME CHARGE DUE TO MORE STEADY, 

CONSTANT DEMAND, RESULTING IN SMALLER PEAKS

• VOLUME CHARGES FOR TOWNS WILL INCORPORATE THEIR MAX DAY DEMAND AND USAGE.  

HOWEVER THE TOWNS DO NOT PAY FOR RAW WATER, PEAK HOUR STORAGE, OR THE LOCAL 

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

• TOWNS’ VOLUME CHARGES CAN BE HANDLED INDIVIDUALLY OR COLLECTIVELY



CALCULATED COST OF SERVICE RATES

Current water 

charges

Baseline cost-of-

service water rates, 

2022

Baseline cost-of-

service water rates, 

2023 update

Residential customers $4.44/1,000 gal $6.15/1,000 gal $6.50/1,000 gal

Commercial and 

industrial

$4.44/1,000 gal $4.45/1,000 gal $4.30/1,000 gal

Towns (average) $3.33/1,000 gal $3.72/1,000 gal 

average

$4.40/1,000 gal 

average

Plant Investment fee $20,250/tap District

$15,100/tap Town

$20,250/tap 

District-wide

$22,650/tap District

$16,700/tap Town



CALCULATED VOLUME CHARGE FOR TOWNS, BASED ON 
THEIR HISTORIC PEAKING FACTORS ($/1000 GAL)

Town of Windsor 4.03$                
Town of Eaton 4.57$                

Town of Severance 4.30$                
Town of Ault 4.70$                

Town of Pierce 4.03$                
N. Colo Water Assoc #A-2110 4.57$                

Town of Nunn 4.57$                
Simple average 4.39$                



ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

• CHANGES IN CALCULATED VOLUME CHARGES BETWEEN 2022 AND 2023 ARE DUE TO REVISED 

ASSUMPTIONS ABOUT WATER USAGE AND THE PACE OF NEW TAPS

• NEAR-TERM WATER AND PI SURCHARGE REVENUES ARE NEAR BUDGETED AMOUNTS, BUT ARE 

ASSUMED TO DECLINE OVER TIME TO 10% OF THEIR CURRENT LEVEL BY 2032

• WATER AND PI SURCHARGE LEVELS ARE NOW ASSUMED TO BE SPLIT EVENLY BETWEEN REDUCING 

CUSTOMER RATES AND FUTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS.  THIS IS ULTIMATELY A POLICY DECISION 

BY THE BOARD

• 2023 PRELIMINARY PLANT INVESTMENT FEE REQUIRES MORE CONSIDERATION ABOUT REMAINING 

SYSTEM CAPACITY AFTER 2032



NWCWD current NWCWD, baseline 

COS scenario

East Larimer 

County WD

Fort Collins-

Loveland WD 

(residential, 

outside Fort 

Collins)

Town of 

Wellington

City of 

Loveland 

(inside City)

City of 

Greeley (not 

on Water 

Budget)

City of Fort 

Collins

Monthly service 

charge

$26.64, includes 

first 6,000 gallons

Residential $36.96;

Comm/Indus $26.70

Both include first 

6,000 gallons

$14.35 $17.01 $49.71 $19.31 $17.50 $19.02

Volume charge 

($/1,000 gallons)

All users:

$4.44

Wholesale service 

to Towns: $3.33

Residential:  $6.50

Comm/Indus: $4.30

Wholesale service 

to Towns:  $4.40

Residential:  

$4.35

Commercial 

$3.72

Residential: 

$1.98 (<8,000 

gal)

$2.81 <15,000 

gal

$0.00 (<3,000 

gal)

$11.70 (3,000 to 

7000 gal; 

$15.20 up to 

20,000 gal)

Residential: 

$3.95

Commercial: 

$4.70

Residential: 

$5.64

Commercial: 

$5.60

Industrial: 

$4.52

$2.94 

(<7,000 gal)

$3.39 

(<13,000 gal)

Excess usage 

charge ($/1,000 

gallons)

$6.00 plus volume 

charge for usage 

greater than 

allocation

$6.00 plus volume 

charge for usage 

greater than 

allocation

$4.99 plus 

volume charge for 

usage greater 

than allocation

$3.77 for usage 

greater than 

15,000 gal/mo

$21.64 

(>20,000 gal)

$1.68 plus 

volume charge, 

only for 

commercial 

customers

No specific 

penalty 

published for 

non-budget 

customers.

$3.90 

(>13,000 gal)

Monthly average 

residential bill 

(0.32 af)

$38.59 $56.49 $52.16 $34.22 $122.21 $53.64 $66.52 $45.33

Monthly average 

residential bill  

(0.64 af)

$77.17 $112.98 $90.11 $60.54 $254.32 $87.97 $115.53 $110.57



ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

• RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS

• ABOUT $2.00/1,000 OF THE $6.50/1,000 CHARGE IS FOR RAW WATER TO REPLENISH DROUGHT RESERVES

• COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

• IT IS ASSUMED THAT CURRENT OVER USAGE IS ABOUT 2,000 ACRE-FEET, BUT DECLINES OVER TIME 

• FUTURE SURCHARGE REVENUES ARE BASED ON CURRENT SURCHARGE LEVELS

• TOWNS 

• FOR NOW, TOWNS ARE ASSUMED TO STAY WITH THE DISTRICT AT LEAST THROUGH 2032 

• FUTURE UNCERTAINTIES MUST BE CONSIDERED

• A RATE OF RETURN ON DISTRICT ASSETS FROM WHICH THE TOWNS BENEFIT BUT DO NOT PAY FOR HAS BEEN 

CALCULATED OUTSIDE OF THIS ANALYSIS.  THIS COULD POTENTIALLY INCREASE TOWNS’ VOLUME CHARGE BY 

$0.60/1,000 IF PURSUED BY THE DISTRICT. 

• SHOULD WATER AND PI SURCHARGE REVENUES CONTINUE TO BE SHARED WITH THE TOWNS?  

           

           

           

           

     



THE IMPACT OF TOWNS ON DISTRICT FINANCES

• THE TOWNS ACCOUNT FOR ABOUT 37% OF TOTAL DISTRICT WATER USAGE AND ABOUT 30% OF DISTRICT 

REVENUE, NOT INCLUDING SURCHARGE REVENUES

• IF SEVERANCE, EATON, AND WINDSOR ABRUPTLY LEFT THE SYSTEM:

• VOLUME CHARGES WOULD HAVE TO INCREASE BY A NET OF $1.75 TO $2.50 PER 1,000 GALLONS TO MAKE-UP THE 

DIFFERENCE

• FUTURE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WOULD HAVE TO BE ADJUSTED OR RE-TIMED AND PI FEES REEVALUATED

• ALTERNATIVELY, IF SEVERANCE, EATON, AND WINDSOR MAINTAIN THEIR COMMITMENT AT 2028 LEVELS

• VOLUME CHARGES WOULD HAVE TO INCREASE BY $0.20 TO $0.30 PER 1,000 GALLONS DURING 2029-32 TO MAKE-UP 

THE DIFFERENCE

• FUTURE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WOULD HAVE TO BE ADJUSTED OR RE-TIMED AND PI FEES REEVALUATED



REMAINING TASKS

• INCORPORATE STAFF AND BOARD COMMENTS INTO THE ANALYSIS

• INCORPORATE MASTER PLAN INFORMATION RE. REMAINING CAPACITY INTO THE REVISED PI FEES

• WATER AND PI SURCHARGES:

• UPDATE WATER AND PI SURCHARGES; DOCUMENT THE BASIS FOR THE PI SURCHARGE

• PROPORTION OF SURCHARGE REVENUES TO BE USED FOR RATE RELIEF OR PI FEE REDUCTIONS 

• TOWNS:

• POTENTIAL SCENARIOS RE. FUTURE DEMANDS AND RELATIONSHIP WITH DISTRICT

• WHETHER TO OFFSET TOWN RATE WITH SURCHARGE REVENUES



QUESTIONS?



1 
 

Preliminary Draft - North Weld County Water District 2024 Budget Memo 
To: Board of Directors North Weld County Water District 

From: Eric Reckentine 
September 11, 2023 

Revenue  

Total district water usage for North weld County Water District (District) is projected to increase 0.5% 

annually for the next 5 years from 2022 water usage.  

• Commercial water usage is projected as flat to 2022 volumes for the next 5 years. 

• Wholesale Water Accounts are projected at an approximate .25% water usage increase annually 

for the next 5 years from 2022 usages and 

• The three towns associated with the Group treatment plant usage volumes are projected as flat 

perpetually starting in 2028.  

• District residential water usage is projected at an approximate 1.5% annual water usage 

increase for the next 5 years from 2022 usages. 

Total meter sale revenue is budgeted to increase from approximately $18.1 million in the 2023 budget 

to $20.8 million in 2024 budget and $.85 million less to 2022 actual revenues.  The 2023 forecast 

projects approximately $17.2 million in metered revenues.  Water allocation and plant investment 

surcharges are budgeted at $6 million annually for the next five years. The district is projected to see 

approximately $4 million in total contributions which is flat to 2023 forecast with budgeted sales of 

approximately 150 meters, $1.5 million in interest and miscellaneous revenues with a total revenue 

projection of $26.3 million. 

• The rate increase projections for all customer classes are at 5% for the next five years. 

• Towns out of compliance with storage requirements are projected at residential rates for 2024. 

• Water allocation surcharges are projected at $6.00/1000 gallons. Recommend raising water 

allocation surcharge to Honey Creek Consulting Recommendations. 

• Plant investment surcharges are projected at $3.85/1000 gallons. Recommend increasing PI 

surcharge to Honey Creek Consulting Recommendations. 

• Plant Investment sales are projected at 150 meters sold for 2024- and 175-meter sales annually 

for the following 5 years.  

• Cash in Lieu sales are projected at 3 units in 2024 and at 10 units for the following five years at 

$73,500. 

• Plant Investment Fee is currently projected at $20,500 per PI not counting distance fee. 

Recommend increasing PI surcharge to Honey Creek Consulting Recommendations. 

Expenses  

Operations Maintenance and Administration 2024 budget is projected at approximately $10.6 million 

which is approximately $1 million increase from 2023 budget and forecast.  

• Labor costs are projected to increase approximately $0.5 million from 2023 to 2024 which 

equates to approximately 20%, that includes a proposed 5% employee cost of living increase, 

insurance increases and mid-year increases 2023.  

• The District anticipates acquiring two replacement fleet vehicles in 2024 and dump truck.  



2 
 

• The District has budgeted $30,000 for Web Site Design. 

• Repaving Project for Home Office Budgeted at $100,000 

• Fiber Optic Line Installation Budgeted at $125,000 

• Solider Canyon Filter Plant treatment costs rate increase of $100,000 for 2024, SCWTA budget 

memo is attached as draft final to be attached for October meeting.   

• Increase in material costs projected at double for 2024 from 2023-line replacement and repair 

and meter repairs O&M costs increase of $0.5 million dollars. 

Capital improvement project costs for 2024 are projected at approximately $29.5 million compared to 

2023 budget of $27.8 million.  Forecast for 2023 is capital improvement projects is projected at $25.5 

million to date. Capital Improvements project costs for 2023 and 2024 are approximately 30% greater 

than original engineering projections 2021/2022 due to rapid increase in material costs. The anticipated 

capital improvement ten-year forecast is approximately $200 million that includes approximately $60 

million in water rights acquisition.  

The District is forecasted to complete the following capital improvement projects in 2023: 

• Constructed approximately 1.5 of 2 miles Eaton Pipeline Phase II at $5.3 million dollars. 

• Construction of the Greeley/ NW Harmoney Interconnect 24- inch Pipeline at $1.5 million dollars 

• Construction NEWT III Transmission Line- Timberline Crossing and Permitting, Pipe and Property 

Acquisition, and 1st Phase of Construction at $8.5 million dollars. 

• Acquisition of Water Rights at $7 million dollars 

• Rehabilitation Project for Tanks 1A, 5B and 7 at $1 million dollars CIP and O&M 

• Larimer #2 Headgate Construction Project Overland Ponds 

• Longs Peak WSSC Recharge Structure  

• Emergency Generator Backup Power, Nunn PS, PS-1 and Summit View  

• These costs do not reflect reimbursement from ELCO for NEWT III and City of Greeley for 

Interconnect materials as per the IGA – approximately $1.5 million dollars. 

Capital Improvement System Projects for 2024 

• North Weld East Larimer County (NEWT) III transmission line permitting, and construction 

projected cost of $8.5 million for 2023 and $13.5 million for 2024. 

• Eaton Pipeline Phase 2 two mile 30-inch distribution construction projected cost of $5.3 million 

for 2023, anticipating winter of 2024 construction costs of $2.5 million. 

• Greeley and North Weld Interconnect projected cost of $1.5 million for pump station acquisition 

and construction in 2024 

• Tank Rehabilitation Program for Tank 4 and Tank 5 at $1 million  

• Tank 1 to CR 78, 16-inch distribution pipeline upsizing project projected start 2024 total project 

cost of approximately $9 million with $2 million dollars in 2024 

• Weld County Zone 1 Transmission Line to Tank 1 Site project starts in 2024 and project cost of 

$9 million with $ 2 million dollars budgeted for 2024.  

• Tank 1C Design and Construction project cost $7 million with 2025 construction. Engineering 

and Design in 2024 

• Line 1 Interconnect Project at $500,000 

• Timnath 36-inch Line Lowering projected cost $1 million with ½ to be paid by Timnath 



3 
 

• Line replacement projects – Highway 85, Woods Lake, County RD 84  

Capital Improvement Raw Water Projects for 2024  

• Raw water district drought supply acquisition project projected at $6 million.  

• Water Supply and Storage Company Structures projected cost of $100,000 

• Reservoir Pumping Costs of $200,000. 

• Legal and Engineering cost of approximately $200,000 Change Case and Oppositions  

Master Planning  

• Finalize Regional Master Plan  

• Cost of Service Study Update 2023 dependent on Revised Water Service Agreement.  

• System Pressurization Study for analyses of pressurization of the transmission system at the 

treatment plant to be managed by SCWTA. 

• Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Rating Expansion to 65 to 67 MGD be managed by SCWTA projected 

at $60,000 for 2024. 

• Soldier Canyon Filter Plant Master Plan to be managed by SCWTA projected at $250,000 for 

2024. 

Total expenditures for 2024 are projected at $44.5 million dollars.  Funds available at end of 2024 are 

projected at $16.9 million dollars of which $5.5 million dollars is depreciation reserve fund with an 

additional $7 million in operational reserve fund.  

Previous Five-Year Financial Summary 2018 to 2022 

From 2018 to 2022, the District has received in approximate figures $74 million dollars in operational 

revenue, has received $61 million in non-operation revenue, has obtained debt proceeds in total of $51 

million dollars with approximately 6 million in miscellaneous incomes, and has maintained 

approximately $10 million dollars in operational and replacement reserve funds for a total revenue of 

$192 million dollars ($141 million dollars without debt proceeds),  

From 2018 to 2022,  the District has acquired approximately 1,300 acre-feet of new water supplies at a 

cost of approximately $49 million dollars, averaging $38,000 per acre-foot and averaging approximately 

$10 million annually in water acquisitions investment, constructed approximately $38 million dollars of 

system improvements, averaging about $8 million dollars annually to serve growth and maintain reliable 

service for a total capital improvement expenditure of $86 million dollars, has spent $40  million dollars 

in operations and maintenance (O&M), or about $8 million per year, has paid $16 million in debt service, 

for total expenditures of approximately $143 million.  Specific projects include: 

• Solider Canyon Treatment Plant Expansion from 45 to 60 MGD. 

• Line 1 replacement project and 48-inch upsizing.  

• Pump Station 1 upgrade. 

• Old Eaton Pipeline, 16-inch line replacement and 20-inch upsizing. 

• Emergency Backup Power Summit View. 

• Eaton Pipeline Project 2 miles Phase 1. 

• Pump Station Rebuild Summit View. 

• Pump Station Upgrade Station 4. 



4 
 

• Pump Station Upgrade Station 6. 

• Mason Street Interconnect City of Greeley 60-inch to NEWT III. 

• Horse tooth Operation Project Hansen Pump Back Station. 

• 2nd Master Meters to Severance.  

• 2nd Master Meter to Windsor.  

• Master Meter City of Greeley 

• Town of Nunn Pump Station Upsize and Replacement.  

• Wild wing Irrigation Raw Water Line. 

• Purchase Contract for Knox Pit Reservoir Project - Overland Ponds 

• Acquisition of River Bluffs Reservoir Storage Project. 

• Acquisition of Overland Ponds – Cells 4 and 5. 

• Development of two Return Flow Structures for Native Rights.  

• 5- year CDPHE Sanitary Survey. 

• American Water Infrastructure Act Survey and Emergency Response System Upgrades.  

• Mill Levy Ballot Initiative.  

• Emergency Power SCADA. 

Policies  

The District over the course of 5 years has developed or modified approximately 20 policies, and 

updated manuals and protocols related to updated design criteria, maintenance program, safety, 

employment manuals and polices, development review procedures, drought triggers, finance and 

reserve fund policies, regulatory compliance manual and policies related to back flow and cross 

connection devices, board of director manual and plant investment and water dedication policies. 

The following are considered by District Management to be key policy changes that have had significant 

impact on maintaining district solvency: 

• Finance Policies for Reserve and Depreciation Funds.  

• Elimination of the Conservation Blue Tap Program. 

• Raw Water Dedication Policy Change from 100% Cash in Lieu to 100% Raw Water Dedication. 

• Drought Trigger Policies and Surcharges. 

• Flow Control Program for Commercial Customers.  

• Mortarium Policies Temporarily Limiting New Growth.  

• Elimination of the Water Allocation and Plant Investment Reinvestment Program.  

• Residential Meter Over Usage Policy and Surcharge 

Management Recommendations:   

1.  A 5% rate increase  

2. Increasing the plant investment fee to reflect the Honey Creek recommendation per PI not 

including distance fee. 

3. Increasing CIL to $73,500  

4. Increasing the Plant Investment and Water Allocation Surcharge to Honey Creek 

recommendation. 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast

2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Forecast 2024 Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Revenues
Total Operating Revenue 21,708,287$           18,189,459$            17,193,431$       20,867,804$       21,642,563$       22,451,083$         23,302,799$          23,700,015$          24,636,199$         

Debt Proceeds 34,615,000$           -$                       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                      -$                      -$                    

Total Non-Operating Revenue 1,026,000$            185,081$                1,502,000$         1,537,637$         738,390$            739,157$              739,941$               740,739$               741,554$             

Total Contributions 7,134,545$            4,174,964$             3,986,224$         3,895,784$         5,299,500$         5,313,490$           5,327,759$            5,342,315$            5,357,161$          

Total Revenues 64,483,832$           22,624,387$            22,681,655$       26,377,605$       27,758,361$       28,583,196$         29,451,554$          29,865,745$          30,819,244$         

Expenditures
Administrative 2,163,522$            2,147,230$             2,065,250$         2,058,589$         2,105,146$         2,152,796$           2,201,565$            2,251,481$            2,302,572$          

Operational 6,622,341$            7,165,217$             7,642,136$         8,577,634$         8,367,752$         8,333,206$           8,439,343$            8,663,126$            8,875,719$          

Debt Service 2,907,375$            5,127,288$             4,654,000$         4,420,825$         4,421,488$         4,416,925$           4,422,250$            4,422,238$            4,417,000$          

Water Enterprise Fund 2020 Bond 477,288$               473,288$                473,288$            474,175$            474,838$            470,275$              475,600$               475,588$               470,350$             

Capital Improvements 12,223,970$           28,239,700$            25,589,700$       29,505,000$       22,660,000$       18,460,000$         13,060,000$          13,860,000$          14,310,000$         

Total Expenditures 24,394,496$           42,679,435$            40,424,374$       44,562,048$       37,554,386$       33,362,927$         28,123,158$          29,196,846$          29,905,291$         

Earnings 40,089,336$           (20,055,048)$           (17,742,719)$      (18,184,443)$      (9,796,026)$        (4,779,731)$          1,328,396$            668,899$               913,953$             

Funds Available (carry over prior to depreciation) 62,450,588$           40,227,855$            43,879,808$       24,850,743$       14,193,203$       8,534,727$           8,966,803$            8,721,456$            8,702,878$          

Depreciation 828,061$               844,622$                844,622$            861,515$            878,745$            896,320$              914,246$               932,531$               951,182$             

Funds Available 61,622,527$           39,383,233$            43,035,186$       23,989,228$       13,314,458$       7,638,407$           8,052,557$            7,788,925$            7,751,696$          

Reserve Fund -$7 million 7,000,000$            7,000,000$             7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$         7,000,000$           7,000,000$            7,000,000$            7,000,000$          

Fund Avaialble minus reserve fund 54,622,527$           32,383,233$            36,035,186$       16,989,228$       6,314,458$         638,407$              1,052,557$            788,925$               751,696$             

Depreciation Reserve Fund 3,857,124$            4,685,185$             4,685,185$         5,529,807$         6,391,322$         7,270,067$           8,166,387$            9,080,633$            10,013,164$         



6 
 

 

 

BREAKDOWN 2024 Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

3000 Revenue 26,377,605$        27,758,361$      28,583,196$    29,451,554$      29,865,745$     30,819,244$    

3100 Operating 20,867,804$        21,642,563$      22,451,083$    23,302,799$      23,700,015$     24,636,199$    

3200 Non-Operating 1,500,845$          700,862$            700,879$         700,897$           700,914$          700,933$         

3300 New Service 3,895,784$          5,299,500$         5,313,490$      5,327,759$        5,342,315$       5,357,161$      

3400 Ag-Water Income (Non-Op) 18,571$               18,943$              19,321$            19,708$             20,102$             20,504$            

3500 Miscellaneous (Non-Op) 18,221$               18,585$              18,957$            19,336$             19,723$             20,117$            

3700    Debt Proceeds

2009 Bond Revenue (included in operating revenue) -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

4000 8,577,634$          8,367,752$         8,333,206$      8,439,343$        8,663,126$       8,875,719$      

4100 Water 3,943,491$          3,677,054$         3,787,548$      3,811,864$        3,951,924$       4,078,844$      

4200 Personnel Operations 2,042,823$          2,093,731$         2,145,912$      2,199,398$        2,254,220$       2,310,413$      

4400 Operation & Maintenance 2,183,198$          2,180,682$         1,975,136$      1,994,979$        2,015,218$       2,035,863$      

4500 Engineering -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

4600 Electricity 184,722$             188,416$            192,185$         196,028$           199,949$          203,948$         

4700 Communications 51,000$               52,020$              53,060$            54,122$             55,204$             56,308$            

4800 Insurance 172,400$             175,848$            179,365$         182,952$           186,611$          190,344$         

4900 Miscellaneous -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

5000 2,058,589$          2,105,146$         2,152,796$      2,201,565$        2,251,481$       2,302,572$      

5100 Personnel - Administrative 538,541$             554,697$            571,338$         588,479$           606,133$          624,317$         

5200 Payroll Taxes 144,068$             146,949$            149,888$         152,886$           155,944$          159,062$         

5300 Heath Insurance 61,200$               62,424$              63,672$            64,946$             66,245$             67,570$            

5400 Office Utilities 211,907$             216,145$            220,468$         224,878$           229,375$          233,963$         

5500 Office Expenses 204,939$             209,037$            213,218$         217,483$           221,832$          226,269$         

5600 Professional Fees 787,934$             803,693$            819,767$         836,162$           852,885$          869,943$         

5900 Miscellaneous 110,000$             112,200$            114,444$         116,733$           119,068$          121,449$         

6000 29,505,000$        22,660,000$      18,460,000$    13,060,000$      13,860,000$     14,310,000$    

6200 Storage Tanks 1,000,000.00$    7,000,000.00$   750,000.00$    1,000,000.00$  -$                   -$                  

6300 Pump Stations 75,000.00$          -$                     -$                  1,500,000.00$  2,500,000.00$  4,000,000.00$ 

6400 Equipment 220,000$             100,000$            -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

6500 System 21,700,000$        9,000,000$         11,200,000$    4,000,000$        4,800,000$       4,750,000$      

6600 Water Rights/Storage  $         6,330,000  $        6,380,000  $      6,330,000  $       6,380,000  $       6,380,000  $      5,380,000 

6700 Land / Easements 180,000$             180,000$            180,000$         180,000$           180,000$          180,000$         

6900 Office Equipment -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                    -$                   -$                  

7000 4,420,825$          4,421,488$         4,416,925$      4,422,250$        4,422,238$       4,417,000$      

7200 Interest / Principle 4,420,825$          4,421,488$         4,416,925$      4,422,250$        4,422,238$       4,417,000$      

7400 Interest Expense Other

7800 Depreciation

7900 Amortization

Water Enterprise Fund 474,175$             474,838$            470,275$         475,600$           475,588$          470,350$         

Total Expense 44,562,048$        37,554,386$      33,362,927$    28,123,158$      29,196,846$     29,905,291$    

North Weld County Water District

2024 Budget 

Bond Issue 

Operational Expense 

Administrative

Capital Improvements



SOLDIER CANYON WATER TREATMENT 
AUTHORITY 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

To: Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Board of Directors 
 
From:  Mark Kempton, P.E., CWP - SCWTA Manager 
 
Date:  September 7th, 2023 
 
RE:  DRAFT - 2024 Budget for the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority  
  
The intent of this memo is to present the proposed draft Operational & Maintenance and 
Renewal & Replacement expenditure budgets for the Soldier Canyon Water Treatment 
Authority (SCWTA) for the fiscal year 2024.  In addition to treatment plant expenses, the 
SCWTA budget includes funding for the Tri-District’s Water Resources personnel. Due to the 
unusual summer weather and subsequent lower water demands in 2023, the calculations used 
for District per gallon cost contributions are based on the 2023 budget annual production of 8.4 
billion gallons of treated water, as detailed in Table 1 below.  The fiscal year for the SCWTA 
budget is January 1 through December 31. 
 
NOTE – Need input from Districts on the % increase assumptions in this Table. 
Table 1 – Historic and projected water usage (MG) 
District  2021 

Actual 
2022 
Actual 

2023* 
Projected 

2024 
Projected** 

Assumed 2024 
(decrease)/increase 
over 2022 

East Larimer 
County 

1,449 1,540 1,232 1,638 6.3% 

Fort Collins 
Loveland 

3,167 3,336 2,668 3,610 7.5% 

North Weld 
County 

3,683 3,514 2,811 3,867 10% 

Tri-Districts 
Totals 

8,299 8,391 6,712 9,115 8.6% 

*Assumed 20% decrease in summer demands 
**Same 2023 projected values as used in the 2023 Budget. 
 
The following documents are included to provide details for the 2024 Budget.  
 

A. 2024 Budget – The budget summarizes the proposed revenues, expenditures, and reserve 
account fund projections. It also summarizes the funding responsibility for each District.  

B. Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Summary – The attached worksheet lists the major 
categories in the O&M Budget. The operations and maintenance summary is divided into six 
major categories.   

a. Personnel Services 
b. Professional Services 
c. Utilities 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  September 7, 2023 

2 | P a g e  
 

d. Contractual Services 
e. Commodities 
f. Repair and Maintenance  

 
C. O&M Expense Detail Worksheet – The attached worksheet provides additional detail about 

planned O&M Expenses for 2024. 
D. Renewal & Replacement Fund Summary – This worksheet lists the upcoming Renewal and 

Replacement (R&R) Fund projects planned for 2024.  
 
General Review of 2023 
 
Treated Water Production  
The annual plant production for 2023 is projected to be 6.7 billion gallons. To date, the peak 
daily plant production in 2023 was 46.55 million gallons, recorded on July 26, 2023. For 
comparison, the annual plant production and peak daily production for 2022 were 8.39 billion 
gallons and 49.76 MGD,  respectively. 
 
Water Quality 
Treated water produced at Soldier Canyon Filter Plant continues to be rated as very high-quality 
water.  All Environmental Protection Agency, (EPA) and Colorado Department of Public Health 
and Environment, (CDPHE), Safe Drinking Water regulations were met, with the exception of 
one external lab reporting error. In most cases, water quality far exceeded regulatory 
requirements.  
  
Water Quality / Regulatory / Watershed  
SCWTA continues to support monitoring of the Poudre River watershed in conjunction with 
regional partners. 
 
2024 Proposed Budget 
 
Operations & Maintenance Budget 
The proposed O&M budget for 2024 is $6,426,851. This is an increase of 4.5% from the 2023 
O&M budget of $6,151,833.  
 
Details of expense categories, proposed 2024 costs, and 2024 over 2023 budget % changes are 
listed below. 
 

1. Personnel Services ($3,347,631) – 2.0% increase. 
An assumed wage increase of 5% is included in the 2024 budget. Increases are primarily due to 
health Insurance and personnel costs.   
 

2. Professional Services ($73,465) – 37% decrease. 
Decreases in legal and engineering services. 
 

3. Utilities ($167,937)– 46.7% increase 
Increase due to higher electricity and natural gas costs. 
 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  September 7, 2023 

3 | P a g e  
 

4. Contractual Services ($572,483) – 12.2% increase 
Increases in liability insurance, and PVP Enterprise indirect costs/capital projects. 
 

5. Commodities ($1,515,619) – 8.7% increase 
Increased cost of water treatment chemicals.  
 

6. Facilities Repair and Maintenance ($749,716) – 2.0% increase 
Increase due to project selection. Proposed projects for 2024 include: 

 
• PLC Controls improvements. 
• Painting Pipes.  
• Replace House Water PVC Piping. 
• Replace Surface Wash Pipes.  
• Replace Filter Actuators.  
• Upgrade Filter Consoles.   
• Replace Redwood Floc Walls - Annual Program.  
• Replace filters 1-20 surface wash PVC - Annual Program.  
• Filter Air Solenoid Valve replacement program - Annual Program.  
• Tank 2 - Spot coating repairs.  
• Yard Butterfly Valve Actuator Replacement - Annual Program. 

 
Renewal and Replacement (R&R) Fund Budget 
The proposed R&R Fund budget for 2024 is $1,936,738. This is a decrease of 3.4% from the 
2023 R&R budget. Proposed 2024 R&R projects are listed below:  
 

1. New Hydrocarbon Analyzer for Poudre River and new Lab TOC Analyzer - $95,000. 
New analyzer at the PVP Sed Basin to detect gasoline spills in the Poudre River. 

2. Upgrade SCADA operating system - $260,000. 
Upgrade the iFix SCADA operating interface. 

3. Upgrade Chlorine Dioxide system - $400,000. 
Replace the older, smaller 195-gallon tank with a new 800-gallon tank, install new generators, 
and piping. 

4. Replace MCC - $568,000. 
Replace the main Plant Motor Control Center. 

5. Replace Sedimentation Sludge collectors - Basins 1-4 - Annual Program- $100,000. 
Replace sludge collectors – phase over several years until complete. 

6. Vehicle replacement - $85,000. 
Replace two 15-year-old maintenance trucks. 

7. Replace Mud Valves - Floc Basin Drains - $32,000. 
Replace original mud valves. 

8. Replace NWCWD 20-inch meter - $280,000. 
 
 
 
 
 



2024 BUDGET MEMO – SCWTA BOARD MEETING  September 7, 2023 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
Table 2 – Summary of 2024 District costs 
 East Larimer County Fort Collins Loveland North Weld County 

Fixed O&M $1,124,350 $1,888,504 $1,904,485 

Variable O&M $271,265 $597,843 $640,404 

Renewal and 
Replacement $442,835 $743,804 $750,099 

Total $1,838,450 $3,230,151 $3,294,988 

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2023 Budget 2.18% 2.60% 2.70% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority page 1

Water Enterprise Fund
DRAFT 2024 Budget
Prepared 8/8/2022   Approved on ????????

2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget

Beginning Balance For All Funds 3,682,250              3,922,032              3,922,032              3,948,735              2,516,298              2,583,084              2,965,776              2,966,276              2,971,526              2,977,026              2,996,649              3,016,556              3,036,776              3,057,312              3,078,163              3,099,360              
Ending Balance for All Funds 3,922,032              2,028,675              2,516,298              1,601,502              1,922,987              2,965,776              2,966,276              2,971,526              2,977,026              2,996,649              3,016,556              3,036,776              3,057,312              3,078,163              3,099,360              3,117,838              

Operations & Maintenance Fund 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget

Beginning Balance 2,408,194$            1,840,810$            1,840,810$            1,867,783$            1,726,839$            1,765,526$            1,746,952$            1,747,202$            1,752,202$            1,757,202$            1,769,250$            1,781,371$            1,793,564$            1,805,831$            1,818,172$            1,830,587$            
Revenue 4,592,130$            4,594,399$            4,589,899$            3,599,030$            4,633,388$            4,677,208$            6,152,083$            5,547,445$            6,431,851$            6,419,235$            6,611,523$            6,809,578$            7,013,573$            7,223,686$            7,440,100$            7,662,278$            
Expenses 3,950,280$            4,704,198$            4,703,870$            4,677,940$            4,937,667$            4,695,782$            6,151,833$            5,542,445$            6,426,851$            6,407,187$            6,599,402$            6,797,384$            7,001,306$            7,211,345$            7,427,686$            7,650,516$            
Transfer from O&M to Replacement 1,209,234$            -$                        -$                        
Fund Year Ending Balance (Min = $738,491) 1,840,810$            1,731,011$            1,726,839$            788,873$               1,422,560$            1,746,952$            1,747,202$            1,752,202$            1,757,202$            1,769,250$            1,781,371$            1,793,564$            1,805,831$            1,818,172$            1,830,587$            1,842,349$            
O&M Fund Emergency Reserve Target Requirement (3 mos.) - min $738,491 812,261$              1,176,050$           1,175,968$           1,175,050$           1,234,417$           1,173,946$           1,537,958$           1,385,611$           1,606,713$           1,601,797$           1,649,851$           1,699,346$           1,750,327$           1,802,836$           1,856,921$           1,912,629$           

Renewal & Replacement Fund 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget

Fund Year Beginning Balance 393,783$               1,206,567$            1,206,567$            1,206,567$            789,459$               817,558$               1,218,824$            1,219,074$            1,219,324$            1,219,824$            1,227,399$            1,235,185$            1,243,212$            1,251,481$            1,259,991$            1,268,773$            
Revenue 254,340$               1,206,811$            1,202,892$            1,227,583$            1,770,968$            1,770,732$            2,004,250$            1,133,297$            1,937,238$            2,122,575$            1,097,787$            1,109,872$            1,650,382$            555,938$               8,782$                    6,716$                    
Expenses 650,790$               2,115,714$            1,620,000$            1,616,592$            2,060,000$            1,369,466$            2,004,000$            1,133,047$            1,936,738$            2,115,000$            1,090,001$            1,101,845$            1,642,113$            547,428$               -$                        -$                        
Transfer Received from O&M 1,209,234$            -$                        -$                        -$                        
Fund Year Ending Balance 1,206,567$            297,664$               789,459$               817,558$               500,427$               1,218,824$            1,219,074$            1,219,324$            1,219,824$            1,227,399$            1,235,185$            1,243,212$            1,251,481$            1,259,991$            1,268,773$            1,275,489$            
R&R Fund Emergency Reserve Minimum  Requirement = $500,000 200,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              500,000$              

Capital Plant Expansion Fund 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected
Beginning Balance 880,273$               874,655$               874,655$               874,385$               -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Revenue 19,285,963$         9,463,631$            8,060,339$            8,538,279$            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Expenses 19,291,581$         10,338,286$         8,934,994$            9,417,593$            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Fund Year Ending Balance 874,655$               -$                        (0)$                          (4,929)$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority page 2

Water Enterprise Fund
DRAFT 2024 Budget
Prepared 8/8/2022

O&M Revenue Requirement 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget
Fixed O&M 3,080,145$            3,711,820$            3,599,030$            3,597,840$            3,597,840$            4,813,114$            4,296,166$            4,917,339$            4,852,389$            4,997,961$            5,147,900$            5,302,337$            5,461,407$            5,625,249$            5,794,007$            
Fixed O&M Rate per MG Capacity Owned

5,716$                    
 Jan. - June $6,663  
June - Dec. $4,997 4,997$                    4,997$                    6,684.88 5,966.90 6,830$                    6,739$                    6,942$                    7,150$                    7,364$                    7,585$                    7,813$                    8,047$                    

Variable O&M 875,199$               992,378$               962,663$               1,035,314$            1,003,407$            1,338,719$            1,246,279$            1,509,512$            1,554,797$            1,601,441$            1,649,485$            1,698,969$            1,749,938$            1,802,436$            1,856,509$            
Variable O&M Rate per 1,000 gallons 0.173$                    0.116$                    0.1197$                 0.1160$                 0.1469 0.1367 0.166$                    0.170$                    0.172$                    0.174$                    0.176$                    0.178$                    0.180$                    0.184$                    

R&R Revenue Requirement 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget
R&R Revenue  650,790$               2,115,714$            1,227,583$            1,770,734$            1,770,732$            2,004,000$            1,133,047$            1,936,738$            2,115,000$            1,090,001$            1,101,845$            1,642,113$            547,428$               -$                        -$                        
R&R Rate per Month per MG of Capacity

207$                       
 Jan. - June $2,273  
June - Dec. $1,705 2,459.35$              2,459.35$              2,783.33 1,573.68 2,690$                    2,938$                    1,514$                    1,530$                    2,281$                    760$                       -$                        -$                        

Funding Breakout For Each District

NWCWD 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget
Fixed O&M 1,114,997$            1,345,619$            1,345,619$            1,346,984$            1,393,443$            1,393,443$            1,864,119$            1,663,905$            1,904,485$            1,879,330$            1,935,710$            1,993,782$            2,053,595$            2,115,203$            2,178,659$            2,244,019$            
Projected Flow  (in 1,000 gallons) 3655 3549 3549 3679 3679 3867 3867 3867 4076 4210 4357 4509 4666 4823 4823
Variable O&M 632,232$               413,277$               413,277$               427,256$               440,236$               420,617$               567,946$               528,729$               640,404$               693,668$               725,031$               758,502$               793,274$               829,461$               866,542$               889,789$               
Capital -Renewal and Replacement 91,777$                 449,977$               449,977$               459,205$               685,805$               685,805$               776,149$               438,829$               750,099$               819,140$               422,157$               426,745$               635,990$               212,019$               -$                        -$                        
Capital -Plant Expansion 8,395,062$            4,119,519$            3,508,665$            3,716,713$            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Total 10,234,068$         6,337,620$            6,337,620$            5,950,158$            2,519,485$            2,499,865$            3,208,214$            2,631,463$            3,294,988$            3,392,138$            3,082,899$            3,179,028$            3,482,860$            3,156,683$            3,045,201$            3,133,808$            

FCLWD 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget
Fixed O&M 1,100,421$            1,331,985$            1,331,985$            1,332,242$            1,381,750$            1,381,750$            1,848,476$            1,649,942$            1,888,504$            1,863,560$            1,919,467$            1,977,051$            2,036,363$            2,097,453$            2,160,377$            2,225,188$            
Projected Flow  (in 1,000 gallons) 3209 3431 3431 3431 3431 3610 3610 3610 3431 3431 3431 3431 3431 3431 3431
Variable O&M 555,185$               399,536$               399,536$               367,328$               410,560$               399,369$               530,200$               493,589$               597,843$               583,900$               590,875$               597,296$               603,620$               609,918$               616,443$               632,981$               
Capital -Renewal and Replacement 90,675$                 445,434$               445,434$               454,550$               680,050$               680,050$               769,636$               435,147$               743,804$               812,266$               418,615$               423,164$               630,653$               210,240$               -$                        -$                        
Capital -Plant Expansion 8,369,991$            4,107,216$            3,498,187$            3,705,613$            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Total 10,116,272$         6,293,288$            6,293,288$            5,859,734$            2,472,361$            2,461,169$            3,148,313$            2,578,679$            3,230,151$            3,259,726$            2,928,957$            2,997,511$            3,270,636$            2,917,612$            2,776,820$            2,858,169$            

ELCO 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget
Fixed O&M 872,422$               919,617$               919,617$               919,803$               822,646$               822,646$               1,100,519$            982,318$               1,124,350$            1,109,499$            1,142,784$            1,177,067$            1,212,379$            1,248,751$            1,286,213$            1,324,800$            
Projected Flow  (in 1,000 gallons) 1442 1542 1542 1542 1542 1638 1638 1638 1629 1658 1687 1717 1747 1778 1809
Variable O&M 249,547$               179,564$               179,564$               168,080$               184,519$               183,421$               240,573$               223,961$               271,265$               277,229$               285,535$               293,687$               302,074$               310,559$               319,451$               333,740$               
Capital -Renewal and Replacement 71,888$                 306,600$               306,600$               313,828$               404,878$               404,878$               458,215$               259,071$               442,835$               483,595$               249,229$               251,937$               375,469$               125,169$               -$                        -$                        
Capital -Plant Expansion 2,520,640$            1,236,897$            1,053,486$            1,115,953$            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
Total 3,714,497$            2,649,906$            2,649,906$            2,517,664$            1,412,043$            1,410,945$            1,799,306$            1,465,351$            1,838,450$            1,870,323$            1,677,548$            1,722,691$            1,889,923$            1,684,479$            1,605,664$            1,658,540$            
Earned Interest 

Misc. / Interest Income 2020  Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2021 Actual 2022 Budget 2022 Actual 2023 Budget 2023 Projected 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget
Proj. O&M Fund Interest and Misc Income 67,326$                 4,800$                    300$                       6,204$                    234$                       75,961$                 250$                       5,000$                    5,000$                    12,048$                 12,121$                 12,193$                 12,267$                 12,341$                 12,415$                 11,762$                 
Projected Income from R&R Fund Interest 4,800$                    881$                       234$                       250$                       250$                       500$                       7,575$                    7,786$                    8,027$                    8,269$                    8,510$                    8,782$                    6,716$                    



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Prepared 8/8/2023
2024  Budget

O&M Expense Summary
From 
Brenda's 2023 
Projected

 From O&M 
Expense Detail 
Worksheet 

Fixed O&M
2020 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

Actual Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Projected Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
Personnel Services

Wages 1,749,287   2,037,465   1,894,413   1,925,206   $2,081,189 $1,971,282 $2,432,853 $2,372,780 2,446,610$         2,520,008   2,595,609   2,673,477   2,753,681   2,836,292   2,921,380   3,009,022   
Taxes 31,226         36,667         32,579         31,990         35,576         32,468         38,972         38,363         41,078$               42,311         43,580         44,887         46,234         47,621         49,050         50,521         
Pension 270,807       344,334       319,431       308,900       337,372       334,585       383,175       406,355       422,333$            435,003       448,053       461,494       475,339       489,599       504,287       519,416       
Insurance 201,125       238,858       317,696       238,805       318,808       277,173       360,424       357,377       374,663$            385,903       397,480       409,404       421,687       434,337       447,367       460,788       

Misc. 31,987         30,139         51,613         27,108         63,135         33,559         67,257         54,300         62,947$               64,835         66,780         68,784         70,847         72,973         75,162         77,417         
2,284,433   2,687,463   2,615,732   2,532,009   2,836,080   2,649,067   3,282,681   3,229,175   3,347,631$         3,448,060   3,551,502   3,658,047   3,767,788   3,880,822   3,997,246   4,117,164   

Professional Services
Directors Expenses 191               921               3,296           1,500           3,296           4,234           3,465           753               3,465$                 3,569           3,676           3,786           3,900           4,017           4,137           4,262           
Legal Services 9,366           13,400         20,600         20,600         20,600         4,469           21,630         9,849           15,000$               15,450         15,914         16,391         16,883         17,389         17,911         18,448         
Audit Services 54,140         42,791         17,510         31,228         31,000         25,947         31,000         32,944         35,000$               36,050         37,132         38,245         39,393         40,575         41,792         43,046         

Engineering Services 16,897         120,330       120,000       120,000       50,000         15,590         60,000         -                    20,000$               20,600         21,218         21,855         22,510         23,185         23,881         24,597         
80,594         177,443       161,406       173,328       104,896       50,240         116,095       43,547         73,465$               75,669         77,939         80,277         82,686         85,166         87,721         90,353         

Utilities
Trash Service 8,094           6,323           9,200           9,200           $9,200 $6,944 $8,500 $8,229 8,925$                 9,193           9,469           9,753           10,045         10,347         10,657         10,977         

8,094           6,323           9,200           9,200           9,200           6,944           8,500           8,229           8,925$                 9,193           9,469           9,753           10,045         10,347         10,657         10,977         

Contractual Services
Telephone & Internet 18,647         17,163         23,340         23,340         $10,410 $12,380 $9,800 $8,171 9,800$                 10,094         10,397         10,709         11,030         11,361         11,702         12,053         
Outside Services 85,633         97,429         139,855       139,855       151,304       138,784       171,959       118,785       160,709$            165,530       170,496       175,611       180,879       186,306       191,895       197,652       
Source of Supply 47,299         91,903         106,998       106,998       107,321       71,239         116,321       145,955       180,000$            185,400       190,962       196,691       202,592       208,669       214,929       221,377       
Dues, Publications 10,007         11,058         7,003           11,241         11,241         6,875           11,974         7,505           11,974$               12,333         12,703         13,084         13,477         13,881         14,298         14,727         
Liability Insurance 73,421         78,642         76,385         78,642         100,000       167,582       200,000       190,305       210,000$            216,300       222,789       229,473       236,357       243,448       250,751       258,274       

235,007       296,196       353,581       360,076       380,276       396,860       510,054       470,721       572,483$            589,657       607,347       625,568       644,335       663,665       683,575       704,082       

Commodities
Supplies 105,079       124,283       122,082       117,890       122,082       122,945       143,142       106,832       147,449$            151,872       156,429       161,122       165,955       170,934       176,062       181,344       
Fuel & Oil 9,154           14,456         12,772         14,057         12,772         13,298         15,100         12,239         15,100$               15,553         16,020         16,500         16,995         17,505         18,030         18,571         
Miscellaneous 1,180           1,993           2,396           1,200           $2,396 $1,673 $2,570 $1,546 2,570$                 2,647           2,727           2,808           2,893           2,979           3,069           3,161           

115,413       140,732       137,250       133,147       137,250       137,916       160,812       120,616       165,119$            170,073       175,175       180,430       185,843       191,418       197,161       203,076       

Repair and Maintenance 
Plant Equipment 65,156         64,757         60,557         165,000       60,557         108,779       70,000         143,456       150,000$            154,500       159,135       163,909       168,826       173,891       179,108       184,481       
Facilities Repair 267,329       313,496       302,000       330,000       302,000       131,085       592,000       263,649       546,087$            350,000       360,500       371,315       382,454       393,928       405,746       417,918       
Lab Equipment Maint. 8,877           8,937           30,000         15,383         30,000         11,161         30,000         7,495           30,000$               30,900         31,827         32,782         33,765         34,778         35,822         36,896         
Vehicles 15,242         33,592         42,094         44,952         42,094         11,204         42,972         9,280           23,629$               24,338         25,068         25,820         26,595         27,392         28,214         29,061         

356,604       420,783       434,651       555,335       434,651       262,229       734,972       423,879       749,716$            559,738       576,530       593,826       611,641       629,990       648,890       668,356       

Variable O&M
Utilities

Electricity 30,346         64,504         38,028         59,000         39,168         90,626         79,412         108,270       114,517$            117,953       121,491       125,136       128,890       132,757       136,739       140,841       
Natural Gas 7,714           17,895         15,093         19,359         15,546         33,695         26,557         41,882         44,495$               45,830         47,205         48,621         50,080         51,582         53,129         54,723         

38,060         82,399         53,121         78,359         54,714         124,321       105,969       150,152       159,012$            163,782       168,696       173,757       178,969       184,338       189,869       195,565       
Commodities

Treatment Chemicals 837,139       908,756       939,257       862,416       980,600       1,068,205   1,232,750   1,096,127   1,350,500$         1,391,015   1,432,745   1,475,728   1,520,000   1,565,600   1,612,568   1,660,945   

Total O&M Expense 3,955,344   4,720,094   4,704,198   4,703,870   4,937,667   4,695,782   6,151,833   5,542,445   6,426,851$         6,407,187   6,599,402   6,797,384   7,001,306   7,211,345   7,427,686   7,650,516   



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority
DRAFT 2024 Budget Prepared 8/8/2023 DRAFT 2024 Budget Prepared 8/8/2023

O&M Expense Detail Worksheet O&M Expense Detail Worksheet

Adm
inistration

Lab / Regulatory

W
ater Resources

Operations

M
aintenance

Line Total

Total

Projected end of 2023 $s/Notes

Adm
inistration

Lab / Regulatory

W
ater Resources

Operations

M
aintenance

Line Total

Total

Notes

5100 -Personnel Services $3,347,631 5400 - Contractual Services $572,483
5110 Wages $2,446,610 5410 Telephone & Internet $9,800

5111 Wages (Permanent) $273,441 $203,246 $351,085 $999,228 $544,610 $2,371,610 added 5% to 2023 budget. 2023 = $2282328.28 5411 Telephone & Internet $8,200 $1,600 $9,800 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5112
Wages (Contingency for Operators 
advancing through Licensing) $15,000 $15,000 New line item 5420 Outside Services $160,709

5113 Overtime / Temporary $26,000 $12,000 $38,000 2023 = $90451.36 5421 HVAC Service $2,000 $2,000 Kept the same from 2023 budget

On Call $22,000 $22,000 Added back in -  + Superviser on call duty 5422 Contract Lab $16,714 $16,714 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5423 IT & SCADA Support $32,000 $54,995 $86,995 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5120 Taxes $41,078 5424 Solids Removal $40,000 $40,000 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5121 Unemployment Tax $680 $410 $1,000 $3,000 $1,600 $6,690 Added 5% to 2023 budget 5426 Administrative Support $15,000 $15,000 Dropped 50% to match 2023 + 10%
5122 Medicare Tax $3,965 $2,947 $5,091 $14,489 $7,897 $34,388 Used 1.45% of payroll

5130 Pension $422,333 5430 Source of Supply $180,000

5131 P.E.R.A. $41,434 $29,066 $50,762 $150,042 $81,196 $352,500
Added 5% to all 2023 budget numbers. 2023 

spend = $343k 5431 CBT Winter Delivery $0

5132 ICMA matchmaker - Employer $8,038 $5,920 $0 $26,484 $16,538 $56,979 Added 5% to all 2023 budget numbers 5432 PVP Maintenance Est. Cost $160,000 $160,000
2023 spend = $130k. Projected 
2024 spend = $160K

5133 401K matchmaker - Employer $10,338 $2,515 $12,853 Added 5% to all 2023 budget numbers 5433 HT/Big T Watershed Monitoring $0 $0
Lowered to $0. No Longer 
participate

5140 Insurance $374,663 5434 Poudre Watershed Monitoring $20,000 $20,000 2023 spend + 10%

5141 Health Insurance $23,576 $23,576 $35,364 $117,882 $70,741 $271,139

Added 18% to 2023 budget to include 2 new 
operators and 3.5% increase for 2024. That will 
match the 2023 Spend + 3.5%. Projected 2023 

spend = $262k 5440 Dues, Publications $11,974

5142 Life Insurance P.E.R.A. $372 $372 $558 $700 $700 $2,702 Dropped to match 2023 spend of $1k. 5441 Memberships and Publications $5,739 $225 $100 $1,230 $4,680 $11,974 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5143 Workers Comp. Insurance $3,418 $1,668 $5,041 $12,695 $8,000 $30,822
Lowered by 40% to $30k to match 2023 spend 

+ 10%. 2023 = $26910
5144 Health Savings Account $6,000 $6,000 $9,000 $28,000 $21,000 $70,000 Lowered to $70k. 2023 = $60000 5450 Liability Insurance $210,000

5150 Misc. $62,947 5451 Insurance, Property, Liability $210,000 $210,000 Add 5%. 2023 spend = $190k
5151 Conferences, Education $4,244 $4,244 $6,365 $10,540 $6,954 $32,347 Drop by $5k 5500 - Commodities $1,515,619
5152 Uniforms $1,050 $1,050 $1,600 $5,250 $3,150 $12,100 add 5% to 2023 spend/budget. 5510 Supplies $147,449

5153 Safety $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $6,500 $9,000 $18,500 Leave unchanged. 5505 Admin. / Oper. Misc. $7,235 $7,235 Increased by 10% over 2023 budget

5200 - Professional Services $73,465 5511 Office Supplies $20,100 $6,884 $8,058 $35,042 Kept the same from 2023 budget

Board, Legal Audit $73,465 5512 Operational Supplies $3,000 $53,300 $56,300 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5211 Directors Expenses $3,465 $3,465 Leave unchanged.. 5513 Lab Supplies $40,150 $40,150 Increased by 10% over 2023 budget

5212 Legal Services $15,000 $15,000 Drop to match 2023 spend + 10%. 5514 Shop Supplies $7,424 $7,424 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5213 Audit Services $35,000 $35,000
Increase by 10% to match projected 2024 

Baker Tilly costs 5516 Janitorial Supplies $1,298 $1,298 Kept the same from 2023 budget
5214 Engineering Services $20,000 $20,000 Lowered by 60%. $0 spend in 2023 5520 Treatment Chemicals $1,350,500

5300 Utilities $167,937 5521 Coagulants $520,000 $520,000 Match 2023 spend + 5%

5310 Electrical Utilities $114,517 5522 Disinfectants $175,000 $175,000
Increased 100% to match 2023 
spend and 2024 projected use

5311 Plant Electrical $52,000 $52,000 Increase by over 100% to match 2023 spend. 5523 Corrosion Control $292,000 $292,000
Increased 12% over 2023 
budget/spend

5312 Pump Station Electrical $61,117 $61,117 Increase by 10% from 2023 spend/budget 5524 Pre Treatment (Chlorite) $165,000 $165,000 Reduced by 30% from 2023 budget

5313 Tie Pump Station Electrical $1,400 $1,400 Increase by 100% to match 2023 spend 5525 Floc/Filter Aid $54,500 $54,500 Kept the same from 2023 budget
5320 Natural Gas $44,495 5526 Dewatering Flocculants $36,000 $36,000 Match 2023 spend + 5%

5321 Plant Natural Gas $40,000 $40,000 Increase 100% to match 2023 spend 5527 Fluoride $90,000 $90,000 Increased 17%
PAC $15,000 $15,000 New Line Item

5322 Pump Station Natural Gas $2,200 $2,200 Lowered by 50% to match 2023 spend 5528 Misc. Chemicals $3,000 $3,000 Kept the same from 2023 budget
5323 De-Watering bldg. Nat. Gas $2,295 $2,295 Increased by 5% over 2023 budget 5530 Fuel & Oil $15,100

5330 Misc. $8,925 5531 Fuel & Oil $1,500 $2,200 $2,700 $5,200 $3,500 $15,100 Kept the same from 2023 budget
5331 Trash Removal $8,925 $8,925 Increased by 5% over 2023 budget 5540 Miscellaneous $2,570

1 of 2 5541 Miscellaneous $1,700 $630 $240 $2,570 Kept the same from 2023 budget
5600 - Repair & Maintenance $749,716

5610 Plant Equipment $30,000 $120,000 $150,000
Increased by 100% to match 2023 
spend

5620 Facilities Repair $546,087 $546,087 See Facilities Repair Project List

5630 Lab Equipment Maint. $30,000 $30,000 Kept the same from 2023 budget

5640 Vehicles $2,142 $3,000 $8,487 $10,000 $23,629
Lowered by 25%. New vehicles are 
in R&R Fund

2 of 2 Totals $722,157 $420,930 $495,118 $3,151,570 $1,637,076 $6,426,851 $6,426,851

Data Check - $6,426,851

2023 total = $6,151,833



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority 8/8/2023
DRAFT 2024 Budget

Renewal and Replacement Summary
2021 Estimated

Projects & Proj Number Cost $ (2019) Complete (Y/N)
Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019) Complete (Y/N)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Complete 
(Y/N)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2023)

Complete 
(Y/N)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Projects & Proj 
Number Cost $ (2019)

Sleeve Valve $292,463 Yes
 Filter 

Improvements   
1-4 - 0600-04 

$935,714 $500,000 Yes
 Filter 

Improvements 5-
8 - 0600-04 

$700,000 No  Floc Sed Heaters - 
1000-13 

$180,000 No

 Chlorine 
Dioxide System  

- General 
Upgrade 

$400,000  PVP meter 
Upgrades 

$290,000
 Compressed Air 

System 
Upgrades 

$180,000  Replace Filter 
Media 9-12 

$547,428  Paint Clearwell 
Tank 2 

$1,192,113  Replace Filter 
Media 12-20 

$547,428

Scrubber $269,292 Yes
 Floc Sed 

Heaters - 1000-
13 

$700,000 No
 Emergency Back 
Up Generator  - 

0100-02 
$400,000 No

 (50%) Filter 
Improvements 5-8 - 

0600-04 
$700,000 No

 Mud Valves - 
Floc Basin 

Drains 0400-02 
$32,000  Paint BW 

Tanks 1 and 2 
$225,000  Yard Valve 

Repair 
$200,000

 Horsetooth 
Meter 

Replacement 
$329,510  Soda ash 

grinders 
200,000          

Plant Improvements $46,539 Yes  Paint Clearwell 
Tank 1 - 0900-01 

$360,000 $800,000 Yes  Compressed Air 
System Upgrades 

$140,000 No  Emergency Back Up 
Generator -  0100-02 

$220,000 No

 Hydrocarbon 
Analyzer for 
Poudre River 
and new TOC 

Analyzer 

$95,000  Clearwell Tank 
4 - Repaint 

$1,300,000  Repair raw 
water valves 

$610,000  Yard Valve 
Repair 

$224,907  Soda ask 
dehumidifier 

250,000          

Controls Improvements $42,495 Yes
 Emergency Back 
Up Generator - 

0100-02 
$200,000 Ongoing

 Controls 
Improvements - 

PLC 
Replacement 

0100-07 

$120,000 No  Compressed Air System 
Upgrades 

$180,000 No  Replace Plant 
MCC 

$568,260  Yard Valve 
Repair 

$200,000

 Controls Master 
Plan 

$120,000 $120,000 
Contracted and 

Ongoing

 Controls 
Improvements - PLC 

Replacement 0100-07 
$140,000 No

 Replace 
Sedimentation 

Sludge 
collectors - 
Basins 1-4 - 

Annual 
Program 

$100,000

 Replace 
Sedimentation 

Sludge 
collectors - 
Basins 1-4 - 

Annual 
Program 

$100,000

 Replace 
Sedimentation 

Sludge collectors 
- Basins 1-4 - 

Annual Program 

$100,001

 Vehicle 
replacement - 2 

Maint trucks 
$85,000

 Comprehensive 
Master Plan 

$500,000 No  NWCWD 20" 
Meter  

$376,478

 Replace 195 Gal CLO2 
tank with new 800 Gal 

tank - 0200-09 
$84,000 No SCADA iFix 

upgrade
$280,000

$650,789 $2,115,714 $1,620,000 $1,360,000 $2,004,000 $1,936,738 $2,115,000 $1,090,001 $1,101,845 $1,642,113 $547,428 $0 $0

2031 Proposed2025 Proposed 2026 Proposed 2027 Proposed 2028 Proposed 2029 Proposed 2030 Proposed2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2022 Budget 2023 Budget 2024 Proposed



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority Prepared 8/5/2023
DRAFT 2024 Budget

O&M Facilities Repair Project List

2020
2020 

Budgeted 2020 Actual
Completed 

(Y/N?)
2021 

Estimated
Completed 

(Y/N?)
Completed 

(Y/N?) 2023 Budget 2023 Cost
Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects

 Controls 
Improvements 

$62,400 $66,220 Yes  Controls 
Improvements 

64,896 64,896 Yes

 Coagulant 
Pump 

Upgrades - 
skids 

90,000         No  Controls Improvements $75,000  PLC Controls 
Improvements 

$75,000  Soda Ash    De-
Lumper 

77,468          HT 42" Pipe 
Assessment 

83,170               Controls 
Improvements 

82,114          Controls 
Improvements 

85,399          Controls 
Improvements 

85,399          Controls 
Improvements 

88,815         

 Plant Intercom  $59,587 No  Chlorine Hoist 55,597 33,477 Yes
 Chlorine 

Dioxide Pump 
Upgrades 

50,000         No Surface Wash Pumps 1&2 - 
0600-10

$65,000  Replace House Water PVC 
Piping - Annual Program 

$30,000  Controls 
Improvements 

75,919          HT 36" Pipe 
Assessment 

83,170               Caulk Decant 
Pond 3 

290,000       

 Replace 
Fluoride Feeder 

$51,110 Yes  Water Quality 
Analyzer 

50,000 Yes  Paint Pipes 45,000         No  Backwash Pump 2 - 0600-01 $65,000  Vehicle 
Replacement 

50,613          Controls 
Improvements 

78,956              

 Sed Basin Wall 
Repair 

$48,057 No  Paint Pipes 43,264 Yes

 Knock Out 
Wall to Install 

New Tank - 
Part of 0200-

09 CLO2 
project 

30,000         No  Paint Pipes $25,000  Paint Pipes - Annual 
Program 

$47,000

 Replace House 
Water PVC 

Piping - Annual 
Program 

30,000         

 Replace House 
Water PVC 

Piping - Annual 
Program 

30,001              

 Replace House 
Water PVC 

Piping - Annual 
Program 

30,002          Paint building 
exterior 

150,000       

 Gate Lighting & 
Camera 

$40,675 $6,832 Yes  Floc Chains & 
Sprockets  

33,951 70,600 Yes  Vehicle Replacement $46,000  Paint Pipes - 
Annual Program 

47,000         
 Paint Pipes - 

Annual 
Program 

47,001               Paint Pipes - 
Annual Program 

47,002         
 Paint Pipes - 

Annual 
Program 

47,003         
 Paint Pipes - 

Annual 
Program 

47,004         
 Paint Pipes - 

Annual 
Program 

47,005         

 Floc Chains & 
Sprockets 2 

$36,678 $32,646 Yes  Filter Valves 32,448 No  Upgrade Filter Consoles - 
0100-08 

$50,000  Filter Actuators - Annual 
program 

$24,400  Filter Actuators - 
Annual program 

$24,400  Paint Interior 
Walls 

39,000               Paint Interior 
Walls 

39,001          Paint Interior 
Walls 

39,002          Paint Interior 
Walls 

39,003          Paint Interior 
Walls 

39,004         

 House Water 
System 

$31,229 $12,708 Yes  Filter Actuators 21,632 No  Filter Valves $40,000
 Replace Green Plastic 

Airline throughout Plant - 
Annual Program 

$30,000

 Replace Green 
Plastic Airline 

throughout Plant 
- Annual 
Program 

$30,000

 Replace Green 
Plastic Airline 
throughout 

Plant - Annual 
Program 

$30,001

 Replace Green 
Plastic Airline 
throughout 

Plant - Annual 
Program 

$30,002

 Replace Green 
Plastic Airline 
throughout 

Plant - Annual 
Program 

$30,003

 Replace 
Green Plastic 

Airline 
throughout 

Plant - Annual 
Program 

$30,004

 Replace Green 
Plastic Airline 
throughout 

Plant - Annual 
Program 

$30,005

 Caulk Decant 
Pond 2 

$20,000 No
 Chlorine 

Dioxide Batch 
Tank 

39,012 No  Surface Wash Pipes  $36,000  Surface Wash 
Flow Meter 

22,000              

 House Roof  $19,238 $19,656 Yes  Surface Wash 
Piping 1-4 

29,266 Yes  Mud Valves - Floc Basin 
Drains 0400-02 

$35,000  Upgrade Filter Consoles  $52,967

 Paint Filter 
Piping 1-4 

20,067 No  Filter Actuators $25,000  Replace Redwood Floc 
Walls - Annual Program 

$30,000

 Replace 
Redwood Floc 
Walls - Annual 

Program 

$30,000

 Replace 
Redwood Floc 
Walls - Annual 

Program 

$30,000

 Replace 
Redwood Floc 
Walls - Annual 

Program 

$30,000

 Dewatering 
Piping 

Modifications 
10,000 Yes  Surface Wash Flow Meter $22,000

 Replace filters 1-20 
surface wash PVC - Annual 

Program 
$15,000

 Replace filters 1-
20 surface wash 

PVC - Annual 
Program 

$15,000

 Replace filters 
1-20 surface 
wash PVC - 

Annual 
Program 

$15,000

 Replace filters 1-
20 surface wash 

PVC - Annual 
Program 

$15,000

 Replace filters 
1-20 surface 
wash PVC - 

Annual 
Program 

$15,001

 Replace 
Fluoride Feeder 

39,436 Yes  Office/Control Room 
upgrades 

$30,000
 Filter Air Solenoid Valve 
replacement program - 

Annual Program 
$25,000

 Filter Air 
Solenoid Valve 
replacement 

program - 
Annual Program 

$25,001

 Filter Air 
Solenoid Valve 
replacement 

program - 
Annual 

Program 

$25,001

 Filter Air 
Solenoid Valve 
replacement 

program - 
Annual Program 

$25,001

 Fencing 50,380 Yes
Sed Basin Wall Repair $55,000

 Tank 2 - Spot coating 
repairs 

$16,720

Abandon unused Chemical 
feeds - 0200-02 $3,000

 Yard Butterfly Valve 
Actuator Replacement - 

Annual Program 
$200,000

 Yard Butterfly 
Valve Actuator 
Replacement - 

Annual Program 

$200,001

 Yard Butterfly 
Valve Actuator 
Replacement - 

Annual 
Program 

$200,002

 Yard Butterfly 
Valve Actuator 
Replacement - 

Annual Program 

$200,003

 Yard Butterfly 
Valve Actuator 
Replacement - 

Annual 
Program 

$200,004

 Gate Camera 6,832 Yes  Caulk Decant Pond 2 $20,000

$368,974 $138,062 400,133 265,621 215,000       $592,000 $546,087 605,402       683,302            498,125       706,412       351,410       204,829       

20302021 Budgeted 2022 Budgeted 2024 Budget 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029



Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority
DRAFT 2024 Budget
Unit Cost
Operations & 
Maintenance Fund 
Unit Cost Per 1,000 
Gallons

2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2022 Budget 2023 Budget 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget

NWCWD 0.478$                       0.496$                       0.496$                       0.498$                       0.629$                       0.658$                       0.631$                       0.632$                       0.632$                       0.631$                       0.631$                       0.631$                       0.650$                       
FCLWD 0.516$                       0.505$                       0.505$                       0.522$                       0.659$                       0.689$                       0.713$                       0.732$                       0.750$                       0.769$                       0.789$                       0.809$                       0.833$                       
ELCO 0.778$                       0.713$                       0.713$                       0.653$                       0.819$                       0.852$                       0.851$                       0.861$                       0.872$                       0.882$                       0.893$                       0.903$                       0.917$                       

Renewal And 
Replacement Fund 
Unit Cost Per 1,000 
Gallons

2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2021 Projected 2022 Budget 2023 Budget 2024 Budget 2025 Budget 2026 Budget 2027 Budget 2028 Budget 2029 Budget 2030 Budget 2031  Budget

NWCWD 0.025$                       0.127$                       0.127$                       0.186$                       0.201$                       0.194$                       0.201$                       0.100$                       0.098$                       0.141$                       0.045$                       -$                           -$                           
FCLWD 0.028$                       0.130$                       0.130$                       0.198$                       0.213$                       0.206$                       0.237$                       0.122$                       0.123$                       0.184$                       0.061$                       -$                           -$                           
ELCO 0.050$                       0.199$                       0.199$                       0.263$                       0.280$                       0.270$                       0.297$                       0.150$                       0.149$                       0.219$                       0.072$                       -$                           -$                           



Last exported to pdf from ArcGIS Pro by brobeson on 8/1/2023, 1:47 PM.

1252 Commerce Drive
Laramie, WY 82070
www.trihydro.com

(P) 307/745.7474 (F) 307/745.7729

File: 2_CIP_2023

\\T
R

IH
Y

D
R

O
.C

O
M

\C
LI

E
N

T
S

\IT
O

N
\N

W
C

W
D

\G
IS

\M
A

P
P

IN
G

\2
02

3_
P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

\N
W

C
W

D
_2

02
3_

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
.A

P
R

X

Date: 8/1/23Scale: 1" = 3 MilesChecked By: JGDrawn By: BR

NORTH WELD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
LUCERNE, COLORADO

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

FIGURE  2

0 3 Miles


EXPLANATION

k9 STORAGE TANK

PUMP STATION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(CIP) LOCATION

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(CIP) EXTENT

12" OR LARGER WATER LINE

DISTRICT BOUNDARY

EXCLUDED FROM DISTRICT

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

k9

NEWT 3 Alignment (42")

Greeley - NWCWD Interconnect (24")

Highway 85 Replacement (4")

CR 84 Small Diameter Water Line (6")

Eaton Phase II (30")

Zone 1 Alignment (42")

Eaton Phase III (30")

Zone 1 Utilities

Timnath Culvert Crossing (36")

24''

24
''

30''

12''

12''

30''

16
''

12''

14
''

16''

12''

12''
24
''

24''

12''

16
''

14
''

16''

16
''

16
''

12''

16
''

24''

12
''

18''

12
''

16
''

12
'' 12''

12
''

12
''

12''

42''

20'' 12''16''

16''

16''

12
''

36''

12'' 12''

T-2

T-1A

T-6

T-4

T-5N

T-7

T-1B

T-5S

PS-4

PS-1
PS-7

PS-6

Summit View

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA, Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA

DRAFT



 

8.   Discussion: Master Plan, Drought Plan and Proposed     

      Revisions to Water Service Agreements (Privileged and  

      Confidential, Separate Cover) 

 

9.  Executive Session: The Board reserves the right to enter 
into Executive Session for the following purposes: 
Receiving legal advice and discussing matters subject to 
negotiation and strategy pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b) & 
(e), C.R.S. related to Master Planning and Water Service 
Agreements  
 

 


	1.	 Call to Order2.	 Confirmation of Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest 
	3.  September 11, 2023, NWCWD Board Meeting Agenda
	4.    Public Comment 
	5.  Consent Agenda 
	a.  	Minutes from August 14, 2023, and August 28, 2023, Meetings
	b.  	Invoices through September 11, 2023 
	c.  	Easement Agreements
	i.  	Faux – NEWT III
	ii.  	City of Thornton - NEWT III
	iii.  	Redmond – NEWT III
	iv.  	WAPA Access Agreements – NEWT III
	v.  	Nelson Easement Agreement – Woods Lake Line Replacement

	d.  	Water Efficiency Plan Update Scope 
	e.  	Greeley- NW interconnect Change Order
	f.  	Rental of C-BT Carryover Capacity from CSU
	g. 	Supplemental Agreement with Larimer County Canal No. 2 for the headgate rehabilitation project
	h. 	BAE LLC water allocation divestment to district  

	6.  Honey Creek Resources Revised Cost of Service and Fees Study 
	7.    North Weld County Water District Preliminary Draft 2024 Budget 
	8.  Master Plan, Drought Plan and Proposed Revisions to Water Service Agreements (Privileged and Confidential, Separate Cover)
	9.  	Executive Session
	10.  	District Manager’s Report
	11.  Other Business



